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- - - 15 

 16 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 17 

Council convened in the Midnight Ballroom of the Battle House 18 

Hotel, Mobile, Alabama, Wednesday afternoon, February 3, 2010, 19 

and was called to order at 1:00 p.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN BOB SHIPP:  Good afternoon.  My name is Bob Shipp and 22 

as Chairman of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council, I 23 

welcome you all.  This is the 224th meeting of the council.  24 

Members of the public will be permitted to present oral 25 

statements in accordance with the schedule published in the 26 

agenda.  Please advise the council staff if you desire to 27 

address the council.  Please give written statements to the 28 

council staff. 29 

 30 

The 1996 amendments to the Fishery Management Act require all 31 

oral or written statements to include a brief description of the 32 

background and interest of the persons in the subject of the 33 

statement.  All written information shall include a statement of 34 

the source and date of such information. 35 

 36 

It is unlawful for any person to knowingly and willfully submit 37 

to the council false information regarding any manner the 38 

council is considering in the course of carrying out the 39 

Fisheries Act.   40 

 41 

If you have a cell phone, pager, or similar device, we ask that 42 

you keep them on silent or vibrating or turn them off during the 43 

council and committee sessions.  A digital recording is used for 44 

the public record and therefore, for the purpose of voice 45 

identification, each member is requested to identify himself or 46 

herself, starting on my left. 47 

 48 
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MR. JOHN GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 1 

 2 

MR. GEORGE GEIGER:  George Geiger, South Atlantic Fishery 3 

Management Council liaison. 4 

 5 

DR. TOM MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi. 6 

 7 

DR. WILLIAM WALKER:  Bill Walker, Mississippi. 8 

 9 

MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, designee for Dr. Walker, 10 

Mississippi. 11 

 12 

MR. ROBIN RIECHERS:  Robin Riechers, Texas. 13 

 14 

MR. MIKE RAY:  Mike Ray, Texas. 15 

 16 

MR. JOE HENDRIX:  Joe Hendrix, Texas. 17 

 18 

MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 19 

 20 

MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, the Super Bowl heading state 21 

of the country and we’re going to beat Indianapolis’s butt in 22 

about five days. 23 

 24 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 25 

 26 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  Phil Steele, NOAA Fisheries. 27 

 28 

DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries. 29 

 30 

MR. SHEPHERD GRIMES:  Shepherd Grimes, NOAA General Counsel, 31 

Southeast Region. 32 

 33 

MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 34 

 35 

MR. ED SAPP:  Ed Sapp, Florida. 36 

 37 

MR. BILL TEEHAN:  Bill Teehan, the capital of the Super Bowl 38 

location, Florida. 39 

 40 

LCDR CARMEN DEGEORGE:  Carmen DeGeorge, Coast Guard District 8. 41 

 42 

MS. JULIE MORRIS:  Julie Morris, Florida. 43 

 44 

MR. LARRY SIMPSON:  Larry Simpson, Gulf States Marine Fisheries 45 

Commission. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STEVE BORTONE:  Steve Bortone, Gulf Council. 48 
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 1 

MR. BOB GILL:  Bob Gill, Florida. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you all.  Before we move into the agenda, 4 

there are a couple of introductions I would like to make.  5 

First, former council members, I think Russ Nelson is the only 6 

one.  Thank you, Russ.  Also, from Congressman Jo Bonner’s 7 

office, we have Eliska Morgan and Frazier Payne.  I want to make 8 

a comment about Eliska.  I think she has a really vested 9 

interest.  She has been on at least a dozen of our snapper 10 

tagging research trips and so she may have some really good 11 

anecdotal information. 12 

 13 

With that said, let’s move on to the agenda.  The first item of 14 

the agenda is the Adoption of the Agenda, Tab A, Number 5.  Are 15 

there any changes in the agenda or Other Business items? 16 

 17 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 18 

 19 

MR. SAPP:  I would like to make an addition to the agenda under 20 

Other Business and that’s the council consider a request from 21 

Captain Ed Walker that we have received in letter form from him. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Sapp.  Any other new business? 24 

 25 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to add, under Other Business, 26 

research and funding. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We will add that. 29 

 30 

MR. TEEHAN:  Under the Reef Fish Committee Report, I would like 31 

to add a brief presentation of an award to a council member, 32 

please. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We will do that.   35 

 36 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I have three items under Other 37 

Business.  One has to do with marine spatial planning and the 38 

other one for our meeting schedule in the coming years and 39 

another one on the reports from council members. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Bortone.  Anyone else?  That’s 42 

quite a list of Other Business items, but we will carry it out.  43 

The next item on the agenda is the Approval of the Minutes, Tab 44 

A, Number 6.  Any corrections? 45 

 46 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 47 

 48 
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MR. GRIMES:  I have my usual minutia.  Page 100, line 5, 1 

“presidency” should be “president” and that is all, Mr. 2 

Chairman. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kudos to the recorders.  Anyone else have any 5 

corrections?  With that, does anyone object to the adoption of 6 

the minutes?  The minutes are approved.  The next item on the 7 

agenda is Catch Shares Task Force Presentation and that’s Tab N.  8 

Monica Medina was scheduled to give this and I think she’s 9 

caught up in Washington and as I understand it, Roy Crabtree 10 

will give her presentation. 11 

 12 

CATCH SHARES TASK FORCE PRESENTATION 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  Thanks, Bob, and thanks for giving us time on the 15 

agenda.  Let me extend Monica’s regrets to you that she was 16 

unable to be with you today, but we did want to talk a little 17 

bit about the draft NOAA catch share policy. 18 

 19 

Last May, the NOAA Administrator, Dr. Jane Lubchenco, announced 20 

the creation of a task force to produce a draft NOAA policy on 21 

the consideration and use of catch share programs to manage 22 

fisheries and we released a draft of the policy on December 10th 23 

for 120 days of public review and comment. 24 

 25 

If you go to the National Marine Fisheries Service website, down 26 

at the left on the webpage, you’ll see a fish that says “Catch 27 

Shares” and you can click on that and find the report.  Today, I 28 

wanted just to talk a little bit about the policy to you and 29 

this is one of the opportunities for you to provide some input 30 

to the agency on that report. 31 

 32 

I want to begin by giving you some context of what catch share 33 

approaches to management are all about and why NOAA is 34 

interested in encouraging their widespread consideration and a 35 

brief explanation of the policy development process and a 36 

walkthrough of the main content of the draft policy. 37 

 38 

Rebuilding our fisheries and sustaining the jobs and livelihoods 39 

they support is a top priority at NOAA.  We want to achieve 40 

long-term ecological and economic sustainability of the nation’s 41 

fishery resources and the fishing communities they support.  42 

Everyone at this meeting realizes this is a huge challenge, 43 

given the circumstances we face today. 44 

 45 

We have made progress in rebuilding many fisheries under the 46 

Magnuson-Stevens Act, but nationwide, we still have more than 20 47 

percent of our fish stocks that are not rebuilt and an even 48 
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larger proportion of our fisheries that are not meeting our full 1 

economic potential. 2 

 3 

This draft policy provides a foundation for facilitating 4 

widespread consideration of catch share management, a tool that 5 

can help us realize the full economic and biological benefits of 6 

rebuilt fisheries.  Catch shares are a tool to help achieve 7 

sustainable use of the ocean and while they are not a panacea 8 

and not appropriate for every fishery, they are currently in use 9 

by six councils in fourteen different fisheries, of which some 10 

are obviously occurring in the Gulf of Mexico. 11 

 12 

As our primary partners in fishery management, the councils were 13 

a critical part of the development of the draft policy and Bob 14 

Gill on the Gulf Council was a member of the task force, as was 15 

George Geiger from the South Atlantic Council.  I think that the 16 

task force benefited greatly from the active participation of 17 

the eight council members who served on the task force. 18 

 19 

Without their insights and experiences about catch shares, the 20 

draft policy would not be as thorough and complete as it is and 21 

we will need the council’s continued participation, 22 

understanding, and hard work.  The policy is intended to provide 23 

you the flexibility and support for considering catch shares, as 24 

authorized under the Magnuson Act. 25 

 26 

Experience shows us that fisheries managed with catch share 27 

programs often perform better than fisheries managed with 28 

traditional tools.  Even after the first years after 29 

implementation, catch share fisheries are usually stable and 30 

increase their productivity and economic benefits to coastal 31 

communities.  The outcomes of catch shares can help restore the 32 

health of ecosystems and get fisheries on a path to 33 

profitability and sustainability. 34 

 35 

There are pros and cons to catch shares and no strategy is 36 

perfect.  However, we are encouraging councils to consider catch 37 

shares as an option and suggest that they carefully evaluate the 38 

pros and cons of catch share alternatives relative to other 39 

choices and adopt the program that has the highest likelihood of 40 

meeting the council’s objectives and the National Standards of 41 

the Magnuson-Stevens Act. 42 

 43 

This draft policy is not a mandate.  It does not set numerical 44 

targets for catch share programs, but it does encourage and 45 

support the evaluation of catch share programs as authorized 46 

under the Magnuson-Stevens Act. 47 

 48 
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Although this is a national policy, the emphasis remains on 1 

local design and implementation through the council process.  2 

Every fishery is different and affected by a range of economic, 3 

biological, and societal factors and we believe the councils are 4 

the bodies best able to make the decisions about implementation 5 

of these programs in their regions. 6 

 7 

One strength of catch shares is that they allow fishery managers 8 

a great deal of flexibility to design programs that meet 9 

specific goals.   10 

 11 

NOAA’s draft policy recommends that councils pay attention to 12 

the following: identify specific management goals for each catch 13 

share program, for example, eliminating overfishing, ending a 14 

race for fish or a derby fishery, reducing bycatch, creating 15 

socioeconomic stability for fishermen and fishing communities.  16 

The more specific the goals, the more precisely the catch share 17 

design can be structured to attain them. 18 

 19 

After careful analysis and engagement with the fishing community 20 

and the larger community, choose whether and when and to whom to 21 

allow transfers of catch shares to ensure the long-term success 22 

of the program. 23 

 24 

Specifying transferability is a delicate balancing act, as 25 

transferable catch shares promote flexibility for fishermen to 26 

plan and conduct their businesses, while placing conditions on 27 

transfers, such as conditions on size of vessel for share 28 

transfers, can help address competing goals to maintain the 29 

status quo.  This requires a thorough council deliberation. 30 

 31 

Use catch share design options to promote sustainable fishing 32 

communities, including good jobs, preservation of wharfs, 33 

processing facilities, fuel and ice suppliers, and other coastal 34 

businesses.  There are many recently added provisions in the 35 

Magnuson-Stevens Act to sustain fishing communities and small 36 

owner-operator fleets via catch shares, but to date, they have 37 

been underutilized.  38 

 39 

Evaluate catch share designs that would provide set-asides to 40 

allow new generations of fishermen or small businesses to enter 41 

the fishery.  Besides set-asides and proper design of initial 42 

allocation and transfer criteria, loan programs and permit banks 43 

can help assure continued fishery access in traditional ports. 44 

 45 

Thoughtfully consider a royalty system to support science, 46 

research, and management objectives as fisheries become 47 

profitable under a catch share program.  The responsibility to 48 
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decide whether to collect a rental payment for private use of a 1 

public resource is given to the councils. 2 

 3 

Periodically review all catch share and other fishery programs 4 

to gauge whether they are meeting the goals and objectives.  5 

Getting feedback on management plan performance and being 6 

adaptive makes good sense and it’s also required by the law for 7 

limited access privilege programs. 8 

 9 

NOAA believes that considering catch share programs throughout 10 

the nation can help transform fisheries and ensure they are a 11 

prosperous and sustainable part of our oceans and coasts for 12 

present and future generations.  We sincerely want your feedback 13 

on whether the draft policy as written will get us there and if 14 

not, what do we need to do to change the policy to improve it? 15 

 16 

That concludes my remarks and I would invite Bob or George, who 17 

served on the task force, if they have anything they would like 18 

to add to this and then we would certainly welcome your 19 

discussion and your input and I think if you wanted to send 20 

written comments in on the policy to NOAA that that would be 21 

appropriate and something else that you probably ought to 22 

consider. 23 

 24 

MR. GEIGER:  As some may or may not know, when this task force 25 

was originally conceived and the idea was brought forward, the 26 

council participation was not part of it and the council chairs 27 

raised a real stink about that and it was very, very quickly 28 

rectified and members of the council were included in that task 29 

force. 30 

 31 

I appreciate Ms. Medina’s recognition of the council 32 

participation and the contributions that council members made 33 

during the process, because I believe the majority of the 34 

comments, and, Bob, correct me if I’m wrong, came from council 35 

members on those conference calls and the written comments that 36 

were provided via the email site that we had to respond to. 37 

 38 

Again, credit has to be given to NOAA and NOAA Fisheries for the 39 

inclusiveness of that conference and the fact that I believe 40 

everybody’s comments were incorporated into that policy.  I 41 

think they did a really fantastic job being open and inclusive 42 

and taking the comments from all the participants and getting 43 

them in that policy.  I think kudos go to NOAA and NOAA 44 

Fisheries for that particular task force. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  To follow on what George just said, the draft policy 47 

has undergone many revisions and it has undergone significant 48 
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change from the first draft to the current one and I believe, as 1 

does George, that that was in part due to the task force 2 

comments that were numerous and long conference calls, but it 3 

has resulted in a starkly different document than the first one 4 

they started with. 5 

 6 

It was an iterative and adaptive process and I think resulted in 7 

a better document as a result and so you have it before you and 8 

I would urge folks to make comments on it and within the public 9 

comment period, which I believe ends on the 10th of April, and to 10 

do so at will. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bob.  I know that several weeks ago 13 

I was in Washington and heard Ms. Medina’s presentation and she 14 

was very open to questions.  I don’t know if Roy feels as 15 

comfortable as she would, since she helped develop it, but, Roy, 16 

I’m sure you would be willing to take questions if anyone has 17 

any. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  I certainly would, Bob. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do any of the council members have any 22 

questions? 23 

 24 

MR. SAPP:  I don’t have any questions, but I do have a couple of 25 

comments.  First, thanks to Dr. Crabtree for the report and 26 

especially thanks to Bob and George for representing us on that 27 

task force.  I’m probably like a lot of you out there that were 28 

real scared what we were going to see when we got a final 29 

version of this and I think we were all fearful that what we 30 

were going to have was a mandate that we had to implement catch 31 

shares in some way, shape, or form. 32 

 33 

What’s evolved is something that’s a whole lot more council 34 

friendly.  Basically, they’ve given us some suggestions for some 35 

management alternatives and want us to take a look at them.  As 36 

I go through this -- I realize it’s just a draft and we don’t 37 

have a final version yet, but there’s one thing that sticks out 38 

to me, because it’s something that our council is going to have 39 

to consider as we go forward, and that’s this whole issue of 40 

collection of royalties. 41 

 42 

As I read this directly out of here, it requires the councils 43 

consider the collection of royalty payments for the initial or 44 

any subsequent distribution of LAPPs.  If you think about it, 45 

we’ve got two LAPPs that we’re talking about that we haven’t 46 

gotten very far yet and that’s with king mackerel and that’s 47 

with other reef fish and we’re also coming up on the end of the 48 
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first five years with our red snapper LAPP. 1 

 2 

As we talk about all three of those different LAPP fisheries, 3 

we’re going to at least have discussions about this whole idea 4 

of collection of royalties and so we’re put on notice and I also 5 

had the opportunity to serve on -- I don’t know what we were 6 

called, a review board or some kind of participatory group.  I 7 

actually was in on a couple of those conference calls and I want 8 

to restate the same thing that George stated and that is that 9 

they appeared to be very receptive to all the comments that we 10 

made and so I thank them for that. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ed, and I would like to add another 13 

comment.  In Washington, Ms. Medina made it very clear that the 14 

ultimate decisions reside with the councils and that this is not 15 

in the statute and it’s not in Magnuson.  It’s just a strong 16 

push on the administration’s part to move down this road that 17 

they think would be beneficial, but in the final analysis, it’s 18 

a council decision.  Anyone else have any comments or questions 19 

regarding catch shares?  Hearing none, we’ll move on to the next 20 

agenda item and that’s Dr. Bill Walker, a Report of the Gulf of 21 

Mexico Alliance Activities.  It’s Tab P. 22 

 23 

REPORT OF THE GULF OF MEXICO ALLIANCE ACTIVITIES 24 

 25 

DR. WALKER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the council.  26 

Thank you for having me here today.  I just want to take a few 27 

moments to update you on the Gulf of Mexico Alliance.  I guess 28 

it’s been a year-and-a-half or so or two years maybe since we’ve 29 

visited.   30 

 31 

For those of you who don’t know much about the Gulf of Mexico 32 

Alliance, it’s a partnership that was created in 2004 by then 33 

Florida Governor Jeb Bush.  When Jeb Bush stepped down because 34 

of term limits, he asked Haley Barbour to take over the 35 

leadership of this group and Governor Barbour was excited to do 36 

that. 37 

 38 

The Gulf of Mexico Alliance is a state-led organization.  That’s 39 

an important thing to remember.  The decisions are made by the 40 

states within the Gulf of Mexico region.  The federal role in 41 

this is to support the states, not only with finances, but with 42 

guidance and leadership and helping us make the right decisions 43 

as we move forward.  It’s a very good state-led, federally-44 

supported partnership. 45 

 46 

Other groups that are involved in the Alliance are most of the 47 

university systems throughout the Gulf region, many non-48 
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governmental organizations, some non-profits, and some private 1 

sector businesses. 2 

 3 

We had a first action plan in 2006 for three years.  It had 4 

seventy-three specific actions and 95 percent or so of those 5 

have been complete to date and we recently released our second 6 

action plan, last June at Capitol Hill Ocean Week in Washington. 7 

 8 

There are a few of these, ten or twelve of these, on the side 9 

table in the back and you also have two separate handouts that 10 

describe the Alliance and what we do and each one of those 11 

handouts has a website that you can go to and you can download 12 

this plan from that website. 13 

 14 

The kinds of things we were able to do during the first action 15 

plan was to create wetlands, acquire and restore wetlands.  We 16 

created oyster habitat and other types of habitat, like 17 

artificial reefs, tidal marshes, and coastal wetlands.  We’ve 18 

influenced the insulation of regional wastewater systems in 19 

several of the Gulf States that reduces the amount of septic 20 

tanks in the ground and therefore contributes to improving the 21 

water quality. 22 

 23 

We’ve been able to get some polluted rivers in Mississippi 24 

delisted as polluted from that list.  The five states have 25 

worked together to derive a Gulf-wide nutrient characterization 26 

plan.  We’ve done that in anticipation of being able to create 27 

nutrient criteria, in hopes that that will allow the states and 28 

the region to create their own nutrient criteria, rather than 29 

nutrient criteria being created by the U.S. Environmental 30 

Protection Agency and provided to us. 31 

 32 

We’ve worked a lot with increasing resiliency of coastal 33 

communities to storms and hurricanes.  We’ve developed a 34 

resiliency index and it’s available for use in all the states.  35 

These are just sort of the kinds of things.  We’ve done a lot 36 

more than this, but this is the sort of thing that we did in our 37 

first plan. 38 

 39 

Organizationally, I mentioned we were a state-led organization.  40 

The governors appoint the state leads, like myself in 41 

Mississippi that serve on this alliance.  The management team, 42 

that group serves to provide guidance to the folks in the blue 43 

boxes, which are the teams that actually do the work.   44 

 45 

Those teams consist of individuals from all five Gulf States, 46 

from state agencies to academia to NGOs to private sector folks.  47 

All of these folks are involved in these six teams and each team 48 
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is chaired by a state or a combination of states.  For example, 1 

Water Quality, Florida takes the lead, and Restoration, 2 

Louisiana takes the lead.  Marine Education, Alabama is the lead 3 

and then Habitat Identification and Characterization, Texas has 4 

that lead.  Resiliency, Mississippi has that lead and Nutrients, 5 

Mississippi also has that lead. 6 

 7 

Then on the left-side of that graph is a list of the federal 8 

families that provide not only advice to the Alliance Management 9 

Team, but also are members of both the Alliance Management Team 10 

and the six focus teams, as outlined in the second action plan.  11 

The action plan that we announced last June sets what I think is 12 

an ambitious course of actions designed to improve the health of 13 

the coastal ecosystem and the economies of the Gulf in ways that 14 

we could not achieve if we were acting as individual states. 15 

 16 

It’s important that we recognize that we are not focused on 17 

either economic development or environmental stewardship.  Our 18 

feeling is that environmental stewardship and economic 19 

development are not mutually exclusive activities.  They can and 20 

should move forward together and that’s what we try to do. 21 

 22 

It is a five-year regional plan.  It is an expanded partnership, 23 

where we’ve involved six states in Mexico, two very actively and 24 

the other four not quite as actively right now.  We’ve even 25 

gotten to the point where the Gulf of Mexico Alliance has 26 

purchased and donated vessels, actually Carolina skiffs, with 27 

motors, fully equipped, and some water quality testing equipment 28 

so that the Mexican states can actually begin to assess some of 29 

the things that we take for granted in the U.S. states. 30 

 31 

The folks in Mexico just don’t have the capability or the 32 

equipment to do this kind of work and so we’ve also set up a 33 

Coastal Ecosystem Learning Center in the City of Veracruz, at 34 

the Veracruz Aquarium, which is the educational outreach part of 35 

the Gulf of Mexico Alliance. 36 

 37 

Very importantly, this action plan is a strategy for tangible 38 

results.  The folks on the federal side have made it very clear 39 

to us that the days of -- I have to say now that I actually am a 40 

recovering former scientist and in my day, we would basically 41 

tell the federal government just give us your money and stay the 42 

hell out of our business and those days are just not here 43 

anymore. 44 

 45 

Our Congress wants to be able to see results and touch results 46 

and taste results and so we have to focus on tangible things 47 

that our work produces and we will do that. 48 
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 1 

The priorities in the second action plan are water quality for 2 

healthy beaches and seafood; habitat conservation and 3 

restoration; ecosystem integration and assessment, getting at 4 

the area of ecosystem function and how do you quantify that and 5 

how do you equate that in terms of measurable things, like 6 

dollars; reducing nutrient inputs to coastal ecosystems; coastal 7 

community resilience; and environmental education. 8 

 9 

The challenge that we face, as I alluded to earlier, is that we 10 

have to find a way to sustain the Gulf economy and we have to do 11 

it in a way that sustains and improves ecosystem health and I 12 

think that is not as hard to do as we once thought it was. 13 

 14 

We are faced with mitigating the impacts and adapting to climate 15 

change, including sea level rise, and we have got to mitigate 16 

the harmful effects of coastal water quality, including harmful 17 

algal blooms. 18 

 19 

The Gulf Alliance was the first alliance out of the box in 20 

coastal regions.  Today, and I’ll speak to this a little bit 21 

later, all coastal states in the continental United States have 22 

organized themselves into some sort of an alliance, patterned on 23 

the Gulf of Mexico’s model.  The success that we have found in 24 

the Gulf is that we do have now the right people in the right 25 

places. 26 

 27 

We have a functional management team and we have outstanding 28 

focus teams that just work like the devil and the federal family 29 

is extremely supportive and helpful in what we do.  Congress and 30 

the federal agencies have been supportive financially and our 31 

other partners are there and there’s no reason to kid about 32 

this.   33 

 34 

In the early days, we said all the right things, but we weren’t 35 

really partnering.  We were kind of like a family with five 36 

brothers and sisters.  They all at some level loved each other, 37 

but they sure argued and squabbled a lot and that’s kind of what 38 

we went through in the early years.  That’s what the other 39 

alliances now, George, like the South Atlantic Alliance, are 40 

going through now, but they’ll get there and we’re trying to 41 

help them and I’ll talk a little bit more about that later. 42 

 43 

Some of the hurdles and obstacles, which I really like to call 44 

opportunities, include funding.  It’s pretty good and I’ll give 45 

some more detail in a minute and it’s getting better, but it’s 46 

not where it needs to be, not in the Gulf and not in the other 47 

regions as well. 48 
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 1 

The organization structure of GOMA needs to be more structured.  2 

We need to be able to function independently of our states in a 3 

financial sense.  We need to be able to receive and expend 4 

monies, which we can’t do now.  Funding to the Alliance now 5 

comes to the states, such as our Department of Marine Resources 6 

in Mississippi, and then we parcel those dollars out to the 7 

various focus teams led by all the different states. 8 

 9 

We also provide funds for different state people to travel to 10 

various parts of the region if their state budgets are tight.  11 

We have set aside a pot of money just to do that.  That’s the 12 

same pot of money we were able to do the work in Mexico that I 13 

was talking about. 14 

 15 

We need to continue to build the partnerships and we have not 16 

really engaged our cities and our counties and our business 17 

councils along the Gulf region.  We’re beginning that process 18 

and this point is very important.  This is basically the overall 19 

goal of any of these alliances and that is to align the agency 20 

core missions with goals and objectives of the region and vice 21 

versa. 22 

 23 

We need to know what parts of NOAA are focused on coastal 24 

resiliency and what parts of EPA are focused on water quality 25 

and we need to be having conversations and engagement with those 26 

people, which we do, to then be in a position to try to 27 

influence Congress to place funding in the specific budget lines 28 

within the agencies, federal agencies, that will allow them to 29 

then provide that level of support to the alliances. 30 

 31 

Funding, for the current year and the previous two, there’s been 32 

$5 million in the President’s budget request to Congress 33 

specifically to support the Gulf of Mexico Alliance and in the 34 

2011 budget request from the President, there’s $10 million in 35 

his budget to support all of the regional ocean partnerships and 36 

that’s the Gulf Alliance, the West Coast Governors Agreements, 37 

the North Atlantic Regional Ocean Commission, the Mid-Atlantic 38 

Alliance, and the South Atlantic Alliance and a little bit for 39 

the Great Lakes Alliance. 40 

 41 

NOAA Fisheries has provided specifically $3 million in 2008 for 42 

a series of years to support the Alliance, but you can think 43 

about these things lots of different ways.  Congress provided, 44 

through NOAA, almost $65 million to the State of Mississippi 45 

after Katrina and a larger amount to the State of Louisiana and 46 

smaller amounts to Alabama and to Texas to help rebuild the 47 

states after the storm of Katrina and the other storms of 2005. 48 
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 1 

Many of those dollars focus on the same things that we are 2 

trying to accomplish in the Gulf of Mexico Alliance in the Gulf 3 

region.  The Department of Interior, Minerals Management 4 

Service, has provided a minimum of $20 million in FY2009 through 5 

2012.   6 

 7 

The EPA Gulf of Mexico Program has been providing around $6 8 

million a year for a few years.  We currently have a bill in the 9 

Environment and Public Works of the Senate that officially 10 

authorizes the U.S. EPA Gulf of Mexico Program and authorizes 11 

the EPA to fund that program at $10 million this year and $15 12 

million the next year and $25 million the next year. 13 

 14 

The reason we put these bills in place like that is that right 15 

now, the total budget of the Gulf of Mexico Program is $5 to $6 16 

million and they provide 95 percent of those dollars directly to 17 

the alliances of the Gulf of Mexico Alliance for doing work, as 18 

outlined under the goals and objectives of the Alliance. 19 

 20 

If we can get that number increased, up to $10, $15, or $25 21 

million to the EPA Gulf of Mexico Program, which is a non-22 

regulatory program of the U.S. EPA, centered in Stennis Space 23 

Center in Mississippi, but working throughout the five-state 24 

Gulf region -- If we could get that amount of money increased to 25 

$10, $15, or $25 million, we still think that the Gulf Program 26 

will provide 90-plus percent of whatever monies they receive 27 

back into the Gulf Alliance and into the Gulf region for the 28 

kinds of programs and projects that are outlined in the second 29 

action plan. 30 

 31 

I want to talk a little bit about our reaching out to other 32 

parts of other states that are outside the five Gulf of Mexico 33 

states and that is in a Mississippi River watershed project.  34 

We’ve been working with the States of Iowa and Illinois, 35 

primarily Iowa, for about three years now to actually put 36 

demonstration projects on the ground in those states to reduce 37 

or eliminate the amount of nutrients being carried by water into 38 

the Mississippi River watershed, which ultimately winds up in 39 

the Gulf of Mexico and causes us significant hypoxia problems 40 

throughout the Gulf and not just the dead zone that everybody 41 

hears about, but throughout the Gulf of Mexico. 42 

 43 

We’re having increasingly large incidences of hypoxia and to do 44 

this particular study, Mississippi and Louisiana got together 45 

and sort of tried our own stimulus package.  It came on the 46 

heels of the President’s stimulus package, but we decided we 47 

would give this a shot. 48 
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 1 

What Mississippi and Louisiana did about a year ago was provide 2 

a million dollars each to do nutrient reduction projects, 3 

actually implementation, in-the-ground projects, in the states 4 

of Louisiana and Mississippi.  We hoped that our action would 5 

stimulate the federal government or encourage the federal 6 

government to provide additional funding over what they normally 7 

have been providing to these activities. 8 

 9 

At least in, I think, large part because of what Louisiana and 10 

Mississippi did, the USDA announced a $320 million, four-year 11 

program toward this end.  NOAA has announced a $40 million 12 

program involved in nutrient reduction in the watershed.  EPA 13 

has announced a $15 or so million one-year program, which we 14 

hope will grow in the coming years, focused on these activities.  15 

NASA has promised $15 or so million in services, over flights 16 

and satellite photos and that kind of thing, to the Gulf region. 17 

 18 

We think that we are on the right road.  We’re engaging with the 19 

right people.  The funding is starting to come.  This 20 

Mississippi River nutrient reduction project is huge.  We’re 21 

talking about a thirty-year or so program that’s going to run 22 

into the billions of dollars, but without doing that, we never 23 

will begin the process of reducing nutrients that wind up in the 24 

Gulf of Mexico and cause lots of problems, many of which, or 25 

almost all of which, are directly related to the issues before 26 

you today. 27 

 28 

We have some real opportunities and last year’s June 12 29 

Presidential Memorandum that Roy and some others talked a little 30 

bit about today challenged and directed an interagency task 31 

force to develop a national plan for managing our oceans in the 32 

United States, as well as to get our arms around and come up 33 

with a plan for coastal and marine spatial planning. 34 

 35 

We’re working very closely with that task force.  Much as this 36 

council wanted to be involved in the development of the catch 37 

share program, the regions want to be involved in what the 38 

federal agencies do to develop a national ocean governance plan 39 

or a national plan for coastal and marine spatial planning. 40 

 41 

We don’t want the federal agencies to operate in a vacuum and 42 

create a plan and then present that plan to the states and to 43 

the regions and say here it is and you guys carry it out.  To 44 

their credit, these regions, all five of these regions that I’ve 45 

mentioned around the coastal U.S., have physically met with OMB 46 

and with the Council on Environmental Quality.  Actual living, 47 

breathing people from all of these regions have actually showed 48 
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up in Washington together at the same time to talk to OMB and 1 

CEQ, which to my knowledge has never happened before. 2 

 3 

We laid that out on the table.  We want to be part of this.  We 4 

think we can provide you some input about what’s good for our 5 

region of the country and to their credit, they have been 6 

extremely receptive, to the point that the interim report that’s 7 

been put out by CEQ relative to the National Ocean Management 8 

Plan has a place for the regions to play in developing that plan 9 

and we’re very appreciative of that. 10 

 11 

We are working hard and we need to continue to work to do a 12 

better job of interacting directly with federal agencies.  We do 13 

a pretty good job of that, but we need to do more of that.  We 14 

need to be more active in private sector support.  Everybody 15 

we’ve looked to in the private sector has been very supportive 16 

of it. 17 

 18 

I mentioned Senate Bill 1311 and the Gulf of Mexico Foundation 19 

Board of Directors, which is the CEOs and high-level leadership 20 

of the oil and gas producers in the Gulf region, are supportive 21 

of that and have provided a petition to Congress to support 1311 22 

to fund the Gulf of Mexico program with EPA. 23 

 24 

We are interacting as regions with Congress.  We are beginning 25 

to go certainly not as individual states, but not even as 26 

individual regions.  We are beginning to go as a partnership of 27 

regions, which is the last bullet on this slide, to make 28 

congressional visits to all of the congressional delegations 29 

throughout all of the regions and all of the states and all of 30 

the regions. 31 

 32 

What we’re trying to do is build a national coalition of states 33 

that through these actually six regional partnerships -- If we 34 

can get all of our coastal state delegations talking together 35 

and supporting each other, that would be a very, very powerful 36 

thing. 37 

 38 

What can the federal agencies, some of you that are represented 39 

here today, what can you do?  You can talk to the regions and 40 

you are.  Within NOAA, for example, NOAA has created an entire 41 

group, the Coastal Services Center, and directed Director 42 

Margaret Davidson to do what the Coastal Services Center can do 43 

to assist the Alliance and the same thing in NOAA Fisheries.  44 

Roy and his group in St. Petersburg is very engaged with the 45 

Alliance.  They serve on our issue teams and have done 46 

everything they can to help provide support to the Gulf region. 47 

 48 
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Talk to each other.  Something that the President’s June 12 memo 1 

did that has been more effective than anything that has been 2 

done before is directed the agencies to work together.  There’s 3 

something like twelve or fifteen agencies that have overlap core 4 

mission focuses and they don’t typically talk to each other, but 5 

now they are.  They’re beginning to do that. 6 

 7 

As I mentioned earlier, we really need to align the core 8 

programs with the regional needs, which simply says that regions 9 

and states need to cooperate more and interact more with the 10 

federal agencies. 11 

 12 

Then the goal, overall goal, is to put the regions -- Congress 13 

is not enamored by federal agencies coming to them at budget 14 

time and saying give me more money and I’ll do better work, but 15 

they are receptive to their constituents from their states 16 

coming to them and asking if you could help put these dollars in 17 

this NOAA or EPA or USDA budget line, that would be very 18 

beneficial not only to your state, but also to the states in the 19 

region that surround it. 20 

 21 

I’ve got a couple of slides about something called MSCIP.  MSCIP 22 

is the Mississippi Coastal Improvement Program.  These are the 23 

funds that I mentioned earlier that Congress directed the Mobile 24 

Corps of Engineers to develop a plan to fix Mississippi and the 25 

New Orleans to develop a similar plan to fix Louisiana. 26 

 27 

The important part of the way Mississippi’s plan has worked is 28 

that early on, our governor entered the fray and strongly, in 29 

sailors’ language, requested the generals and the colonels of 30 

the Corps of Engineers to engage the State of Mississippi in 31 

developing that plan and he also said and here, by the way, are 32 

fifteen or so things that I want in that plan. 33 

 34 

The Corps listened to what he said and the State of Mississippi, 35 

usually me, was at the table every step of the way as this plan 36 

was developed.  That plan, Congress also directed that an 37 

interim plan be put together in which projects that were fairly 38 

inexpensive and without controversy could be started early. 39 

 40 

We asked for fifteen interim projects in that interim plan and 41 

Congress funded it at $105 million, at full federal expense, 42 

which is extremely important, and some of those projects are now 43 

complete and many others are underway. 44 

 45 

The comprehensive plan is finished.  The projected cost is $1.2 46 

billion, over and above the $105 million for the interim 47 

projects.  That report has been delivered to Congress and 48 
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Congress has funded the first piece of that report.  $439 1 

million is in the bank at the Mobile Corps of Engineers and 2 

those dollars are to restore our offshore barrier islands, one 3 

of which was cut in half by Katrina.  We’re going to put it back 4 

together.  Those projects are beginning to start now. 5 

 6 

The MSCIP plan focuses on hurricane and storm damage reduction, 7 

reduce saltwater intrusion, reduce shoreline erosion, fish and 8 

wildlife preservation, and water-related resource projects.  All 9 

of those things are right in line with the goals and objectives 10 

of the Gulf of Mexico Alliance and they’re also right in line 11 

with many of the things that you folks have before you on any 12 

given day. 13 

 14 

This plan, when completed, it will restore 1,280 square miles of 15 

aquatic areas in Mississippi alone and twenty-two-million cubic 16 

yards of increased sediment budget.  That will help maintain our 17 

barrier island system.  It will reduce risk to 58,000 parcels of 18 

land, through a buyout and relocation program, and it will 19 

provide for habitat restoration or enhancement in 30,000 acres 20 

of coastal Mississippi and so these are huge projects, projects 21 

that the state would never be able to do by itself, and this is 22 

happening in Louisiana, Texas, and Alabama as well.  I’m just 23 

giving you the Mississippi part. 24 

 25 

As I said, this plan directly links to almost all of our GOMA 26 

objectives and it is an example, and I’ve said this many, many 27 

times to the leadership within the Corps of Engineers, all the 28 

way to Secretary Jo-Ellen Darcy’s office, that the Mississippi 29 

Coastal Improvement Plan is an example of how a federal 30 

organization can and should interact with their customers, the 31 

states, in designing these broad programs.  Hopefully that trend 32 

will continue in the future. 33 

 34 

What’s all this got to do with fisheries?  Well, water quality, 35 

pathogens, algal blooms, mercury monitoring, all of those are 36 

critical to fisheries issues, habitat changes and looking at the 37 

federal standards and restoration of sediment master plan, 38 

increase habitat  and ecosystem services, all of those are 39 

critical to fisheries activities. 40 

 41 

Climate change and sea level rise are absolutely critical to 42 

fisheries and coastal and marine spatial planning and regional 43 

ocean governance, all of those, nutrient criteria and reducing 44 

hypoxia and community resilience, and, of course, education.  45 

All of these are ways that the Gulf of Mexico Alliance can 46 

interact with not only -- The Gulf of Mexico Alliance is 47 

interested in interacting with the Gulf of Mexico Fishery 48 
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Management Council, but the South Atlantic Alliance is going to 1 

want to interact with your group, George, as well. 2 

 3 

There’s plenty of room for interaction.  I’m not here to try to 4 

stick my nose in where it’s not wanted.  That’s not the goal.  I 5 

am here to tell you that we are keenly interested in continuing 6 

to interact with this group.  If there’s some way we can tweak 7 

or modify the relationship that you folks would be interested in 8 

discussing with me, I want to do that and so I’ll stop here and 9 

I’ll just say thank you for your time. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  Does anyone have any 12 

questions? 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  I don’t have a question, but you’ve been tweaking 15 

the council for a long time by just keeping Corky on it. 16 

 17 

DR. WALKER:  I don’t know that I have a lot of control about 18 

that at this point in our careers, but anyway, we feel like what 19 

we’re doing as a region is going to provide tremendous positive 20 

impacts to the fisheries aspect of what goes on in the Gulf of 21 

Mexico.  We just want to be there to help as appropriate. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill, and I would like to comment 24 

that between your schedule and ours we’ve been trying to get 25 

this presentation for quite a while and I think it did a whole 26 

lot to clarify what your organization is doing or what the 27 

Alliance is doing and, again, we greatly appreciate you taking 28 

the time to come over and make the presentation.   29 

 30 

With that, we’re about to move into public testimony and we have 31 

a very large number of cards.  A lot of people want to testify 32 

and I want to make a few comments before we start.  First of 33 

all, to council members, I would urge you to kind of restrain 34 

your questions and make sure you’re really trying to ask 35 

something of the speaker, rather than to use the occasion to 36 

promote some particular idea you have.  We’ll have plenty of 37 

time later on to do that. 38 

 39 

To the speakers, you’re going to get three minutes and I urge 40 

you to pay attention to the light bulbs.  Orange means you have 41 

a minute left and when it goes red, I’m going to have to cut you 42 

off, in order to make sure everyone gets a chance to talk.  We 43 

have a lot of people that have come from out of town and I want 44 

to have everybody to have an opportunity to talk. 45 

 46 

Finally, the way the agenda is written, we are going to take 47 

testimony on exempted fishing permits and the red snapper TAC 48 
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and there are quite a few, especially, obviously, on the red 1 

snapper TAC.  If you’re scheduled to speak on something else, it 2 

may be a while before we get to you.  I know a lot of you are 3 

trying to catch planes and leave, but we do have to follow the 4 

agenda.  I’ve taken enough of the time and I’m going to call the 5 

name of the first speaker and the second speaker, so the second 6 

speaker will be ready to go. 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s been brought to my attention 9 

that some people in the audience think that when we’ve got our 10 

laptops up here that we’re emailing our friends and relatives 11 

and things and believe me, when they’re up here, we’re paying 12 

attention and we’re taking notes and so please don’t get 13 

discouraged if it appears we are distracted. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The first speaker who will be speaking on 16 

exempted fishing permits is Chad Hansen, who will be followed by 17 

Dennis O’Hern. 18 

 19 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 20 

EXEMPTED FISHING PERMITS 21 

 22 

MR. CHAD HANSEN:  Good afternoon.  My name is Chad Hansen and 23 

I’m a policy analyst for the Pew Environment Group’s Ending 24 

Overfishing Campaign in the Southeast.  Please allow me to 25 

address the application for the exempted fishing permit to begin 26 

to investigate the performance of a new fish trap design called 27 

a fish exclusive fishing device. 28 

 29 

To assess the efficacy of any new gear and design, rigorous 30 

scientific research would be required.  We firmly believe in 31 

pursuing new scientific information in order to better inform 32 

fisheries management and commend the effort to develop 33 

innovations such as gear modifications to address bycatch 34 

issues. 35 

 36 

In general, we believe this type of proactive management or 37 

response to management should be encouraged.  However, any 38 

pursuit of data to support the use of any new gear design should 39 

be done systematically and objectively through independent 40 

scientific channels. 41 

 42 

In addition, issues related to enforcement, compliance, 43 

incidental catch, ghost fishing, habitat damage would ultimately 44 

need to be thoroughly addressed and overcome in the long run.  45 

The EFP application before the council today does not provide 46 

sufficient information regarding how the data would be collected 47 

to be evaluated and it is unclear whether the design of this 48 
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study as proposed would adequately address the suite of other 1 

issues associated with this type of gear. 2 

 3 

Thus, we believe it is inappropriate at this time to issue this 4 

EFP in the format that it’s in.  Thank you for the opportunity 5 

to comment on this issue and we work forward to working with you 6 

and the council for sustainable fish populations in the Gulf of 7 

Mexico. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Chad.  Any questions for Chad?  The 10 

next speaker is Dennis O’Hern, followed by Pam Anderson. 11 

 12 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY ON FINAL REGULATORY AMENDMENT FOR RED SNAPPER 13 

TOTAL ALLOWABLE CATCH 14 

 15 

MR. DENNIS O’HERN:  Chairman Shipp, I believe that was a 16 

mistake.  I had put in for the ACL, but I do support, on that 17 

exempted fishing permit, at least looking at the science behind 18 

that new trap.  There were a lot of complaints and I think a 19 

little bit of study needs to be done before you throw the idea 20 

out completely.  Thank you. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Dennis, your card had red snapper TAC on it. 23 

 24 

MR. O’HERN:  I thought that was for the ACL and I’m sorry.  I’ll 25 

wait for Open Comment for my next comment. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The next speaker is Pam Anderson, followed by 28 

Ken Anderson.  I will accept a donation of one person’s time to 29 

the speaker.  After you then, Pam, will be Paul Redman. 30 

 31 

MS. PAM ANDERSON:  Dr. Crabtree, Dr. Shipp, and council members, 32 

Dr. Crabtree asked me about three years ago why I thought I knew 33 

more about the data than all your scientists with all their 34 

degrees, and I don’t, but I do know that much of the data being 35 

collected is incorrect and inadequate for the purposes for which 36 

it’s being used. 37 

 38 

Therefore, businesses and jobs are being lost and we need to 39 

change that very quickly.  It just doesn’t have to be this way.  40 

We are seeing progress in the data collection programs being 41 

developed, but it’s taking way too long for businesses to 42 

survive the wait. 43 

 44 

We see progress in the fact that fishery managers are beginning 45 

to listen more to those in the industry and we need more of 46 

that.  There is a lot of good, practical information that can be 47 

used when the stakeholders are encouraged to participate. 48 



25 

 

 1 

The ABC for red snapper was set almost a third higher for 2010 2 

by the SSC than for 2009.  That was with us rebuilding the 3 

fishery and now no longer undergoing overfishing and talk is 4 

that 2010 will be an even shorter season. 5 

 6 

The economy is not recovering as quickly as predicted and so the 7 

tourism business will be down and so will fishing pressure.  8 

There is still a lot of uncertainty in the data and so the 9 

scientists assume in favor of the fish and add a substantial 10 

cushion to prevent overfishing, at every level from MRFSS up. 11 

 12 

In the Magnuson National Standard 8, it says you are to consider 13 

the social and economic impacts of the individuals and their 14 

communities as you develop these regulations.  We are not being 15 

asked for this economic data and therefore, you don’t have it.  16 

It is important for you to realize that this does not just 17 

affect the fishermen. 18 

 19 

According to the RFA, saltwater recreational fishing is a $5.3 20 

billion industry in Florida and to quote the FWC, a report 21 

showed that spending related to recreational boating trips 22 

supports 97,000 jobs in Florida, with recreational boater 23 

expenditures totally $8.5 billion.  This figure represents about 24 

50 percent of the total jobs and spending associated with 25 

Florida’s diverse marine industry, end quote. 26 

 27 

This industry survival is important to our state and to our 28 

nation.  We have requested funding for an expedited benchmark 29 

assessment to be completed preferably by 2012 from our 30 

legislators.   31 

 32 

We have requested funding be provided for the cooperative 33 

research program that has been adequately funded in order for 34 

the Science Center to use out-of-work for-hire operators and 35 

their crews to assist in the fishery independent data collection 36 

process. 37 

 38 

We are working with legislators to get flexibility in the law, 39 

which is what you have said it will take to ease the burden of 40 

overregulation.  In the meantime, President Obama has just said 41 

that he will ask his government agencies to work every way 42 

possible to maintain or create jobs and maintain or create small 43 

businesses.  This you can do. 44 

 45 

You have enough flexibility factored into every facet of the 46 

scientific process so you will not exceed the mandates of the 47 

Magnuson.  Will it slow down the rebuilding process?  Maybe, but 48 



26 

 

maybe not.  It will certainly make a difference in a lot of 1 

families’ wellbeing. 2 

 3 

We are asking the state legislators and the Florida Fish and 4 

Wildlife Agency to implement a stamp on each of the saltwater 5 

licenses there for either all reef fish or possibly individual 6 

species, such as red snapper, gag grouper, amberjack.   7 

 8 

Individual stamps will track the actual users of each fishery 9 

and not only will they know how many are actually targeting the 10 

different species, but they can call anglers for their surveys 11 

instead of a list of anonymous people from the phone book.  If 12 

scientists need further information, that can be added on as the 13 

MRIP program is implemented and the for-hire anglers, of course, 14 

will be working with the electronic logbooks. 15 

 16 

In order for the recreational fishing industry to survive, we 17 

need a longer season, at least four busy months.  In order to be 18 

profitable, we need six months.  Now is the time to do the right 19 

thing for our fishery, for the southeast U.S., and give these 20 

jobs and businesses back to the people who have spent their 21 

lives building them and spent the last few years helping rebuild 22 

their fishery, our fishery. 23 

 24 

In closing, the Panama City Rotary Club has asked me to present 25 

a coin to Dr. Crabtree and I’ll bring it back to you in a 26 

moment, but it is a reminder of their motto.  It says “Service 27 

above Self, Faith to Believe, Courage to Act”, one we all need 28 

to live by and I pray that this council will do just that when 29 

making decisions that could be life changing for many people. 30 

 31 

They asked me to state their four-way test of the things they 32 

think say or do.  Is it the truth?  Is it fair for all 33 

concerned?  Will it build goodwill and better friendships?  Will 34 

it be beneficial to all concerned?  All of us in this room need 35 

to consider these things as we work together to preserve our 36 

livelihoods and our natural resources.  Thank you. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Pam.  Anyone have any questions for 39 

Pam?  Thanks again, Pam, for coming.  Paul Redman, to be 40 

followed by Darral Keyes. 41 

 42 

MR. PAUL REDMAN:  Good afternoon.  I’m Paul Redman and I’m a 43 

commercial fisherman and I would like to ask this council to 44 

take into consideration the bycatch that we’re killing because 45 

of your regulations.   46 

 47 

Dead fish do not reproduce and they do not come back.  There’s 48 
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no reincarnation for these dead fish.  You need to give us some 1 

kind of a bycatch so that we supplement our income to match up 2 

with these regulations.   3 

 4 

There’s no point in me watching thousands of dollars float away 5 

from the back on my boat for no reason.  They’re not coming back 6 

and that’s basically what I wanted to ask you people to please 7 

consider, that there’s got to be something done with this 8 

bycatch that’s just thousands of dollars wasted. 9 

 10 

MR. SAPP:  To make it clear, what’s the target species and 11 

what’s the bycatch you’re talking about? 12 

 13 

MR. REDMAN:  I’m speaking of the vermilion snapper.  We’re 14 

catching these and we’re having to fish in 300 to 350 feet of 15 

water to get away from snapper and we’re still catch snapper.  16 

They’re coming up and they’re dead.  Their eyes are blown out 17 

and you can give them mouth-to-mouth or whatever you want to do, 18 

but they’re not coming back.  Thirty-four-inch amberjack, 19 

they’re dead and they’re not coming back. 20 

 21 

MR. SAPP:  The dead fish that are being killed, you’re talking 22 

about red snapper? 23 

 24 

MR. REDMAN:  I’m talking about red snapper and I’m talking about 25 

grouper and I’m talking about amberjack.  Your size limits on 26 

deepwater fish are ridiculous.  They’re not going to 27 

reincarnate.  There’s something -- Somewhere along the line, 28 

you’ve got to either give us a depth that we can fish in or a 29 

quota per boat, but the species and the size limits are not 30 

doing anything for anybody.  All they’re doing is killing fish 31 

for nothing.  Thank you. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Redman.  The next speaker is 34 

Darral Keys and he’ll be followed by Larry Lemieux. 35 

 36 

MR. DARRAL KEYS:  The only thing I would like to say is -- I 37 

really don’t know how to say it, but I’ll try.  Back when I 38 

started in this business about 1983, fishing was pretty sorry.  39 

Over the years, it’s come back.  Some management has helped, but 40 

I think you guys are carrying this stuff just a little bit too 41 

far. 42 

 43 

People do try to need to make a living and just like what the 44 

President said, you’re putting people out of work and you need 45 

to put them to work and I think a lot of people in here fish for 46 

a living and so you all need to think about the amount of fish 47 

that are out there, like a lot of you have heard about, 48 
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especially with the red snapper. 1 

 2 

You just about can’t catch another species because of it.  I 3 

think that the restrictions need to be lifted considerably.  4 

There’s nothing wrong with you taking a recreational fisherman 5 

and give him six months to try to produce and let him provide 6 

for his family.  You’re talking about half a year. 7 

 8 

Another thing I want to point out too is I’m no marine 9 

biologist, but I’m pretty sure snapper spawn more than one time 10 

a year.  Is that not correct?  Anybody around here know that 11 

question?  They do, do they not?  Why are we so detrimental to 12 

you cutting it down to when they’re spawning more than say your 13 

grouper or your amberjack and there are so many of them out 14 

there now that -- You need to let us catch them.  Thank you. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  The next speaker is Larry Lemieux 17 

and I would also ask the speakers to identify themselves and if 18 

they are representing an organization or just themselves.  Go 19 

ahead, Larry. 20 

 21 

MR. LARRY LEMIEUX:  I’m a recreational charter fisherman from 22 

Panama City and I’ve just got three short things.  I’m against 23 

the sector separation.  We’re already down to a seventy-two-day 24 

season last year.  Seventy-two days, gentlemen and ladies, is 25 

not long enough to make a living.  Like Mr. Keys said before me, 26 

we need at least, at bare minimum, four months and six to turn a 27 

profit. 28 

 29 

The second thing is you know the catch shares, you’ve got a 30 

gentleman sitting at home on the couch selling snapper and he’s 31 

not even fishing for them.  He’s sitting at home not even 32 

fishing for the fish and he’s turning on a natural resource a 33 

profit for something he’s not even catching. 34 

 35 

Lastly, we just need longer than seventy-two days.  I’ve heard 36 

rumors this year we’re only going to get fifty to sixty days to 37 

make a living and what if I told you that you could only make 38 

your living in fifty or sixty days?  There’s no way.   39 

 40 

There’s no way you can make a living with the way fuel and taxes 41 

and licenses and slip rent and insurance -- There’s no way you 42 

can make a living in fifty or sixty days.  You can’t hardly make 43 

it in six months, much less fifty or sixty days.   44 

 45 

I just really wish you all would take into consideration there’s 46 

a lot of people you all are going to take and put out of 47 

business.  We’ve got enough unemployment now and you’re going to 48 
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just keep adding to the problem.  I just wish you all would 1 

reconsider and maybe take a look at some of that data, because 2 

it’s only getting worse by the minute.  Thank you. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions?  James Richardson, followed by 5 

David Krebs. 6 

 7 

MR. JAMES RICHARDSON:  My name is James Richardson and I’ll 8 

basically reiterate everything that everybody else has said.  9 

I’m against the segregation of the snapper.  We need no catch 10 

shares and the longest snapper season we could possibly get to 11 

make a living.  Thanks. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  David Krebs, followed by Steve 14 

Cunningham.  15 

 16 

MR. DAVID KREBS:  Good afternoon, council.  I’m David Krebs, 17 

owner of Ariel Seafoods in Destin, Florida, a red snapper IFQ 18 

holder and a grouper and tilefish holder.  I’m also the 2010 19 

President of the Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish Shareholder’s 20 

Alliance.  I thank Donnie Waters for the job he did last year.  21 

I would like to thank Mr. Walker.  I kind of think we need to 22 

shorten our name to the Gulf of Mexico Alliance and maybe get a 23 

little better funding here. 24 

 25 

I would like to comment on the recreational AP that we had 26 

earlier.  I think Corky said earlier in committee that it 27 

sounded like we really had a good AP and Vernon said they all 28 

start that way.  I want to say that this one not only started 29 

that way, but it’s going to stay that way.  You guys have done a 30 

wonderful job in selecting participants. 31 

 32 

When we get an email from the commercial sector from a 33 

recreational fisherman in Texas as a private angler that thanked 34 

us for working together to find a solution, that’s an awesome 35 

step forward and we look for that to continue on. 36 

 37 

I would like to thank Bonnie for her support in helping the 38 

Shareholder’s Alliance look at a way for the Shareholder’s 39 

Alliance to participate in future stock assessments.  We’re 40 

going to be working with her on that and we hope that we’re 41 

going to get some better data to the council. 42 

 43 

Thank you to the council for the Kingfish Advisory Panel and 44 

thank you for the selection on that.  I think that’s going to be 45 

a good thing for the Gulf of Mexico.  I realize that the South 46 

Atlantic has some issues with it and that brings me to the catch 47 

share task force. 48 
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 1 

I think that as defined the task force has done a wonderful job 2 

of trying to get it out to the fishermen that this is their 3 

system.  A catch share is designed by the fishermen for the 4 

fishermen.  Yes, the council gives guidance, but at the end of 5 

the day, it is the fishermen that design these programs, based 6 

upon their economic needs and their fishing needs.  Who better 7 

but them to know that? 8 

 9 

There’s been so much misunderstanding and misrepresentation 10 

amongst people about what a catch share does for specific 11 

industries and so I appreciate the fact that we’re moving 12 

forward with that and that that’s defined in a much better 13 

light. 14 

 15 

My last comment, and T.J. Tate is going to cover this one as 16 

well, but we’ve been talking about paybacks in the red snapper 17 

system.  A lot of people don’t realize that the commercial 18 

fishermen do pay back their red snapper.  19 

 20 

At the end of a -- In December, on our last trip of the year, if 21 

you’ve got 2,000 pounds or 1,500 pounds or whatever you have 22 

left in your quota, you’re allowed by the government to catch 10 23 

percent over that.  That comes off your January allotment.  Your 24 

allocation, when it comes out in January, that 200 pounds or 150 25 

pounds is automatically deducted away from you. 26 

 27 

The red snapper commercial industry is doing their part in any 28 

individual overages and you guys have already seen the benefits 29 

of the overall industry that we’re staying under our targeted 30 

TAC and we would like to get another pat on the back for all the 31 

struggles that we’ve taken to help rebuild this fishery.  Thank 32 

you. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.  Any questions?  Steve 35 

Cunningham, followed by Corey Matherne. 36 

 37 

MR. STEVE CUNNINGHAM:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and ladies 38 

and gentlemen of the council.  Thanks again for this 39 

opportunity.  2009 was good news and bad news for the red 40 

snapper fishery and red snapper fishermen. 41 

 42 

It’s good we’re no longer undergoing overfishing and it’s bad 43 

that we overfished our recreational limit by approximately 50 44 

percent for the second year in a row.  Obviously we need better 45 

harvest information and better accountability measures. 46 

 47 

We still need to rebuild this resource or to prove that it is 48 
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already rebuilt.  The best plan I’ve seen so far to address 1 

these issues is the sector separation with the electronic 2 

logbooks and possibly vessel monitoring systems for the charter 3 

for-hire sector. 4 

 5 

Marine manufacturer association statistics indicates that power 6 

boats over twenty-six feet long that are on the water, that are 7 

registered, have increased by approximately 50 percent in the 8 

nine years from 1996 to 2005.  Obviously only a few of those are 9 

platforms for catching red snapper, but I think we can draw the 10 

parallel there. 11 

 12 

Technology as well as effort by the recreational sector has 13 

advanced in leaps and bounds.  I think this partially accounts 14 

at least for the observation that an increase in average size 15 

that went a long way to put us over our allotment these past two 16 

years. 17 

 18 

The recreational sector, including charter for-hire, is simply 19 

taking advantage of better technology and boats and motors and 20 

electronics to go deeper and catch bigger fish, fish that are 21 

harder to replace and fish that when you do catch them have more 22 

discard mortality. 23 

 24 

The people that are grossly underrepresented are the clients or 25 

the recreational fishermen.  I support separation of the 26 

recreational sector, along the lines of the SOS plan.  There are 27 

a lot of details to be worked out.   28 

 29 

This meeting has been very informative with regards to catch 30 

shares.  Catch shares need to be carefully evaluated.  They 31 

scare a lot of people off from sector separation, but I think 32 

that’s the way to go, sector separation that is.  Catch shares, 33 

maybe yes and maybe no.  Thank you very much for your time and I 34 

appreciate it.  Any questions? 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Cunningham.  Any questions? 37 

 38 

MS. MORRIS:  Are you a charterboat captain? 39 

 40 

MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes, I am a charterboat operator out of 41 

Galveston, Texas. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The next speaker is Corey Matherne, followed by 44 

Donnie Waters.  Again, I would remind you to, if you would, tell 45 

us who you represent or what sector you represent. 46 

 47 

MR. COREY MATHERNE:  I’m Corey Matherne and I’m a fulltime LSU 48 
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student.  I actually fish and I’m a deckhand for Real Screamers 1 

Charter Service out of Grand Isle, Louisiana.  As maybe a few of 2 

you know, we don’t have no Florida, no pretty white beaches and 3 

no pretty blue-green water. 4 

 5 

We have fish.  That’s what people come down here to do and if 6 

the snapper season -- That’s what I wanted to talk about, was if 7 

the snapper season is moved up, nobody -- Kids aren’t going to 8 

be out of school and so kids won’t be able to experience this, 9 

going and catching their limits of snapper or whatever is going 10 

on. 11 

 12 

It’s just one of those deals that if it’s moved up and it’s not 13 

during the summertime -- If it would be full June and July, then 14 

parents could bring their kids and get kids introduced to the 15 

fishing situation, offshore fishing, and in Grand Isle, that’s 16 

all we have is the fishing, I guess, tourism market. 17 

 18 

Being that I’m an LSU student -- I’m a full-time LSU student and 19 

when I come home during the summer, that’s where my money that I 20 

pay for school comes from, is the money that I make deck handing 21 

during the summer.  If the snapper season is moved to April, 22 

then I don’t have as much of an opportunity to make my money, 23 

because that’s one of our guaranteed.  We could get our limit of 24 

snapper to have something for these people to go home with. 25 

 26 

If we don’t catch these fish, those guaranteed max of twelve 27 

fish, then we don’t have nothing to go home with.  For the 28 

business aspect and for me, to pay for my education, as a first-29 

hand account, that’s how I get my money.  I appreciate you all 30 

and thank you all. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions?  Donnie Waters, followed by T.J. 33 

Tate. 34 

 35 

MR. DONALD WATERS:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.  My 36 

name is Donald Waters, owner and operator of the Fishing Vessel 37 

Hustler.  I appreciate you all electing me to the King Mackerel 38 

IFQ AP.  Thank you.  I’ll be greatly honored to serve you on 39 

this panel. 40 

 41 

Today, I guess everything is going to be short and sweet on my 42 

testimony.  I would like to see the TAC increase put in place 43 

and not set-asides and no nothing.  Just put it up there and 44 

leave our split alone right now.   45 

 46 

If you all have got any problems or anything you want to fight 47 

over or do, let’s let it happen later on.  Let’s just get it in 48 
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place and put it out there for the fishermen and let us go to 1 

work and let’s not have any fussing or fighting.  Let’s just 2 

stick to business and split our TAC like it’s supposed to be 3 

split and take care of any business later on. 4 

 5 

Another thing that I heard today that we had testified on a year 6 

or so ago was a king mackerel control date and we asked for 2008 7 

and it’s been brought to my attention that that hasn’t been put 8 

in place yet.   9 

 10 

I would like to see the 2008 control date for king mackerel be 11 

put in place, along with the control date that we put in for the 12 

rest of the reef fish species, if that’s possible.  If not, put 13 

that date in as early as possible.  If it has to be a 2009, just 14 

don’t let it stretch out any longer.  The AP will do their job 15 

and we’ll bring you back a real sensible plan and try to make it 16 

as easy as possible. 17 

 18 

The redfish issue, we’ve got a commercial fleet and if there’s 19 

any way we can help you collect data to bring this research 20 

forward or any way we can help, I would like to help 21 

investigate.  Feel free to ask the commercial fishers.  We will 22 

do any part any way that we can to help collect data to promote 23 

this red drum.   24 

 25 

I would love to see some of these fish harvested.  There’s no 26 

reason whatsoever to let these fish float away dead.  I’m not 27 

looking for any big harvest or anything like that, but I would 28 

like to do some research and see what we’ve got out there.  29 

There’s no reason to waste a resource. 30 

 31 

I also, and this is a personal opinion, would like to see 32 

research on the fish traps.  I’m not asking to open up fish 33 

traps.  I don’t know enough about them.  I know that there was a 34 

time there that they was bad, but if they’ve got a whole new 35 

animal and it works right, there’s no reason not to research it.  36 

I’m not asking to open it up in the blind, but just research it.  37 

Thank you for letting me testify here amongst you today and I’ll 38 

be happy to answer any questions. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions for Donnie?  As usual, Donnie, 41 

thanks for coming.  The next speaker is T.J. Tate, followed by 42 

Tom Haugen. 43 

 44 

MR. KREBS:  Mr. Chairman, if it’s all right, T.J. has become ill 45 

and if I can read her statement on behalf of the Shareholder’s 46 

Alliance. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, please do. 1 

 2 

MR. KREBS:  Thank you, again, council, for your time today.  3 

First and foremost, the Alliance believes in stewardship of our 4 

resources.  However, we must call to question the payback system 5 

within the red snapper industry.  When commercial fishermen 6 

exceed their IFQ allocations on the last trip of the year by the 7 

allowable 10 percent, this allocation is repaid at the beginning 8 

of the following year.  We expect all sectors to be accountable 9 

for overages in this same manner. 10 

 11 

The Alliance has reviewed the information provided regarding 12 

set-asides.  We do not support set-asides unless they are sector 13 

specific.  An example would be if the recreational sector wishes 14 

to set aside all or part of their share of a TAC increase for 15 

research, then they should be allowed to and the same with the 16 

commercial sector. 17 

 18 

The Alliance supports the opening of redfish in the EEZ and 19 

stands prepared to assist in data collection and implementation 20 

of a controlled program.  We request a December 2008 control 21 

date for king mackerel to establish an IFQ fishery in the Gulf.  22 

We support a pilot study for fish traps as presented by Tom 23 

Haugen in a controlled manner.  If it’s a better animal, the 24 

Alliance would like to see what it can do. 25 

 26 

We support sector separation in the recreational fishery.  All 27 

fishermen need to become accountable and we believe the for-hire 28 

sector is already in place and has tools to do that. 29 

 30 

Lastly, we support the grouper IFQ system and believe that 31 

before additional adjustments are made on presumptions that the 32 

system may have flaws that the IFQ system must be allowed a fair 33 

and reasonable amount of time to determine strengths and 34 

weaknesses.  That concludes her remarks. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.  We won’t have questions for 37 

you.  Tom Haugen, followed by Wayne Werner. 38 

 39 

MR. TOM HAUGEN:  My name is Tom Haugen and I’m the one that has 40 

the application for the exempted fishing permit.  I guess 41 

everybody has seen it.  I’ve had it sitting out in the hallway 42 

for a couple of days here and it’s created quite a stir around 43 

here. 44 

 45 

Basically, what I want to say is that a lot of people in the 46 

room don’t know that I’ve patented this design about a year ago.  47 

Not a year ago, but I came up with the idea a year ago.  The 48 
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reason I came up with the idea was I could see a problem with 1 

gag grouper bycatch.  There’s a problem with turtle bycatch, 2 

which we spent all of last summer dealing with.  I went to all 3 

the meetings and we had huge problems with turtle bycatch. 4 

 5 

All those turtle bycatch issues, by the way, are hook related.  6 

We had a problem with bycatch and the bycatch entered into the 7 

stock assessments and basically, I came up with a new type of 8 

fishing gear that addresses all these problems that we have in 9 

these fisheries and I entered it in the World Wildlife Fund’s 10 

Smart Gear Competition last year. 11 

 12 

That same device was shipped all the way to California to the 13 

World Wildlife Fund and shipped all the way to Washington, D.C., 14 

where it went through the preliminary contest and it easily made 15 

it through the preliminaries to Tanzania, Africa, to a three-day 16 

workshop. 17 

 18 

There were thirteen judges from seven countries that judged the 19 

contest and the contest was for new, innovative ideas in bycatch 20 

reduction in fishing gears.  My entry made it to the last day of 21 

the workshop, to the final round of ten ideas, and I had 22 

absolutely no data with it. 23 

 24 

I’ve got this exempted fishing permit application today because 25 

I would like to collect some data.  I’ve worked hard to come up 26 

with some new ideas and I hope everybody out here that has new 27 

ideas would not be afraid to come forth and that’s how we’re 28 

going to solve our problems in the Gulf, is with people closest 29 

to the industry. 30 

 31 

Just like the shrimpers did when they had problems, we have to 32 

come up with ways to deal with our bycatch issues and you’re 33 

going to find your answers with the people in the industry.  34 

I’ve been working with the Southeast Fisheries Science Center 35 

and that’s one thing that I want to make clear. 36 

 37 

I know I’m running out of time here, but there’s been a lot of 38 

concern about the science and stuff.  Basically, all I’m asking 39 

for is an exempted gear permit.  It’s not so much a fishing 40 

permit like a lot of permits, where they have to harvest other 41 

sizes of fish. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Tom, you have to wind it up, please. 44 

 45 

MR. HAUGEN:  I just want to make it clear that I’m working with 46 

the Southeast Fisheries Science Center and they’re helping me 47 

with the design samples and with the data sheets and they’re 48 
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handling the data. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tom.  We’ve got to -- 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Tom.  Thank you for coming and 5 

testifying.  I have one quick question.  Do you have any 6 

information -- I know you said that traps don’t catch turtles, 7 

but what about with the lines or ropes or whatever that’s used 8 

to put the traps down and pick them up?  Is there anything 9 

associated with the trap that a turtle could get entangled in? 10 

 11 

MR. HAUGEN:  No, we use weights on our buoys that go down and so 12 

the line comes down.  It would be no different than the anchor 13 

line on a boat.  There’s been a lot of studies done on fish 14 

traps in the 1990s and bycatch and there have been no recorded 15 

incidences of turtles being a problem.  Any other questions? 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tom.  Let me remind the speakers 18 

that this first section is really devoted to exempted permits, 19 

which is fine that Tom just gave, but the rest of it is supposed 20 

to be for the red snapper TAC and a lot of times, what you put 21 

on the card it’s difficult for us to interpret.  If you put reef 22 

fish, we don’t know whether you want to talk about the TAC or 23 

not. 24 

 25 

What I’m asking is if I call you up before we go to open 26 

testimony if you do not intend to speak on the red snapper TAC, 27 

just tell me and I’ll move your card down to where it is 28 

supposed to be.  The next speaker is Wayne Werner, followed by 29 

Mike Nugent. 30 

 31 

MR. WAYNE WERNER:  My name is Wayne Werner, owner and operator 32 

of the Fishing Vessel Sea Quest and I’m a member of the Reef 33 

Fish Shareholder’s Alliance.  I would just like to say that 34 

raising the TAC would be a good thing and I support all of the 35 

views that the Shareholder’s Alliance goes for.   36 

 37 

Personally, I think that all of them are very good ideas and I 38 

would just like to reiterate everything that they said.  We’re 39 

trying our best to do everything we can to protect the fish.  40 

This little raise in the TAC, considering the fish that were 41 

wasted five years ago, is nothing.  Thank you. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Wayne.  Any questions for Wayne 44 

Werner?  Mike Nugent, followed by Ben Fairey. 45 

 46 

MR. MIKE NUGENT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Mike 47 

Nugent and I’m a charterboat owner/operator from Aransas Pass, 48 
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Texas, representing the membership of the Port Aransas Boatmen.  1 

On the red snapper TAC, we support the SSC recommendation to 2 

move it to 6.94 million pounds and another thing I just wanted 3 

to mention, because I don’t know, is from the discussion 4 

yesterday and then yesterday evening at the question and answer, 5 

is as our fish get larger and the minimum size gets bigger and 6 

as the stock expands, I just wondered if there was any fisheries 7 

that use head counts rather than pounds to determine quotas and 8 

stuff like that.   9 

 10 

It was just something I wanted to bring up and see, because it’s 11 

not a stock depletion thing so much as it’s a matter of the fish 12 

getting larger and larger.  Then another thing I wanted to 13 

mention under the red snapper is I wanted to confirm what was 14 

mentioned in the AP report yesterday that was given to you. 15 

 16 

As a member of the AP, we would really like for you to consider 17 

having us come together after the SSC and that way, we’ll have 18 

their recommendations and their information and if we could have 19 

one member stay behind to present to us and answer questions, I 20 

think we would get more done, instead of waiting and seeing what 21 

time they were going to finish up their thing.  Thank you very 22 

much. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike.  Any questions for Mr. Nugent?  25 

Ben Fairey, followed by Bob Zales. 26 

 27 

MR. BEN FAIREY:  My name is Ben Fairey and I’m the President of 28 

the Orange Beach Fishing Association.  I would like to thank the 29 

council for this opportunity to address you all.  I support the 30 

raising of the TAC to 6.9 million pounds and I would also like 31 

to ask the council to consider the option of getting away from 32 

pounds and we count fish in numbers.  That’s all I have to say. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ben.  Any questions for Mr. Fairey?  35 

Bob Zales, followed by Chris Dorsett. 36 

 37 

MR. BOB ZALES, II:  Bob Zales, II, President of the Panama City 38 

Boatmen Association.  We also support the SSC recommendation for 39 

the increase in TAC.  We would also like to see us go back to a 40 

stabilized season like we had between 2000 and 2006.  There’s 41 

been some discussion here about that and I’m still not sure if 42 

what we did between 2000 and 2006 was what we were supposed to 43 

do or if it just happened, but we would like to see that 44 

stability again. 45 

 46 

In red snapper and all fisheries, we have issues with data and 47 

you’ve heard me and others come up here and talk about 48 
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electronic logbooks and pilot programs and an increase in data.  1 

Yesterday, I received the Fiscal Year 2011 budget projections 2 

for NOAA. 3 

 4 

On page 186 in the NOAA budget estimates for Fiscal Year 2011, 5 

it says Terminations for 2011.  Before I say this, I want to be 6 

sure, because everybody has heard this and I know it’s not just 7 

me, but how the Fisheries Service is really trying hard to get 8 

us better data. 9 

 10 

The third-to-the-last item on this, for termination in Fiscal 11 

Year 2011, Gulf of Mexico recreational fishery electronic 12 

logbook pilot, $50,000.  Now, I’m new to this and I’m a dumbass 13 

fisherman.  I don’t know a whole lot about the NMFS budget and 14 

the budget process, but I searched how I know how to search 15 

these things for other budget items for MRIP and the written 16 

name for the acronym and MRFSS and the written name for MRFSS 17 

and the other thing that showed up was the termination for a 18 

pilot logbook electronic program for the recreational fishery. 19 

 20 

That bothers me.  I assume that’s going to bother a lot of 21 

people in this room.  Harlon, you’ve been a big proponent and so 22 

I’m looking for an answer here.  I sent Andy Winer, the General 23 

Affairs Director of NOAA, an email this morning, asking for an 24 

explanation.  I’ve yet to get it.  Maybe you all can get that, 25 

but unless you all have got some questions, I’m done for red 26 

snapper. 27 

 28 

MR. SAPP:  Just real quick, what’s that page number again, Bob? 29 

 30 

MR. ZALES:  186.  I can send you the link to the report. 31 

 32 

MR. SAPP:  I’ve got the proposed budget in front of me, but I 33 

just want to see it. 34 

 35 

MR. SIMPSON:  Bob, you know that’s the President’s budget and 36 

not necessarily the budget that will be enacted.  That’s just 37 

his recommendation and Congress makes the decision finally. 38 

 39 

MR. ZALES:  Larry, I’m learning about the process and I 40 

understand that, but the fact that it’s in there when for the 41 

past -- I know for the past two to three years, I know for me 42 

personally, and you know this better than anybody in this room, 43 

but I’ve been working on data for over twenty years and we’ve 44 

struggled hard. 45 

 46 

We’ve worked with our legislators and we do all this and I’ve 47 

yet to send this to Senator Nelson and Senator Lemieux, but I’m 48 
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going to be doing that tonight and I just want an answer on 1 

this.  I want to know where we are.   2 

 3 

We’re either going to do stuff that says this is what we want to 4 

do and then you have the action behind it to do it, but don’t 5 

tell me you’re going to do something and then take the money 6 

away.  We’re struggling and we need the data.  You know it 7 

better than anybody.  Your people do a wonderful job in trying 8 

to help us.  That’s all we’re after. 9 

 10 

MR. PEARCE:  I just want to thank Bob for bringing this to our 11 

attention.  I’ll be in Washington on Tuesday and I’m going to 12 

look it up for you.   13 

 14 

MR. ZALES:  They have a budget meeting and I guess you may be 15 

going to that on Tuesday.  I’ve got a Coast Guard inspection 16 

that day and I don’t know if I’ll be on the call, but I’m going 17 

to try to be, because I clearly want an answer to this and I 18 

want to see where it is. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bob.  Anybody else?  Chris Dorsett, 21 

followed by Russ Nelson. 22 

 23 

MR. CHRIS DORSETT:  Mr. Chairman and council members, my name is 24 

Chris Dorsett, representing the Ocean Conservancy.  I want to 25 

commend this council for the rebuilding that is taking place in 26 

the red snapper fishery.   27 

 28 

As many of you know, I’ve been at this podium many times over 29 

the past ten years encouraging the establishment of a science-30 

based rebuilding plan and other measures to rebuild the red 31 

snapper fishery and those actions are obviously paying off and 32 

you now have the opportunity to raise the red snapper total 33 

allowable catch level and so I commend you for that. 34 

 35 

The problem I have with the current framework document as 36 

written is that while scientific uncertainty, which is one of 37 

the two sources of uncertainty you should take into 38 

consideration in the catch setting process, was factored in by 39 

your Scientific and Statistical Committee, it’s the council’s 40 

job to now factor in what’s known as management uncertainty. 41 

 42 

In red snapper in particular sectors, there’s significant 43 

management uncertainty.  I understand the need to get this 44 

increase in quota in place and will support that, but what I ask 45 

is that in the trailing red snapper amendment that you all 46 

talked about in the Reef Fish Committee that you explicitly look 47 

at management uncertainty by various fishing sectors to best 48 
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ensure that, number one, your annual catch limits are not 1 

exceeded, which will trigger accountability measures that we’re 2 

all too familiar with in the fishery, and, secondly, and most 3 

importantly, that the overfishing limit is not exceeded. 4 

 5 

There was talk about the SSC already put this buffer in place 6 

between the overfishing limit and the acceptable biological 7 

catch and that’s true, but remember this, that part of that is 8 

uncertainty of where that overfishing limit line actually is.  9 

It could be set wrong and they factored in the scientific 10 

uncertainty to help you all there and so I would ask that 11 

management uncertainty be an explicit consideration in 12 

establishment of the catch level for 2011 and, again, I commend 13 

the council for the actions they’ve taken.  I know it has not 14 

been easy, but we’re finally on the upswing with red snapper and 15 

we’ll hopefully have catch levels that are increasing from here 16 

on out.  Thank you. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Chris.  Any questions for Chris?  19 

Russell Nelson, followed by Benjamin Kelley. 20 

 21 

MR. PEARCE:  Chris, this is a little bit different, but we’re 22 

getting ready to think about opening the Red Drum Management 23 

Plan and do you have any problems with that as environmental? 24 

 25 

MR. DORSETT:  As it’s stated in the committee motion, I 26 

certainly have no problem with the council considering a scoping 27 

document to collect information on red drum.  In terms of 28 

opening an actual fishery, certainly we need to start, from our 29 

perspective, with an acceptable biological catch level from the 30 

Scientific and Statistical Committee that we could work from. 31 

 32 

MR. RUSSELL NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  My name is 33 

Russell Nelson and I’m a fishery scientist working with the 34 

Coastal Conservation Association.  I think what I’m going to 35 

talk about today will maybe help allay some of my friend Chris’s 36 

fears. 37 

 38 

When we go through a stock assessment, we get the results and 39 

basically we look at fishing mortality.  That goes to the SSC 40 

and comes back and there’s a recommendation from the assessment 41 

group as to how the level of fishing mortality lies in reference 42 

to your target.  It could be too high or it could be all right. 43 

 44 

Fishing mortality, in its simplest, is the removal of 45 

individuals from the population, the percent of the population 46 

that’s taken out every year.  From the beginning, we have looked 47 

at fishing mortality and said we need a 30 percent reduction in 48 
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fishing mortality and so the council looks back at recent year’s 1 

landings and says as a surrogate for the fishing mortality, 2 

we’re going to reduce recent landings by 30 percent. 3 

 4 

In the past, and in conditions where the age structure of the 5 

population is fairly stable, that makes some sense.  Now, I 6 

would suggest to you that you might have the opportunity to 7 

improve your ability to manage red snapper. 8 

 9 

As we have seen for the last several years, the size that’s been 10 

referenced by a couple of folks before me, the average size of 11 

red snapper has increased considerably each year, which means we 12 

are taking fewer fish by number out to get the quota in pounds 13 

and I think this is one of the main reasons that we saw that 14 

even with overages the overfishing has not been occurring in the 15 

last two years. 16 

 17 

I would urge you to ask the Science Center to look into a means 18 

of standardizing the quota by the age structure in the catch.  19 

This could be done.  In other words, adjusting the quota 20 

automatically for the size. 21 

 22 

Alternatively, if you have the average size going down and 23 

you’re setting a quota, you’re increasing F by going forward, 24 

but I think if we’re looking at a time stream of very optimistic 25 

increases every year in the potential TAC, ACL, for red snapper 26 

and the increasing number of older fish in the population, that 27 

you should look into seeing if you can refine your quota setting 28 

by having it standardized by the age structure in the catch.  I 29 

think it would probably be pretty easily workable.  Thank you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Nelson. 32 

 33 

MR. PEARCE:  Russ, that’s a great point.  What would the quota 34 

be if we based it on that today? 35 

 36 

DR. NELSON:  I’m not going to give you an estimate of it.  That 37 

would take a close look at the sizes in the catch and not just 38 

mean size as an average size as a rough approximate, but to do 39 

it really nicely, you would want to look at all the fish that 40 

have been measured and look at the age structure and the size 41 

structure.   42 

 43 

It’s something that could be done, but I’m not going to give you 44 

a guess, other than to say that you shouldn’t worry about being 45 

excessive in setting the quota where you have for next year, 46 

because in fact, at that level of quota, unless the average size 47 

of fish goes down from where it has been, you’re going to be 48 
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achieving a lower level of fishing mortality than that which has 1 

been recommended by the SSC and the assessment group. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other questions for Dr. Nelson?  Thank you, 4 

Russ.  Benjamin Kelley, followed by Robert Turpin. 5 

 6 

MR. BENJAMIN KELLEY:  My name is Benjamin Kelley and I’m from 7 

Panama City, Florida.  I’ve been in the charter business for 8 

twenty-six years and I’m representing my family business.  I’ve 9 

dedicated my whole life to red snapper fishing.  It’s the only 10 

job I’ve ever had and I’ve been a good steward of the resource. 11 

 12 

We’ve built reefs and now there’s an overabundance of red 13 

snapper.  When I started fishing as a boy, you had to wait for 14 

someone to die or to retire to get a slip at our marina, Captain 15 

Andersons.  That is not the case today.  There’s empty slips 16 

that nobody wants and there’s boats for sale. 17 

 18 

I’m asking NMFS today to extend the TAC to the maximum level 19 

that the law will allow and have some mercy on us.  We need NMFS 20 

to extend the TAC.  How do you think it makes me feel that in 21 

the mid-1980s we almost went out of business because there was 22 

no fish?  Now you’re going to tell me today at this council that 23 

we’re going out of business because the fish are too big and 24 

we’re counting pounds and not numbers of fish. 25 

 26 

I’m totally against sector separation.  I think that’s a ploy by 27 

federal agencies and environmentalists to separate us to where 28 

you all can conquer us and I don’t -- To me, without the 29 

fishermen, there’s going to be no need for NMFS in the future 30 

anyway, if we’re all gone. 31 

 32 

I’m against catch shares.  I think in the commercial fishery you 33 

can tell who the historical players are and it’s a pretty fair 34 

game in commercial fishing, but in the recreational fishery, how 35 

do you make it fair?  I’ve dedicated my whole life and I expect 36 

to get more than a guide fisherman who has fished in the Bay his 37 

whole life. 38 

 39 

How do you enforce the catch share system when you’ve got two-40 

million people fishing for a resource?  Last, if we are going to 41 

have a grouper reduction in the future, we need some kind of 42 

trip limit per day, you know six fish per trip, because closed 43 

seasons are what kills us.  We used to have an eight-month 44 

fishery and we’re down to fifty or sixty days.  I’ve been up 45 

since four o’clock this morning worrying about it.  That’s it. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions for Benjamin? 48 
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 1 

MR. GREENE:  Thank you, Mr. Kelley.  I appreciate you coming 2 

over and I’m a charterboat guy like you and I understand.  You 3 

might have a good point about a trip limit per day on grouper 4 

and could you elaborate?  You think six groupers is a good idea?  5 

I have a follow-up question when you finish that. 6 

 7 

MR. KELLEY:  If you tell the people that grouper is closed, 8 

they’re not going to come.  If snapper and grouper is closed, 9 

they’re not coming.  If you can at least say that we can catch 10 

five, they’re happy with that.  We can get you all one amberjack 11 

apiece and five grouper and that’s -- At least you can sell a 12 

trip off of that.  If you tell them all we’ve got to offer is 13 

one amberjack apiece, you can forget it.  They’re not going to 14 

drive from Tennessee and pay $1,300 for that. 15 

 16 

MR. GREENE:  That’s a real good idea and also, one other thing.  17 

On the red snapper, I guess the biggest thing that’s killing 18 

you, like it is me, is the number of days.  Would you be 19 

receptive to dropping the bag limit to say one fish per person? 20 

 21 

MR. KELLEY:  No, sir.  The trips cost too much money to sell on 22 

one red snapper.  If he’s a ten-pound fish, we probably could do 23 

it and they probably will be a ten-pound fish in the near future 24 

and then we’ll get to fish about thirty days. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Kelley.  Robert, followed by 27 

Chad Hansen. 28 

 29 

MR. ROBERT TURPIN:  Robert Turpin, Escambia County Marine 30 

Resources Division.  I think the data clearly indicates that the 31 

TAC can be increased, as recommended.  I have a lengthy 32 

statement I would like to send in writing, but if we have time 33 

at the end, I’ll speak to that.  Thank you. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Robert.  Chad, are you going to 36 

speak about the red snapper TAC?  Okay.  You’ll be followed by 37 

Gerald Struck. 38 

 39 

MR. HANSEN:  Good afternoon again, Chairman Shipp and the 40 

members of the council.  My name is Chad Hansen with the Pew 41 

Environment Group.  The recent stock assessment for red snapper 42 

is a strong indication that the population in the Gulf is on the 43 

road to recovery.  As a result, an increase in the red snapper 44 

catch limit is appropriate. 45 

 46 

However, there is a history of large overruns, particularly in 47 

the recreational catch limits, for red snapper in recent years.  48 
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Thus, we strongly urge you to set the increased catch level at a 1 

level that accounts for the difficulty of keeping the 2 

recreational sector within its established limits. 3 

 4 

To address this issue for red snapper and for grouper, we urge 5 

the council to continue exploring new tools, such as fish tags 6 

and stamp programs, to more effectively collect information and 7 

improve management of the recreational sector, whether it be 8 

through Amendment 32 or incorporated into another vehicle, such 9 

as a separate amendment. 10 

 11 

Ultimately, the more effective management is a critical 12 

component to ensure the long-term health of the fish populations 13 

in the Gulf, particularly red snapper and the groupers.  We also 14 

urge the council to address this issue by applying the annual 15 

catch target control rule that’s under development now as a part 16 

of the Generic ACL Amendment to apply to red snapper and the 17 

other grouper species as that control rule is fully developed 18 

within that amendment. 19 

 20 

When a particular fishery like red snapper begins to rebuild, 21 

there’s always the temptation to quickly and dramatically 22 

increase catch limits.  However, it is vitally important that 23 

the council stay the course on the rebuilding plan, to ensure 24 

that this species can make a full recovery.  If you do so, catch 25 

levels may be much higher than we are seeing today.  Thank you 26 

again for the opportunity to share our thoughts on this 27 

important subject. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions?  Gerald Struck, 30 

followed by Scott Robson. 31 

 32 

MR. GERALD STRUCK:  I’m Gerald Struck from Pensacola and I’m a 33 

member of the Pensacola Recreational Fishing Association.  I 34 

spoke at one of these meetings a year or so ago and I was told 35 

to keep it in a positive mode and I’m going to struggle for 36 

that. 37 

 38 

I was told and now I’m asking NOAA and National Marine Fisheries 39 

and Dr. Crabtree for you to keep your program in a positive 40 

attitude and what I mean by that is I would like to see that you 41 

stop cutting everything as a solution and I would like to see 42 

you do something in the way of something positive. 43 

 44 

Everybody here knows that habitat is how you increase 45 

production.  It’s done with deer and it’s done with many other 46 

animals, where you increase the habitat for them.  You need to 47 

spend the multimillion dollars you’re getting to do research on 48 
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the number of snapper that are out in the Gulf to build habitat 1 

for them.  Then you wouldn’t have to do research.   2 

 3 

If you had plenty of habitat out there, there would be no 4 

question and you wouldn’t have to have anybody angry with you 5 

about cutting the limit of snapper or the season down.  There 6 

would be no problem at all.  7 

 8 

I would also like to point out that I’m not an educated person, 9 

but I think I know a little bit about something or other and I 10 

read a lot about the snapper and the snapper season.  A hundred 11 

years ago, there wasn’t any way to really tell how many snapper 12 

were out in the Gulf. 13 

 14 

Nowadays, we have a lot of technical, scientific advantages and 15 

we still don’t know how many snapper are out in the Gulf.  You 16 

can’t go out there and count them.  You can’t do what you’re 17 

doing on a computer and know how many snapper are out there.  18 

You can do all your research and you can call everybody in the 19 

phone book and ask them, but you’re still not going to know. 20 

 21 

Your chances are the snapper are about ten times the population 22 

out there of what you really think your research is showing and 23 

I think you need to do a little bit better research, but, of 24 

course, you’re not going to be able to. 25 

 26 

I’m totally against catch shares.  I feel like that’s a 27 

commercialization of it and it’s going to take it out of the 28 

average person to go fishing.  My grandkids won’t be able to go 29 

out there and fish very easily, because of the needing a lawyer 30 

to go with you to catch snapper.  We also need a longer red 31 

snapper fishing season.  Thank you.  Any questions? 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions?  Thank you, Mr. Struck.  Scott 34 

Robson and, Scott, on your card, I can’t tell whether you’re 35 

going to talk about snapper or not.  Are you? 36 

 37 

MR. SCOTT ROBSON:  I’ll talk about snapper right there and then 38 

I’ll come back and talk in the open.  Good afternoon, council 39 

members.  My name is Scott Robson with the Destin Charterboat 40 

Association, co-president and charterboat operator. 41 

 42 

First off, we do support the SSC recommendations of increased 43 

TAC up to 6.94 million pounds and we would ask to move forward 44 

starting with a full blown stock assessment on red snapper and 45 

improved data collection must move forward.  We’ve been talking 46 

about this logbook and we’ve been wanting it.  We’re asking for 47 

mandatory and ramped up validations and dockside.   48 
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 1 

Unfortunately, the news that we’ve just heard about the 2 

electronic logbook, and I know you all are going to check into 3 

that, but we’re appalled.  We’re trying to figure out how we’re 4 

trying to come forward with this and trying to be proactive in 5 

this and trying to work with this and we hear this budget cut on 6 

the logbook system. 7 

 8 

I guess we would probably like to hear from the council some 9 

recommendations and where do we go from here if that is, if 10 

truly that logbook data system pilot program is dropped.  Where 11 

else do we seek to?  I know we’ve talked to EDF and we’ve run a 12 

pilot program through them.  SOS was working with them, but 13 

we’re trying to move forward with this. 14 

 15 

We’ve been screaming for better data for years and we’re trying 16 

to move forward with electronic logbooks and we hear a budget 17 

cut on this and so it’s -- I thought this was going to shock 18 

this crowd.  It’s amazing and what’s going on here, folks?  You 19 

want better data. 20 

 21 

I hear the conservative groups come up here and say we want to 22 

increase some more buffers in that system because of the 23 

uncertainties and we’re trying to work with these uncertainties 24 

and get them out of there and try to create a better data system 25 

and we hear the government is going to cut back on us.  It’s 26 

disturbing as it can ever get and so we would like to hear some 27 

help or have council work with us. 28 

 29 

Maybe if we got it directed into another avenue and the wait on 30 

a pilot program that’s going to come from NOAA that’s not going 31 

to happen, possibly, where do we go from here?  Where do we 32 

turn?  Do we go towards a grant?  As a for-hire industry, we 33 

want to move forward with creating some better data systems and 34 

so where do we go?  That’s what I’ve got to say on the red 35 

snappers. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Henry Hunt, you’re next, to be 38 

followed by Michael Sullivan. 39 

 40 

MR. HENRY HUNT:  My name is Henry Hunt from Panama City.  I’ve 41 

been in the charter business for roughly forty years.  42 

Basically, fishing has been my livelihood.  I’ve been fortunate 43 

enough to own two boats in my lifetime.  At the present time, 44 

the boat that I own, the way I see it, is virtually worth 45 

nothing and my livelihood, my retirement, my boat is worth 46 

nothing to me. 47 

 48 
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The only thing it’s good for is charter fishing at the present 1 

time and if you take this opportunity to continue fishing away 2 

from me, you will have destroyed my livelihood and retirement. 3 

 4 

In the charter business, we don’t make a whole lot of money.  If 5 

you figure the expenditures that we incur over the course of the 6 

year, the increase in the fuel prices, our dock rent, our 7 

repairs, haul outs, the Coast Guard, the whole nine yards, you 8 

don’t make a whole lot of money.  You make a living. 9 

 10 

All I would like to say is we need as long a snapper season as 11 

we can possibly get.  The seventy-four days we were able to 12 

endure and we’ve made it through it and we’ve made a little 13 

money to get through hopefully until springtime when we get to 14 

run again, if the economy is sufficient enough to carry us 15 

through.  If not, then we’re looking at June 1.  That’s the 16 

first opportunity that I have a trip. 17 

 18 

I’ve been without work for roughly six months, but I’ve been 19 

fortunate enough to be able to try to stretch my money to last 20 

until the next season.  I’m not in favor of catch shares, 21 

because I don’t see where it does anything to do with -- In the 22 

first place, you can’t tell me what I will get if I agree to 23 

catch shares, what percentage of the TAC that I can have to make 24 

my business durable. 25 

 26 

Secondly, I’ve never heard a person say in the council, the 27 

scientific community or anything, how many pounds of red snapper 28 

have to be in the Gulf of Mexico for it not to be considered 29 

overfished.  You put a date for a recovery, but you have nothing 30 

in the amount of pounds in it that I’ve ever heard. 31 

 32 

For you to assume that we as recreational charter have over 33 

caught our allocation when you cannot say how many pounds of 34 

fish are out there or the exact number, the exact number that we 35 

have taken out of that resource. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Hunt.  Any questions for Mr. Hunt?  38 

Next up is Michael Sullivan, to be followed by John Law. 39 

 40 

MR. MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  I’m Michael Sullivan and I’m a 41 

charterboat operator that’s dual permitted with a commercial 42 

permit.  I support the raising the TAC.  I think we need a 43 

little flexibility in the red snapper rebuilding plan until we 44 

get all the data done together right.  I’m in favor of whatever 45 

we can do to get a longer recreational red snapper season, 46 

whatever it takes so we can stay in business.  That’s pretty 47 

much it. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Sullivan.  Any questions for Mr. 2 

Sullivan?  Mr. John Law, to be followed by Jeremy Brooks. 3 

 4 

MR. JOHN LAW:  My name is John Law and I’m a charterboat owner 5 

and operator for fifteen years out of Panama City.  I fish out 6 

of Captain Andersons Marina and I’m very fortunate and lucky to 7 

be there.  As you heard Captain Benji say, it was an honor and a 8 

privilege at one time to get a slip there and due to the economy 9 

and everything else and a lot of the regulations, it’s gotten 10 

very, very quiet around there. 11 

 12 

There used to be a famous slogan there of “Dine in Early and 13 

Watch the Fleet Unload” and if things keep going like they are, 14 

there isn’t going to be any fleet to unload there.  I strongly 15 

beg you to extend our season if we can and somehow have a longer 16 

snapper season. 17 

 18 

I definitely am against catch shares and sector separation.  19 

We’ve got to have as much as we can length-wise and everything 20 

to make the business continue.  That’s basically all I have to 21 

say. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Law.  Any questions for Mr. Law?  24 

Jeremy Brooks, to be followed -- 25 

 26 

MR. JEREMY BROOKS:  I pass. 27 

 28 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Brooks passes and Mr. Mark Kelley, to be followed 29 

by Earl Rader. 30 

 31 

MR. MARK KELLEY:  My name is Mark Kelley and I’m from Panama 32 

City and I have two charterboats.  I’ve been in the business for 33 

over thirty years.  I want you to know what an honor it is for 34 

me to be doing a lifelong dream that I had as a boy to fish. 35 

 36 

I feel like I’m being punished for being conservative, because 37 

I’ve worked with you since 1989 on the snapper season and every 38 

time it gets better and better and better, I get more penalized.  39 

I’ve worked hard to build a business and we used to run the 40 

whole month of April and the whole month of May when we was on a 41 

six-month season.  We started up the middle of April. 42 

 43 

Today, as of today, between the two boats I have, I think I have 44 

two days booked in the month of May.  All the people we had in 45 

the month of May rolled to June now because we’ve built such an 46 

awesome snapper fishery and we can’t afford a crunch.  We can’t 47 

go no lower than seventy-four days. 48 



49 

 

 1 

I know the numbers show that we’ve over caught, but whose fault 2 

is the reason why we’ve caught over 1.9 -- Whatever it, 1.8 or 3 

1.9 million pounds?  In my opinion, sure, the fishermen sitting 4 

here is the ones that has over caught, but what is the reason 5 

why we over caught?  It’s because of the bad data. 6 

 7 

I’ve been to these meetings and I’ve heard bad data until I’m 8 

tired of hearing bad data and it’s the best available that we’ve 9 

got and well why haven’t we changed it?  You all was mandated to 10 

change it in 2009 and we’re still dragging our feet and 11 

evidently now we’re not even pushing for some money to even do 12 

this electronic logbook. 13 

 14 

You’re taking these people that are working hard and all they 15 

want to do is continue on what we’re doing.  We don’t want to 16 

decimate the fishery.  It’s the easiest we’ve ever had it in our 17 

entire life and you’re trying to take that away from us.   18 

 19 

Two fish, my God, the size fish we’re catching now is 20 

unbelievable and we’re catching fewer fish, but higher poundage 21 

and so we’re being punished.  In every avenue we go, we’re 22 

punished and we’re fixing to be no grouper and a shorter 23 

amberjack season and I’m sure triggers is coming in there 24 

somewhere, where we’re going to be shut down.  We can’t go to no 25 

unemployment line.  We’re a small business and we don’t pay 26 

unemployment tax.  We can’t draw it.  When we’re through, we’re 27 

through.  We have nothing else. 28 

 29 

I’m for as long a season as the law will allow.  We’ve got to go 30 

-- Somewhere in Standard 8 of the Magnuson-Stevens Act with 31 

economics has got to play a part or you’re going to put all 32 

these hardworking people out of a living, including myself.  33 

Thank you. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Kelley.   36 

 37 

MR. SAPP:  Just a real quick one.  The way to get a longer 38 

season is with a smaller bag limit.  Would you be agreeable to a 39 

one fish bag limit if it increased the season substantially? 40 

 41 

MR. KELLEY:  Where are we going from a one fish bag limit?  To a 42 

one fish per boat?  We’ve come from seven fish.  I know you said 43 

it in Panama City, that you haven’t been on this panel long, but 44 

we’ve come from seven fish to thirteen inches to five fish to 45 

four fish to two fish to one fish and one day, we’re going to 46 

have a boat that’s sitting there in the middle of the bay 47 

because we can’t pay dock rent.   48 
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 1 

No, I’m not for no decrease anymore.  I’ve given you all my 2 

life.  I’ve given you everything I’ve got.  I’ve been 3 

conservative and I have given you all I can give you and that’s 4 

just how I feel about it.  Could we survive on one fish per 5 

person?  We probably could.  We probably could, the truth be 6 

known. 7 

 8 

We’ve survived a lot longer now than I thought we would ever 9 

survive.  I thought we would be through and our head is on the 10 

block and you all are swinging an axe to cut it off.  We’re 11 

here.  We’re here.  You won’t have to worry about us in a couple 12 

more years if things keep going to way it is.  There won’t be 13 

none of us around.  We’ll be sweeping floors or doing shopping 14 

carts at Wal-Mart. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other questions?  The next is Earl Rader, 17 

followed by Captain Mike Thierry. 18 

 19 

MR. EARL RADER:  My name is Earl Rader and I’m from Pensacola, 20 

Florida and I’m representing our Pensacola Recreational 21 

Fishermen’s Association today, of which we have about 200 22 

members.  At this gathering here today, we have a large group 23 

here. 24 

 25 

I’m here to talk to you about red snapper in the Pensacola area, 26 

because I’ve fished other areas and I know they’re there, but I 27 

know Pensacola has an overabundance of red snapper.  You can go 28 

into computer systems and you can talk to other organizations 29 

who go out there and say the red snapper are short, but I can 30 

promise you they’re not. 31 

 32 

There’s more red snapper and they’re more plentiful in Pensacola 33 

right now than ever in the history of Pensacola.  I have all 34 

kinds of people tell me that and I’ll be glad to have captains 35 

take you out and show you public or private reefs that are 36 

absolutely loaded with red snapper.  You can’t go out there 37 

without catching and killing a lot of red snapper. 38 

 39 

I fish to eat the fish.  I don’t go out there just to kill fish 40 

or for the sport.  I fish because I enjoy eating fresh fish and 41 

that’s the reason I do fish.  I enjoy it, of course, too. 42 

 43 

Also, I’m going to be very brief, but the organization, and 44 

myself personally, are for increasing the TAC and we also are 45 

for at least letting us have two red snapper and extending the 46 

season at least a month or two for us.  I assure you that this 47 

will not impact the Pensacola area in any way.  Thank you. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, sir.  Any questions?  Mike Thierry 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  He’ll be followed by Michael Salley. 4 

 5 

MR. MIKE THIERRY:  I’m Captain Mike Thierry from Dauphin Island, 6 

Alabama.  I’ve been in it for forty-five years and I hear 7 

fifteen or thirty or twenty, but forty-five years as a charter 8 

headboat owner/operator.  I’m currently serving on the Red 9 

Snapper Advisory Panel. 10 

 11 

Folks, we need at least a six-month season.  National Marine 12 

Fisheries regulations of shorter seasons and the lower bag 13 

limits have been very detrimental to the recreational and 14 

charter headboat industry in the Gulf, along with all the 15 

support industries, the marinas, the motels and the restaurants 16 

and everything.  They’re all suffering. 17 

 18 

Effort, effort is way down.  I don’t think we’re getting any 19 

credit for the effort.  My business is down about 40 percent.  20 

Several short years ago, there was approximately fifteen 21 

charterboats fishing from Dauphin Island and now we’re down to 22 

around six, six charterboats out of fifteen. 23 

 24 

Our marina owner says that their fuel, ice, and bait sales are 25 

way down from the recreational fishermen, the true recreational 26 

fishermen.  There’s a much greater reduction in effort than 27 

National Marine Fisheries is giving us credit for and therefore, 28 

the TAC needs to be set as high as possible to alleviate these 29 

problems. 30 

 31 

My rationale for this -- Like I said, I’m on the Red Snapper AP 32 

and I was in Louisiana when we went over the interim stock 33 

assessment.  I feel like the stock assessment was very 34 

conservative and I feel like the data is still very bad and that 35 

the effort is much lower than projected, due to the regulations.  36 

The price of fuel is still very high and just the state of the 37 

economy in general.  People are fishing less. 38 

 39 

Let me get back to data and I would like to be corrected if I’m 40 

wrong, but some of the tables we were shown in Louisiana showed 41 

like three fish were used in a state to determine that that was 42 

the catch for that state for that year.  That’s not a very big 43 

sampling when you’re talking about putting people out of 44 

business. 45 

 46 

Some of the charterboat surveys, for a whole year, determining 47 

what the charterboats did, it was like six or seven trips that 48 
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were used.  To me, I don’t see how you can put a guy out of 1 

business using that kind of data and that’s the problem I have 2 

with it.  There was a bunch more in there and that was just a 3 

couple of examples. 4 

 5 

We talked about where we started, a virgin stock of fish.  It 6 

was explained to me well, but I never understood where we 7 

started with a virgin stock of fish and how we received that.  8 

How many samples was done on this virgin stock of fish to say 9 

really what the stock was?  That seems to play a big role in the 10 

stock assessment, but I don’t know of anybody here that was 11 

around when there was a virgin stock. 12 

 13 

I haven’t heard anything about socioeconomic here.  The last one 14 

two years ago told me it was going to cost me two trips and 15 

forty-dollars, but about $40,000 or $50,000 less than what I’m 16 

making now and probably forty trips anyway.  I know I’m running 17 

over my time. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’ve got to stop you, Mike.  Anybody got any 20 

questions for Captain Mike?  Thanks, Mike.  Michael Salley, 21 

followed by Evonn Caraway. 22 

 23 

MR. MICHAEL SALLEY:  I’m Mike Salley, the Charterboat Sure Shot 24 

in Orange Beach.  I don’t have anything in writing, but I’m 25 

going to talk about this for a minute, because it’s wrong.  26 

What’s been going on is wrong. 27 

 28 

We get some extra poundage and then we get some taken back, 29 

because we were over last year.  The fish are too big and we’re 30 

going over and it don’t make no sense.  I did want to try to 31 

explain this to you all and I know you all hear this all the 32 

time and I really do.  It’s got to be boring to you. 33 

 34 

It’s not just affecting us, but it’s affecting the coastal 35 

communities and so let’s just break it down like five ways.  36 

When people go to a coastal community, a tourist community, to 37 

vacation, they go to eat good food, beach comb, play golf, 38 

somewhere I think there’s fishing in there.  There’s four and I 39 

think we could find another one, five. 40 

 41 

You take one of them entities out and it affects all of them.  42 

The coastal communities are suffering and it’s not just us.  43 

It’s not just us.  It’s all, from New Jersey down to New England 44 

and you come around and all the way around. 45 

 46 

I’ve been thinking about this long and hard and Johnny Greene 47 

brought something up a minute ago about the one fish and I’ve 48 
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been thinking about this last few days.  Guys, once they’ve got 1 

their minds made up, we’re not going to get it back.  We know 2 

the experience with this. 3 

 4 

If I can get more than sixty-four days or whatever it is and 5 

tell my customers that we can’t keep red snapper -- I’ve gotten 6 

them used to this two fish thing and we keep having to reduce 7 

it.  By the way, I’ve been doing this thirty-one years.  I’m 8 

fifty-one years old. 9 

 10 

Right now, I’m lucky that my boat is paid for.  There’s a bunch 11 

of them out there that’s not and they ain’t going to make it.  12 

They’re dropping out every day, but if we go one fish per person 13 

-- I know you all don’t like that, but tell your customers that 14 

you can catch red snappers six months out of the year, one per 15 

person, maybe throw us a bone and let us keep the crew. 16 

 17 

We’re not fishing every day.  We’re used to the southeast sector 18 

of fishermen and they’re rednecks.  Come the first of November, 19 

they’re watching football and going deer hunting and NASCAR.  20 

They don’t give a darn about deep-sea fishing and that’s the 21 

truth.  Look at the big picture. 22 

 23 

I don’t want to be in the Gulf of Mexico in the winter.  We 24 

regulate the whole thing ourselves and the economy is regulating 25 

us right now.  We need to help the economy.  National Marine 26 

Fisheries, give us something.  We need anything.  Anything would 27 

be better. 28 

 29 

The one fellow back there that talked about being penalized, 30 

that’s how I feel.  It really is how I feel and I’m sure I could 31 

talk about a lot of other stuff, but that’s all I’ve got.  Thank 32 

you. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Michael.  Any questions?   35 

 36 

MS. MORRIS:  Mike, I wasn’t clear what you were saying about the 37 

one fish bag limit, whether you thought that was yes or no. 38 

 39 

MR. SALLEY:  I’m not for it, but knowing that we probably won’t 40 

get any more fish, I am for it.  If we can’t get two fish a day 41 

six months out of the year, I’ll take one fish a day six months 42 

out of the year versus sixty-four days, I think.  I am going to 43 

kill red snapper when the season is not in by just throwing them 44 

back to Flipper.  That’s the truth. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Evonn Caraway.  47 

 48 
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MS. TRACY REDDING:  Evonn is for the open comment and not just 1 

red snapper. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tracy.  Captain Mike Eller. 4 

 5 

MR. MIKE ELLER:  Mike Eller, Co-President of the Destin 6 

Charterboat Association.  This is my twenty-ninth consecutive 7 

year as a recreational for-hire fisherman.  In my first fifteen 8 

years, I was also a commercial fisherman and now I’m back in the 9 

commercial fishing business with the purchase of a dual-10 

permitted boat last year. 11 

 12 

I’m a red snapper IFQ holder, because I just spent $50,000 to 13 

purchase 2,000 pounds at $25 a pound and I was very lucky to 14 

find somebody that was even willing to sell them. 15 

 16 

We’re glad that you’re going to go and raise the TAC to the 6.9 17 

million pounds.  We think that it’s wonderful that the science 18 

is finally catching up to what the fishermen on the water are 19 

seeing. 20 

 21 

We are concerned about the buffers that are there and the 22 

uncertainty in the management.  I feel that after coming here 23 

before you for twelve or fifteen years that every single one of 24 

you have a moral responsibility to go back to your states and 25 

get started the process of data collection on private 26 

recreational anglers and anglers in your states.  You’ve got to 27 

be tired of hearing us say it and so you are the ones that have 28 

to go and say, along with everybody else, that has to say 29 

something needs to be done. 30 

 31 

Every one of you has the moral obligation to look at the 32 

Southeast Regional Director and say, how do you expect us to 33 

manage these fish when obviously we have flawed data and we 34 

don’t count actual fish?  I understand that it’s a slow process, 35 

but you’ve got to be tired of hearing us talk about it. 36 

 37 

We appreciate the fact that you’re going to raise the TAC.  We 38 

are unhappy about the losing of the days and we are unhappy 39 

about the fact that even as we reduce our effort and as we catch 40 

less fish we will continue to be pushed in the overfished 41 

category because the fish is bigger every year. 42 

 43 

We believe that the TAC should have some type of automatic 44 

mechanism that every time the average fish gets bigger that the 45 

TAC -- You turn and look at your whatever it was, twenty-46 

million-pound TAC, and now your fish is bigger and the stock 47 

should be bigger. 48 
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 1 

Dr. Crabtree said yesterday that it’s in there and it’s built 2 

into the projections or it’s kind of built into the projections.  3 

I didn’t really get a real firm answer that I could really hold 4 

on to, but it seems like to me that we’re just going to keep 5 

continuing being pushed into the overfished category as the fish 6 

gets bigger.  It’s a catch-22 that needs to be fixed and I’m not 7 

sure how we fix it, but here we are working our best, reducing 8 

our effort, and once again, we’re just being shortened by the 9 

fact that the fish stock is successfully rebuilding.  Thank you. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mike, we’ve got questions. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Do you think the average recreational fish caught 14 

and kept weighs five pounds or more? 15 

 16 

MR. ELLER:  Yes, four or five pounds, yes. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Next is Louis Barberi and he’ll be followed by 19 

Bill Coursen. 20 

 21 

MR. LOUIS BARBERI:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’m Louis Barberi 22 

from Pensacola, Florida.  I’m a member of the Pensacola 23 

Recreational Fishing Association and the Recreational Fishing 24 

Alliance.  I am a recreational fisherman. 25 

 26 

I do believe that the TAC needs to be increased and I also 27 

believe you need to quit using poundage as the method of 28 

developing how many fish can be caught.  The proposed 29 

recreational fishing season that you have proposed of forty to 30 

sixty days is unfair to the recreational fishermen. 31 

 32 

If you take the forty days, the average recreational fisherman 33 

has to work and he has only the weekends to fish, that means he 34 

gets to fish ten trips at two fish a day.  He gets to catch 35 

twenty fish for the season and the same goes true for the sixty 36 

days.  He still gets to fish only two days out of the week.  37 

This is unfair to the recreational fishermen. 38 

 39 

The average fish, in my experience, that’s caught in the near-40 

shore reefs, which is about the seventy to a hundred-foot range, 41 

is between four to six pounds.  I believe you’re using a twenty-42 

pound fish to figure the poundage that can be caught in a 43 

season.  It’s a trophy to catch a twenty-pound fish.  The 44 

average is between four and ten pounds.  That’s been my 45 

experience of what I’ve seen.  I think that you’re doing an 46 

injustice to the fishermen by using a twenty-pound fish as your 47 

average to set up seasons.   48 
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 1 

I’m adamantly opposed to catch shares.  That is set up for the 2 

person with the deep pockets and the person in the know to 3 

control the recreational fisherman, who has to turn around and 4 

buy these shares from the guy who has got money enough to run 5 

out there and buy a bunch of them. 6 

 7 

If you need some method for counting the fish, I have no problem 8 

in buying a stamp.  A hunter, if he wants to go hunting for 9 

duck, he has to buy a duck stamp and attach it to his license.  10 

I have no problem buying a snapper stamp and then you can see 11 

how many people are fishing for red snapper. 12 

 13 

I am opposed to the separation of sector separation.  I don’t 14 

think that that is advantageous to anybody in the fishing 15 

industry.  I would like to see us have a much longer fishing 16 

season than the proposed forty to sixty days.   17 

 18 

You just have to rethink this thing of counting your fish at 19 

twenty pounds and if you ever got on a boat and went out there, 20 

you would know there’s more than enough red snapper for 21 

everybody to catch four fish a trip where somebody is only going 22 

two trips a week on a season.  It’s just ridiculous to cut it 23 

down like it’s being proposed.  Thank you. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  I appreciate your comments.  The stamp or the reef 26 

fish permit or whatever you want to call it, would you still 27 

agree to it if you had mandatory reporting of what you caught 28 

every day? 29 

 30 

MR. BARBERI:  I don’t have a problem with mandatory reporting.  31 

We made out a report card every fishing trip we went on last 32 

year. 33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  I think that’s very important to the recreational 35 

fishermen to do that. 36 

 37 

MR. PERRET:  Did I understand you to say you’re against a stamp 38 

or for a stamp? 39 

 40 

MR. BARBERI:  I’m for a stamp.  I’m against catch shares.  41 

That’s just a scheme to help somebody with a whole bunch of 42 

money to come in there and rip it off of the recreational 43 

fishermen. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Barberi.  Bill Coursen, to be 46 

followed by Tom Steber. 47 

 48 
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MR. BILL COURSEN:  My name is Bill Coursen and I live in 1 

Pensacola, Florida.  I’m a member of the Pensacola Recreational 2 

Fishing Association, the Recreational Fishing Alliance, and the 3 

Fishing Rights Alliance. 4 

 5 

I’m not going to say much about red snapper, because I don’t 6 

believe that’s a problem that we’re involved in.  One thing I 7 

fear is the red snapper is getting so plentiful I feel that it’s 8 

very possible that a disease might come in and wipe them all 9 

out, unless we take some of the fish out. 10 

 11 

I believe the Constitution of the United States should be upheld 12 

and I think catch shares, individual fishing quotas, capping 13 

trade and other regulations that restrict our inalienable right 14 

to catch fish are unconstitutional.  It’s also unconstitutional 15 

to deny or restrict a person the right to pursue an occupation 16 

in the fishing business. 17 

 18 

I’m against the separation of fishing sectors.  We should stay 19 

united in our efforts to attain equity.  I’m against vessel 20 

monitoring systems.  I don’t need a leg band on me.  To quote 21 

Ben Stein, we are in a fight to win America and that includes 22 

taking back our fishing rights. 23 

 24 

I think the fishery management by the National Marine Fisheries 25 

Service is no longer about managing fish, but is more about 26 

managing or controlling people.  When decisions are made with 27 

flawed data that results in unreasonable regulations that puts 28 

fishermen out of business and seriously affects the economy, 29 

what else can it be but people control? 30 

 31 

It is my perception, whether untrue or true, that NOAA, the 32 

National Marine Fisheries Service, and the councils are unduly 33 

influenced by the environmentalist groups and I think it is what 34 

most fishermen also perceive. 35 

 36 

It is your responsibility to manage the fishery fairly and 37 

equitable and not to just shut it down.  There are ten National 38 

Standards associated with the Magnuson-Stevens Act.  Standards 4 39 

and 8 have been seriously violated.  There’s got to be a better 40 

way to manage and I believe there’s a better way. 41 

 42 

There’s an old saying to just do the right thing.  Your mothers 43 

may have told you when you were young to just do the right thing 44 

and I’ll bet if you just do the right thing that we will have 45 

fair and equitable regulations and you will win back the respect 46 

the fishing community and I’m hoping we can have a longer 47 

season.  Last year, it was despicable and I thank you for 48 
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letting me speak. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions?  We just have two more on red 3 

snapper, Kelly Windes, followed by George Pfeifer.  Tom Steber I 4 

believe was next, followed by Kelly Windes and then George 5 

Pfeifer. 6 

 7 

MR. TOM STEBER:  Thank you very much for allowing me to come in 8 

and speak today.  I’m representing a lot of groups, Alabama Gulf 9 

Coast Chamber of Commerce, the City of Orange Beach, Orange 10 

Beach Fishing Association, Zeke’s Charter Fleet, Zeke’s Landing 11 

Marina, and a loving, fish catching machine. 12 

 13 

Thank God we have finally realized there are snapper out there 14 

and we’re getting some attention to get some fish back.  The bad 15 

data or lack of data for the past several years has not only 16 

cost lots of slip rent and lots of lost boats, homes, families, 17 

and you name it because of bad data. 18 

 19 

I’ve been fishing off the Alabama Gulf Coast for over fifty 20 

years and I’m only fifty-five.  My dad started taking me when I 21 

was four.  We need a minimum of two fish per person, a thirteen-22 

inch size limit, which is different than some other people say, 23 

and at least a six-month season.  Thank you. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  Thank you.  Any questions?  Next up is Kelly Windes, 26 

to be followed by George Pfeifer. 27 

 28 

MR. KELLY WINDES:  Thank you.  My name is Kelly Windes and I’m a 29 

third-generation Destin fisherman.  I also sit on the Destin 30 

City Council and I own and operate the Charterboat Sunrise out 31 

of the Destin Fishing Fleet Marina. 32 

 33 

I keep coming to these meetings mainly because I cling to the 34 

hope that someday someone on the panel will listen to the hands-35 

on knowledge and experience instead of hanging their hat 100 36 

percent on what it calls best available science. 37 

 38 

I must admit that as the years go by my hope fades.  It seems 39 

that the more the fishermen try to participate and cooperate, 40 

the more punitive and unnecessary the rules become.  In the 41 

early 1980s, the steel-hulled draggers came to the northern Gulf 42 

from the northeast part of the country, dozens of them.  They 43 

came for scallops, but they also took from us most of our 44 

artificial reefs and killed lots of live coral bottom, mostly in 45 

the Panama City area, between Panama City and Destin. 46 

 47 

Some live bottom has never recovered and in trying to stop this 48 
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rape of the bottom, I called the Coast Guard, the Marine Patrol, 1 

as well as National Marine Fisheries, all to no avail.  No one 2 

wanted to listen to a fisherman.  Hell, he didn’t even have a 3 

college degree and certainly not a PhD or Masters.  Common sense 4 

made no sense to the powers that be. 5 

 6 

Approximately ten years ago, we had a fisheries meeting in New 7 

Orleans.  There must have been 300 fishermen in the room.  The 8 

chairman asked that those who wished could write their comments 9 

and suggestions on a card and we would discuss them. 10 

 11 

I wrote that the grouper and the cobia should be reduced to 12 

three and one, respectively.  This is ten years ago.  I 13 

explained that after Opal the grouper were abused.  Captains 14 

were taking two limits a day and the fish were going in the back 15 

doors of restaurants all over town. 16 

 17 

On my card was a request to take from the wealth of knowledge in 18 

the room some commonsense to blend in with the so-called best 19 

available science.  The last thing I mentioned was upsetting the 20 

balance by feeding the dolphins the undersized snapper.  To this 21 

day, fish are not counted on fare-carrying vessels.  Assumptions 22 

are made on number of days fished, as if every fisherman has the 23 

same skills and equipment and fishes for the same species. 24 

 25 

My commonsense approach was laughed at and after the meeting, 26 

the chairman told me that studies show that the grouper is 27 

sustainable and now, ten years later, there are basically no 28 

grouper to speak of.  The cobia is greatly reduced and we have 29 

created scavengers out of the once noble dolphin.  Miles of live 30 

bottom has been destroyed and we still use science that stinks. 31 

 32 

No consideration is given to the expertise in the room and 33 

families have and are being put in economic hardship 34 

unnecessarily, based on decisions made by council members that 35 

vote along with the hierarchy, because they don’t know much 36 

about what actually goes on in the Gulf of Mexico. 37 

 38 

I don’t know many of the members, but I do know Captain Johnny 39 

Greene.  For those of you that haven’t lived in the Gulf for 40 

years like he has, please listen to the voice of experience. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kelly, I have to ask you to wind it down.  Your 43 

time is up and there are several people waiting to catch a 44 

plane. 45 

 46 

MR. WINDES:  Can you give me thirty more seconds? 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, I really can’t.  I really can’t.  I’ve got 1 

people waiting to catch a plane that are in line and were 2 

waiting appropriately.  I will do this though, Kelly.  After 3 

these people have given their testimony, if you would like the 4 

time that is being donated for you, I’ll give it back. 5 

 6 

MR. WINDES:  How long will that be?  Later in the afternoon? 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  About fifteen minutes. 9 

 10 

MR. WINDES:  That will be fine. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The next speaker is George Pfeifer and he’ll be 13 

followed by Bobby Spaeth. 14 

 15 

MR. WINDES:  Just for the record, all these comments tie 16 

directly to the snapper fishery in one way or another and if you 17 

let me finish later, I would appreciate it. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I will do that.  Mr. Pfeifer. 20 

 21 

MR. GEORGE PFEIFER:  My name is George Pfeifer and I’m from 22 

Orange Beach, Alabama.  I’m a charterboat captain.  I own Action 23 

Charter Service and I have two charterboats and I’m a headboat 24 

operator and owner. 25 

 26 

I’ve been in the business over thirty-five years and I know 27 

Captain Johnny Greene.  I’m at Zeke’s Marina and I’ve operated 28 

out of Pensacola, Florida and Orange Beach, like I said, for 29 

over thirty-five years.  I’m a recreational fisherman and a 30 

commercial fisherman.  I hold both permits. 31 

 32 

First of all, I would like to state that -- I would like to 33 

thank the council for letting me speak and second, I would like 34 

to state that I’m against sector separation.  I think that’s 35 

strength in numbers and I’m against the individual fish quotas. 36 

 37 

I think that the increase in the snapper to 6.9 million pounds 38 

is a good thing.  However, I am cautiously optimistic.  I think 39 

that, number one, as you’ve heard from so many people, it’s 40 

abundantly evident that if we don’t do something there’s going 41 

to be a lot of people out of business, including me. 42 

 43 

I think we need to increase our season to at least six months.  44 

I know that’s going to be hard to do.  However, like some other 45 

captains have said, I don’t want to go down in numbers anymore.  46 

I can’t go to a one fish limit.  I don’t want to have to. 47 

 48 
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I think quite possibly that we could get by with maybe going to 1 

a smaller size to extend our season.  That’s only a possibility 2 

and I would like for you to think about that.  The main issue 3 

there is to increase the amount of time that we can book trips 4 

and run our business. 5 

 6 

We used to be able to have lots of charters in April and May and 7 

now, with the snapper season starting in June, the only trips 8 

I’m getting booked right now is June, July, and then August, 9 

because they know the snappers are open then.  I’m losing 10 

somewhere between $150,000 to $200,000 a year, between my two 11 

boats, because snappers are closed during those five months out 12 

of the season that we used to have. 13 

 14 

It’s imperative that we do something to increase the season.  15 

I’m all for some kind of electronic logbook.  I have a VMS.  I’m 16 

not against that.  I spend, on average, $10,000 a year building 17 

reefs with David Walters through Alabama.  I’ve even taken out 18 

David Rainer from the Alabama Department of Conservation and 19 

he’s witnessed the population growth of the red snapper and the 20 

size growth. 21 

 22 

If you go on his website, on the Alabama Department of 23 

Conservation, you can see pictures where we were catching 24 

snappers or had them swimming around the boat, fifteen to twenty 25 

pounds. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  George, I’m going to have to ask you to wind it 28 

down, too. 29 

 30 

MR. PFEIFER:  No problem.  I appreciate the opportunity to come 31 

speak.  I just would like to say that I agree with the 6.9 32 

million pounds and I hope we can extend our season. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Bobby Spaeth, followed by Dennis 35 

O’Hern. 36 

 37 

OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 38 

 39 

MR. BOB SPAETH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and council members.  40 

I’m going to talk about fish traps in the open comment.  The 41 

fish trap issue is more than about fish traps.  It’s about the 42 

process and science versus politics. 43 

 44 

Before I got here, I was told that it would probably be 45 

considered but rejected and thrown to the back of the book.  46 

Imagine that.  The Reef Fish Committee refused to discuss it 47 

earlier yesterday. 48 
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 1 

Our feet have been held to the fire with best available data, 2 

but that’s not the case so far.  I believe the council has lost 3 

its way.  When you ignore best available data, there is no 4 

longer a need for the council to exist and we might as well just 5 

have a fishery czar. 6 

 7 

I have let different organizations, some scientific friends of 8 

mine, to watch this very closely and see if science versus 9 

politics and who wins.  I wonder how many of the council members 10 

have actually read “Characterization of the Reef Fish in the 11 

Gulf of Mexico”.  The Gulf Council has put up a great website.  12 

I would hope that you would go and look at it, because I’ll be 13 

back the next meeting to talk to you. 14 

 15 

Let me lay this out for you.  The reason industry wanted to be 16 

proactive was because of turtles and the gag problem.  Fish 17 

traps catch 95 percent red grouper and less than 1 percent gag 18 

and no reports of turtles getting in traps. 19 

 20 

This request is not just for the longline industry.  It’s the 21 

council’s charge to decide who will get this and what it will 22 

accomplish.  The truth is that the original fish trap we studied 23 

and spent hundreds of thousands of dollars, spent in cooperation 24 

with NMFS and the industry, and the results of that study, and 25 

it amazed me, and I was there, and it was the cleanest gear out 26 

of the three studied, vertical line, longline, and traps. 27 

 28 

The reason for the phase-out in Amendment 16 was in ghost 29 

fishing, which can be solved with zincs and some other things, 30 

and enforcement.  Out in the hallway and talking to everybody, 31 

the big excuse was we can’t enforce it. 32 

 33 

Since the traps, we have been ten years and we have got a lot of 34 

different things, VMS and habitats of particular concern.  35 

Industry was told the VMS was a magic management tool and now I 36 

have the current excuse that that is not the case.  Why are we 37 

paying for VMS?  How are you enforcing longline closed areas, 38 

hooks versus j-hooks, and on and on? 39 

 40 

We need remedies now that work.  The science is there to make it 41 

an allowable gear, but so far, you have refused to adhere to the 42 

science.  In thirty-five years I’ve been involved in this 43 

council, this is my lowest point.  Thank you. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Are there questions for Bobby?  46 

We’re in the open comment period now and some of these people 47 

have already spoken on snapper and so they’re coming back for a 48 
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second go on other topics, which was the instructions we gave if 1 

you wanted to speak on two topics.  Dennis is up, to be followed 2 

by Jack Golden. 3 

 4 

MR. O’HERN:  Thank you, Chairman Shipp.  I’m Dennis O’Hern, 5 

Executive Director of the Fishing Rights Alliance.  For the 6 

record, I’m a recreational angler.  I fish for fun.  I’ve been 7 

fishing in the Gulf since 1965 and I’m in my fifth year of 8 

cooperative research and so we don’t just complain about the 9 

problems.  We try and collect some data and try and solve some 10 

problems. 11 

 12 

I’ll be brief and thank you very much for entertaining Bob and 13 

I, because we have a flight to catch.  Sector separation, I 14 

think you’re probably going to hear a lot more from the sleeping 15 

giant, the six-million recreational anglers in the Gulf, that 16 

they don’t like it. 17 

 18 

It seems like that’s a plan to separate the recreational angler 19 

from their right to fish.  It seems like the end game to that is 20 

to implement catch shares in the entire recreational fishery.  21 

That’s it and thank you very much. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dennis.  Jack Golden, followed by 24 

Russ Nelson.  Is Jack here?  No?  Bob Zales, followed by Matt 25 

Andrews and then Kelly can come back after that. 26 

 27 

MR. ZALES:  Bob Zales, II, Panama City Boatmen Association.  I’m 28 

going to try to do it in three minutes, Bob.  Somebody may give 29 

me extra time in case I don’t do it.  Sector separation, our 30 

association is opposed to it, as everybody knows. 31 

 32 

Personally, I’m opposed to it, but I’m going to tell you the 33 

reality of the matter is apparently this council is going to 34 

continue pushing this thing, even though it’s clear that the 35 

vast majority of for-hire guys, and I think the recreational 36 

industry too, is against it. 37 

 38 

If you continue to do that, I would suggest that you get your 39 

staff to get us some information that we’ve all sought for a 40 

while.  Under the co-op that I represent, in October we sent a 41 

letter and Dr. Crabtree responded to what he could, but we don’t 42 

have anything from the council. 43 

 44 

Where we need to go with this -- Last night, you heard Johnny 45 

Williams throw another kink in this, is separating headboats 46 

from the for-hire side.  Now we have not just charter and 47 

private recreational, but we have headboats. 48 
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 1 

We also heard the issue of state-licensed boats fishing 2 

federally-managed species that could be directed into a private 3 

recreational fishery and so then you have another one.  In using 4 

the grouper catch that we see coming, your information shows, 5 

give or take, 25 percent of that recreational fishery will go to 6 

the for-hire side. 7 

 8 

You take out headboats out of that 25 percent, that’s less for a 9 

charterboat and you take the state-licensed boats out of that 25 10 

percent, that’s less for a charterboat.  It could get to where 11 

you’re going to say an overload boat is going to be taken out 12 

versus a six-pack boat.  Eventually, you’re going to have this 13 

piece so small and there will be so many entities that nobody 14 

will have enough for anything. 15 

 16 

Besides that, it’s not a snapper issue and it’s not a grouper 17 

and it’s not an amberjack and it’s not vermilion snapper and 18 

it’s not triggerfish and it’s not king or Spanish mackerel, but 19 

it’s all of them. 20 

 21 

Tell us, where is it going to be?  How many of these fish are we 22 

going to get per boat?  How many of these are we going to get 23 

per sector that you divide up?  That information needs to be 24 

provided to people so they can make a reasonable decision. 25 

 26 

One other piece of information I found in the budget, which was 27 

real interesting to me, under page 181 and it goes to page 185 28 

on that same budget estimate, is Program Changes for Fiscal Year 29 

2011, National Catch Share Program.  NOAA requests an increase 30 

of 10 FTEs and I think that’s a person, ten people, and $36.6 31 

million, for a total of $54 million and seventeen FTEs to 32 

accelerate and enhance implementation of a national catch share 33 

program, which the vast majority of the people in this country 34 

oppose. 35 

 36 

Now, to me, if a program is really good, why have you got to 37 

spend $50 million to push it down people’s throats?  It makes no 38 

sense and it’s a lot of waste.  Clearly the budget and the 39 

priority process of NOAA and the Fisheries Service is backwards.  40 

We need data. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bob, did you get somebody else to give you some 43 

more time, somebody that’s already signed?  Have you signed a 44 

card? 45 

 46 

MR. RADER:  Earl Rader. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Rader?  Okay. 1 

 2 

MR. ZALES:  As I was saying, clearly the priority here is wrong.  3 

First off, if you’re going to do a catch share, if you’re basing 4 

it on flawed data, don’t you have a flawed catch share program?  5 

To me, you do. 6 

 7 

This $50 million that’s being spent to shove something down our 8 

throats in this country that we don’t want would be better 9 

served to fix the data program and see where we are.  If you 10 

then need to handle the catch share system, at least you have 11 

good data to base it on. 12 

 13 

Another interesting part of this in this budget, it was real 14 

interesting to me anyway, was on page 182 in the last paragraph, 15 

the scientific evidence is compelling that catch shares can also 16 

help restore the health of ecosystems and put fisheries on a 17 

path to profitability and sustainability. 18 

 19 

A recent, and guess who, Environmental Defense study of 20 

“Sustaining American Fisheries and Fishing Communities” shows 21 

that catch shares protect the environment, increase profits, 22 

provide higher quality fish, create more full-time jobs, and 23 

save lives.  All the information I’ve seen lately from people 24 

from Alaska to New England says that ain’t true. 25 

 26 

It was real interesting because you all have this in front of 27 

you all and I haven’t read the study yet.  I’ve only looked at 28 

the page that it came off of, but apparently the Lenfest 29 

Organization funded a study that NOAA has and there’s a guy that 30 

I don’t see his name right here, but I know you all have got a 31 

copy of the sheet of paper. 32 

 33 

In it, it says -- Bear with me just a minute so I can find it.  34 

The author was Tim Essington of the School of Aquatic Fisheries 35 

Science at the University of Washington in Seattle.  He says we 36 

have sufficient data to quantitatively evaluate many pros and 37 

cons of catch share programs, but as of now, we still don’t know 38 

how much they help to end overfishing. 39 

 40 

He said analysis of a larger set of catch share programs could 41 

also help identify fishery and program design characteristics 42 

that make these programs more effective in achieving better 43 

ecological outcomes. 44 

 45 

Clearly there’s controversial information out there and I’m 46 

really surprised that on a budget request by somebody they only 47 

list one study that promotes something that they’re spending $50 48 
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million of my dollars to do.  That’s it.  Any questions? 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bob.  Matt Andrews is next and then, 3 

Kelly, we can invite you back, but we need to know who is going 4 

to donate their time. 5 

 6 

MR. MATT ANDREWS:  Matt Andrews, owner and operator of the --.  7 

First of all, I would like to thank the council for establishing 8 

an advisory panel for kingfish and something I want to bring to 9 

you all’s attention is that it looks like all the fisheries in 10 

the Gulf are going to IFQs or LAPPs, as you call them now. 11 

 12 

If you leave kingfish as it is, an open access fishery, 13 

basically, you’re going to really do a lot of damage to those 14 

people that depend on it for a living.  It’s going to be the 15 

only one left open and as far as I can tell, there’s 1,800 16 

kingfish permits available and so that’s a lot of permits.  17 

Anyways, I support the views on the Shareholder’s Alliance and 18 

thank you. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Kelly, to be followed by Libby 21 

Fetherston. 22 

 23 

MR. WINDES:  I appreciate you letting me come back for a return 24 

event.  Listen, ladies and gentlemen of the panel, I’m not a 25 

good actor at all.  My feelings are going to be worn on my 26 

sleeves and I’m going to sound like I’ve got some anger in my 27 

heart and I’m speaking from the heart and if you see some 28 

animosity, I apologize in advance. 29 

 30 

I’m scared for my friends and for my family that are all heavy 31 

in the boat business and I see it as mostly unnecessary and let 32 

me proceed, having said that. 33 

 34 

I think the Marine Fisheries Service has done a wonderful job of 35 

protecting the snapper and bringing it back to glory.  36 

Unfortunately, Marine Fisheries seems incapable of handling its 37 

success.  Instead of allowing the general public to enjoy the 38 

fruits of all this effort and sacrifice, they choose to invent 39 

all sorts of reasons to deny the good things they have done. 40 

 41 

In estimating the stock, as I understand it, the thousands of 42 

rigs and artificial wrecks are not counted in regard to the 43 

amount of fish they hold.  That is, to me, simply ignoring the 44 

facts in order to get the desired conclusion.  I think that’s 45 

unfair. 46 

 47 

Further, the Service plugs in a percentage, a substantial 48 
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percentage, allowing for error in their count of fish caught.  1 

This proves only that there is no accurate count and admits, to 2 

me, that we don’t know exactly what we’re doing here and it’s 3 

guesswork. 4 

 5 

If either of these factors, in my mind, was taken into account 6 

fairly, we could all catch enough fish to make a living and the 7 

customers could enjoy the success the Service has brought us.  8 

There are plenty of snappers out there today and I can tell you 9 

that.  There’s members of this panel that can tell you that.  We 10 

ask you, I ask you, to get your bureaucratic and political foot 11 

off our necks and let us breathe.  Thank you very much. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Libby Fetherston, followed by 14 

Philip Blackburn. 15 

 16 

MS. LIBBY FETHERSTON:  Good afternoon.  My name is Libby 17 

Fetherston and I’m here representing the Ocean Conservancy.  I 18 

would like to talk to you guys very briefly about Amendment 32, 19 

but first, I would just like to say another thanks to Dr. Shipp 20 

and members of the council for accommodating all of here today, 21 

those who have flights and so forth.  It’s very much appreciated 22 

and we appreciate the opportunity to offer you guys our 23 

comments. 24 

 25 

I wanted to thank the Reef Fish Committee for their discussion 26 

on the gag grouper issues in front of us in Amendment 32.  I 27 

just have one small point I would like to raise for the 28 

council’s consideration. 29 

 30 

We agree with Ms. Morris that the data collection section of the 31 

document has a lot of value at this point and we realize that 32 

there is a real need to accelerate the actions in this document 33 

and then there’s a need to fully analyze these new and 34 

innovative ways to collect data. 35 

 36 

However, this analysis and consideration of putting it off to a 37 

more convenient time doesn’t necessarily seem prudent.  It seems 38 

that with a shrinking gag allowable biological catch that it 39 

really warrants accelerating consideration of data collection 40 

processes that are outside of the norm and those should be 41 

considered along the same accelerated timeline as ending 42 

overfishing, because our ability to manage a small quota is very 43 

much linked to our ability to monitor it. 44 

 45 

We would urge the full council to reconsider removal of the data 46 

collection and monitoring parts of Amendment 32 in their 47 

discussions later and thank you for your time. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Libby. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Libby, thank you for your comments.  Is that the only 4 

problem you have with 32 and where we are at this point in time? 5 

 6 

MS. FETHERSTON:  Thank you, Mr. Gill, for your question.  I 7 

think the committee had some really good discussion about a lot 8 

of the issues and, as you know, we’ve been really focused on 9 

that January 1, 2011 implementation timeline and we know that 10 

there are a number of trailing reef fish documents to come after 11 

it that we can sort of do a lot of the work, but we’re 12 

particularly focused on the one thing that we thought really 13 

needed to stay in the document at this point and that was the 14 

data collection element, but we certainly reserve the right to 15 

offer further comment at a later time. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Of course you do. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  Libby, if leaving that section in the document is 20 

going to slow us down and cause us to miss the deadline that 21 

you’re focused on, then would you still encourage us to leave it 22 

in the document and be late? 23 

 24 

MS. FETHERSTON:  Roy, I have more than enough faith in your 25 

capability to analyze this and move it along on the timeline 26 

that’s required.  I do think if this needs to come out of the 27 

document at a later time that it certainly warrants some 28 

analysis.  We’re going to be talking about this data collection 29 

issue for a long time to come and if we can get started on it 30 

now, we certainly think that should happen. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you again, Libby.  Philip Blackburn, 33 

followed by John Brumble. 34 

 35 

MR. PHILIP BLACKBURN:  My name is Philip Blackburn and I’m a 36 

captain and deckhand in the charter industry and for-hire in 37 

Destin, Florida.  I’ve been doing this for about ten years.  I 38 

know it’s not as long as a lot of these fishermen have been 39 

doing it, but I have a family to support, a wife and three young 40 

children, and I would like to do it for years to come.  I 41 

support sector separation.  I believe it’s the best measure for 42 

helping end overfishing in our sector.  Thank you. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  John Brumble, followed by Ken 45 

Blackman. 46 

 47 

MR. KEN BLACKMAN:  John Brumble is not here, but my name is Ken 48 
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Blackman.  I’ve been fishing for about eight years from Destin, 1 

Florida.  I support the sector separation.  I’ve got a wife and 2 

two kids and I would like to do this for my future and I would 3 

like to see some accountability.  That way, I can keep doing 4 

this.  That’s pretty much it.  Thanks. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Evonn Caraway, followed by Johnny 7 

Williams. 8 

 9 

MS. EVONN CARAWAY:  My name is Evonn Caraway and I’m the 10 

Operations Manager of Underwater Expeditions, which is the Motor 11 

Vessel Big E and the Captain Casey out of Freeport, Texas.  We 12 

are a headboat company who strictly fishes in federal waters.  13 

I’m also a recreational fisherman who owns a private, non-14 

charterboat and so I do see both sides and the frustration going 15 

on. 16 

 17 

We need mandatory VMS and electronic logbooks to ensure more 18 

timely, accurate accountability in the for-hire sector.  Texas 19 

numbers have not fully been accounted and I understand that.  20 

When logs sit on my desk for over thirty days, I can understand 21 

the untimely manner of numbers being turned in. 22 

 23 

One log and eighty passengers on that log could throw a big blow 24 

to the numbers when the data is finally entered.  I support the 25 

suggestion of one snapper and a longer season.  This is only a 26 

short-term solution.  We need separation and real-time data. 27 

 28 

I support the closure on gags.  However, I would like to see the 29 

grouper bag limits remain the same.  Concerns regarding the 30 

amberjack season -- I would like to see the season moved 31 

forward, such as an April/May versus an opening in January. 32 

 33 

Our company is being as flexible as possible regarding the 34 

bookings for 2010.  Two years ago, I asked the Texas Sea Center 35 

to become involved with us.  We have carried multiple biologists 36 

to test and review our venting measures and to reduce the 37 

mortality and also to give back species to our community versus 38 

the state having to buy the species they need for their tanks.  39 

They have tested hundreds of fish and I believe we have donated 40 

approximately two-dozen fish to their tanks. 41 

 42 

I am a supporter of catch shares.  We need to move forward with 43 

the ACL.  Looking forward and looking long term, with the new 44 

requirements to implement the ACL and AMs, we need more 45 

flexibility to help better manage our business. 46 

 47 

For me, I think the best way to implement this is through a 48 
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catch shares program, a long-term pilot program.  I have seen 1 

the benefit from the commercial sector and I would like to have 2 

the opportunity for my vessels to fish when it is the most 3 

profitable to do so for me and to be accountable for the fish 4 

that I catch or my vessels catch.  We would be glad to have NOAA 5 

utilize our vessel at any capacity needed off the Texas coast.  6 

Thank you. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you and we have a question. 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  How many vessels? 11 

 12 

MS. CARAWAY:  I have two. 13 

 14 

MR. RIECHERS:  Evonn, certainly thanks for any help you’ve given 15 

Sea Center.  We certainly appreciate that.  The other thing -- 16 

While we certainly want to make sure we do our part with data 17 

collection as well, I want you to understand that that 18 

particular data collection that hasn’t been collected is not 19 

Parks and Wildlife.  That’s actually some of the headboat data 20 

collection program that’s run out of a different source, but we 21 

have things we need to do as well and work with you on, but I 22 

just wanted to make sure you were aware of that. 23 

 24 

MS. CARAWAY:  Correct.  Yes, that’s right.  Thank you. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Johnny Williams, followed by Gary 27 

Jarvis. 28 

 29 

MR. JOHNNY WILLIAMS:  Good afternoon.  I’m Johnny Williams with 30 

Williams Party Boats Incorporated, a third-generation party boat 31 

operator out of Galveston, Texas.  I’m here today, as everybody 32 

else is, because we’re going to have a shorter season this next 33 

year, even though we’re having an increase in TAC. 34 

 35 

I’ve been involved with this council for about twenty years.  36 

When I first started, we had a seven fish bag limit and were 37 

able to fish all year long and a thirteen-inch size limit and 38 

now we’re down to two fish and we’re probably going to have a 39 

two-month season or maybe shorter this year and a sixteen-inch 40 

size limit. 41 

 42 

As everybody can see, as our TAC, even though it’s increasing, 43 

we’re going to have fewer and fewer days on the water.  It’s 44 

becoming more and more difficult to maintain our businesses 45 

under what we’re dealing with here right now and unfortunately 46 

the fish have been well taken care of, but the fishermen, I 47 

don’t think, in the for-hire sector have been. 48 
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 1 

Why are we important?  We’re really the only avenue that the 2 

general public has to enjoy a red snapper experience, catching 3 

the red snapper.  In the twenty years I’ve been involved with 4 

the council and the National Marine Fisheries, they’ve done a 5 

few things for the for-hire sector, other than the change in bag 6 

and size limits and seasons. 7 

 8 

We required permits and you placed a moratorium on permits and 9 

eliminated retention of captain and crew limits, which extended 10 

our season a little bit, and banned fishing in state waters when 11 

federal waters were closed, which extended our season a little 12 

bit.  I appreciate your efforts.  I think we need to do more and 13 

I think more needs to be done.  We’re in a crisis mode right 14 

now. 15 

 16 

What can be done?  The first thing would be to get better 17 

science.  Of course, that’s a goal that the council has been 18 

striving for forever.  What the fishermen experience and what 19 

the model predicts seem to be very different. 20 

 21 

That aside, there are other possibilities that I think we need 22 

to examine.  We’re told we need to look outside the box and so 23 

here it goes.  Although the for-hire fishery may not have been 24 

overcapitalized in the past, I think with the abundance of the 25 

red snapper and the TAC that now it’s overcapitalized and it 26 

could be cured perhaps with a reduction in effort, such as 27 

requiring an income requirement for a permit or maybe a buy-out 28 

program, something similar to what the State of Texas did with 29 

the shrimp program there in Texas. 30 

 31 

In order for that to be effective though, first we need to 32 

examine sector separation.  Otherwise, if we did have maybe a 33 

buy-out program or something like that, a lot of the benefit to 34 

the for-hire sector would be negated by the recreational 35 

fishermen, purely recreational fishermen, getting the support of 36 

that. 37 

 38 

If you choose not to address overcapitalization directly, you 39 

could do it indirectly with an IFQ system.  I think this needs 40 

to be examined.  I think I can prosecute my business better than 41 

the federal government can.  Once again, this would require a 42 

sector separation. 43 

 44 

Also, since the party boats have been in business or they’ve 45 

been required to fill out catch reports for twenty years now, 46 

you’ve got plenty of data on us.  I think maybe you might want 47 

to pull us out or at least examine it, using us as a pilot 48 
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program.  We’ve had these catch reports for twenty years and 1 

we’ve had people on the ground for the National Marine Fisheries 2 

Service that have looked at our fish and measured them. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Johnny, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is 5 

up. 6 

 7 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for letting me speak here today.  I 8 

think that we’re all in a tough spot right now.  I think 9 

everybody is afraid of change, but I think right now I’m more 10 

afraid of not making a change.  Thank you. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Gary Jarvis, followed by Scott 13 

Hickman. 14 

 15 

MR. GARY JARVIS:  I’m here to talk about sector separation in 16 

the charter for-hire industry.  Yesterday, we saw the results of 17 

flexibility in fishery management and its results in a sector 18 

that has no accountability and continues to overfish. 19 

 20 

We’ve got approximately 852,000 pounds of increased red snapper 21 

total allowable catch, yet we will lose fourteen to twenty-three 22 

days of fishing.  We have given you a plan, the SOS plan, from 23 

charter for-hire fishermen that will stop overfishing and it 24 

will move a lot of uncountable fish into an accountable 25 

recreational fishery. 26 

 27 

Yesterday, a councilman said, in the earlier meeting, said that 28 

there will be opposition, and you will see some of that today 29 

and you already have.  I ask two questions.  When was the last 30 

time you saw 150 charter for-hire businesses and over 200 31 

documented professional fishermen from five states agree on 32 

anything, on one plan? 33 

 34 

Does the opposition have a detailed, conservation-based plan 35 

that stops overfishing, the loss of fishing days, and ensures 36 

the future for the charter for-hire industry? 37 

 38 

There’s a fear that sector separation will lead to the council 39 

forcing a charter for-hire IFQ.  Last night, our Regional 40 

Administrator let us all know that that is not allowed under 41 

federal law without charter for-hire fishermen voting by 42 

referendum to allow an LAPP as an accountability measure. 43 

 44 

There is also fear that sector separation will lead to more 45 

fleet reduction.  Sector separation is about stopping 46 

overfishing, flexibility, and fleet protection.  Under status 47 

quo, we’re having fleet reduction right now and you’ve heard 48 
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thirty or forty testimonies of that very fact, of fleet 1 

reduction. 2 

 3 

We just lost 20 to 32 percent of our fishing days after a 34 4 

percent increase in fish.  It’s getting worse under status quo 5 

and the fleet is getting smaller.  We need charter for-hire 6 

businesses to provide leadership and solutions and I hope the 7 

council will respond to that leadership. 8 

 9 

We have motions and approvals on record to this council to 10 

explore sector separation and it’s time to work and vet out the 11 

plan.  Let’s stop overfishing and let’s get accountable and stop 12 

losing fishing days and let today be the start of the prosperous 13 

future of the charter for-hire sector.  Our success will secure 14 

and protect the access of millions of anglers to the Gulf of 15 

Mexico reef fish complex and to all U.S. and foreign visitors 16 

and fishermen that cannot have the pleasure to own their own 17 

boat.  Thank you. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Gary.  Any questions?  Captain Scott 20 

Hickman, followed by Captain Mike Jennings. 21 

 22 

MR. SCOTT HICKMAN:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.  I’m 23 

Captain Scott Hickman from Galveston, Texas.  I own Circle H 24 

Outfitters and Charters.  I’m a full-time hunting and fishing 25 

guide and a charterboat operator and I wore the jersey this 26 

afternoon as a Texan.  I just wanted to say good luck to our 27 

neighbors to the east there.  It will change your luck hopefully 28 

and it will be a good Sunday. 29 

 30 

I just wanted to say that I support charter for-hire sector 31 

separation.  Let’s move forward with sector separation, along 32 

with a good data collection system as fast as we possibly can, 33 

which will help our sector and help the fishery in the 34 

management process.  I like VMS systems and I like electronic 35 

logbooks.  I think they would all work in a different tier type 36 

system to support good data collection. 37 

 38 

I definitely want the council to try to push faster and quicker 39 

for good fishery-independent data studies for red snappers and 40 

as quick as we can get with that and the charter for-hire sector 41 

could support that and we would be more than happy to donate our 42 

time, our equipment, and our resources to ensure that happens 43 

quicker.  I know I would with my boat and all the resources I 44 

have at hand. 45 

 46 

The amberjack seasons, I would definitely like a later opener 47 

for the amberjack season, either the March through November 48 
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season or even better for us would be a split season with a 1 

closure during the red snapper season, so we could make better 2 

use of our days of fishing before and after the snapper season 3 

closes.  Especially the situation we’re in this year, we’re 4 

going to close the amberjacks in the month of August and that’s 5 

going to be tough on us, not having as many species to be able 6 

to offer our customers in the months of August and September. 7 

 8 

I definitely support the motion you all did to let recreational 9 

anglers retain red drum in the EEZ.  That would be a great thing 10 

and that would also help us out as far as losing some of these 11 

days with what we’re doing in the snapper fishery and as far as 12 

an opener for the red snapper season, as a Texan, an early June 13 

opener was definitely best for us.  Anything earlier than that, 14 

it’s so windy and it would just be detrimental.  We couldn’t 15 

even hardly use the days before June and so a June/July season 16 

would definitely be better for us and I definitely support the 17 

increase in the TAC. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, sir.  Anybody have any questions? 20 

 21 

MR. GREENE:  Thank you for coming and I appreciate your 22 

comments.  One snapper or two, what’s your pleasure for the 23 

year, if you had your choice? 24 

 25 

MR. HICKMAN:  If you double my season, I could deal with one, if 26 

it was a double.  If you threw twenty days on the end of it or 27 

something like that, I would just as soon have two, but I prefer 28 

two. 29 

 30 

MR. PEARCE:  I want to know if you’ve got any Super Bowl tickets 31 

for sale.  I’m looking. 32 

 33 

MR. HICKMAN:  I don’t, but I’ll definitely be supporting the 34 

Saints.  Who dat. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Captain Mike Jennings, followed by 37 

Matt Kumm. 38 

 39 

MR. MIKE JENNINGS:  I’m Captain Mike Jennings and I own and 40 

operate Cowboy Charters and we do sportfishing out of Freeport, 41 

Texas.  I would like to talk about a couple of fisheries issues 42 

first.  On the red drum, I applaud the council for taking the 43 

steps that they did and I support the moving forward with the 44 

retaining of red drum in the EEZ, as long as the fishery can 45 

sustain it. 46 

 47 

Red snapper, I would like the council to explore the option of a 48 



75 

 

longer season on the one fish limit versus two.  I would like to 1 

see that before I told you whether I supported it.  Does it give 2 

us a third more season or does it double it? 3 

 4 

The amberjacks, personally, I would like to see a split season.  5 

I think it works real good with us in conjunction with the red 6 

snapper.  Dr. Crabtree himself brought up yesterday the problem 7 

of possible effort shift because of the skipping May.  I don’t 8 

think that’s as big of a deal, Dr. Crabtree.  In May, you’re 9 

targeting a breeding aggregate of fish.  It’s a total different 10 

fishery pre or post-spawn. 11 

 12 

As a member of the charter for-hire industry and for my own 13 

company, I feel that we need to move forward on sector 14 

separation.  I think electronic logbooks are great things, but I 15 

think we have to conjoin that with some kind of a separate ACL 16 

and we can move those things forward together in some type of a 17 

two, three, four-year rebuilding plan rather than inserting one 18 

and then coming back and looking at another one that’s going to 19 

take another two or three years to build. 20 

 21 

Sector separation I believe is the appropriate AM for the for-22 

hire sector and I would like to see the council leave it in 23 

Amendment 32, but if moving it to the ACL/AM Amendment is the 24 

better option, then if that gives us -- If it works better with 25 

our timeline or it enables the council to give it a closer look, 26 

give sector separation a closer look, then I would like to ask 27 

the council to do just that and maybe even initiate some type of 28 

an options paper that would quell some of the fears or 29 

misconceptions or misinformation that may be out there about 30 

sector separation. 31 

 32 

I’ll sum it up.  It’s easy for me to stand up here and tell you 33 

all what I’m against without giving you any kind of a reason why 34 

I’m against it.  It’s equally as easy for me to stand up here 35 

and tell you you’re putting me out of business.  I’m not going 36 

to do that. 37 

 38 

I’m just going to encourage that we move forward with sector 39 

separation and work toward making this industry accountable and 40 

give this industry a separate ACL, so that we can work towards 41 

some kind of a realistic solution.  Thank you. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you. 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for your testimony.  If it turns out 46 

that we can open the EEZ for redfish, do you think your 47 

customers would be okay substituting the catch of a redfish in 48 
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place of maybe one of the red snapper, if we had to reduce the 1 

bag limit? 2 

 3 

MR. JENNINGS:  Yes, I think so, Kay.  On the upper Texas coast, 4 

those red snapper are in the EEZ, but they move inshore as the 5 

waters get warmer and we get closer to our summer.  The time 6 

that we would target those fish would be April and May, which is 7 

giving us an early option in lieu of what we used to fish for 8 

red snapper. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Matt Kumm, followed by Dale Woodruff. 11 

 12 

MR. MATT KUMM:  My name is Matt Kumm and I’m from the Captain 13 

Noose III and I represent commercial fishermen.  I was just 14 

wanting to speak to the council about maybe like having a more 15 

open mind about the IFS, like for the mingos, the vermilion 16 

snappers. 17 

 18 

I know the dates on some of these readings they get is like a 19 

lot of these captains have been historical fishermen, doing it 20 

all their lives like myself and maybe they have some problems 21 

during those years where they use these records for like for 22 

data, but the guys that -- The vermilions is real important if 23 

like the groupers -- I’ve had bad years in those years and they 24 

really hurt me with the fishery and they need to be more open 25 

minded and like extend like the vermilion like the catch history 26 

of the entire fishery.  Like vermilions, say it’s ten to fifteen 27 

years instead of what the deal on the groupers and the snappers. 28 

 29 

Some of these guys have been doing it all their lives, but they 30 

might have had some bad years those years and when they go into 31 

IFQs on the vermilion, we’re going to be really hurting and so 32 

they need to really consider this. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions?  Dale Woodruff, 35 

followed by Daryl Carpenter. 36 

 37 

MR. DALE WOODRUFF:  Hello, my name is Dale Woodruff and I own a 38 

charterboat out of Orange Beach, Alabama.  I’m also a member of 39 

the Orange Beach Fishing Association and I am for the higher 40 

TAC.  I would like to just say a couple of things as far as data 41 

collection. 42 

 43 

We’ve got probably 95 percent of the people on a cell phone 44 

these days and what’s wrong with doing -- If you’re a 45 

recreational fisherman, you take and you text in a number and 46 

then you get a confirmation number back before you leave that 47 

morning to go fishing and then when you get back -- If you 48 
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launch at a place to pull your boat out of the water, you 1 

already have your size of your fish that you caught for that day 2 

and the species, which the National Marine Fisheries can 3 

probably print something up to do that. 4 

 5 

Have the size of the fish and how many you have written down on 6 

a piece of paper and then if you get checked, then the 7 

Conservation officer, which we get checked all the time, a lot 8 

of the recreational, they can sign off on that. 9 

 10 

National Marine Fisheries or whoever does the data will have 11 

that phone number and know that they went fishing on that day, 12 

because they have a confirmation number.  If you do not call or 13 

give a twelve-hour period and if you do not call before you go 14 

fishing, you get a ticket.  If you clean your fish before you do 15 

your size limit on your fish, you get a ticket. 16 

 17 

If the man walks up and you’re cleaning your fish and you do not 18 

have a sheet of paper showing him what you caught, he writes you 19 

a ticket and it’s free to text almost any time.  I know some 20 

people have to pay for it, but you can also have a 1-800 number 21 

just in case people don’t have a text system. 22 

 23 

I would like to ask for the council to talk about maybe shutting 24 

the season of a complete closure of the bottom, from around 25 

November 1 back around to April 1, have a five-month closure and 26 

nobody hits the bottom as far as the recreational fishermen.  27 

That way we start off with a zero TAC and a zero bycatch 28 

mortality.  It’s zero to zero and that ought to give us a few 29 

more days.  I would believe it would. 30 

 31 

I’m not opposed to smaller sized fish, but it takes -- From 32 

where I fish in my part of the Gulf, my fish are swimming on top 33 

of the water.  I can catch them and I can sight fish red snapper 34 

and I don’t have to drop down to the bottom to catch red snapper 35 

anymore.  I never have, really. 36 

 37 

The fishery as a whole -- If it takes one fish per person to 38 

give me a longer season, I’m for that right now, because I can’t 39 

catch other fish.  As far as shutting it down, that way we can 40 

manage the recreational fishermen as a whole.   41 

 42 

We can manage the amberjack as a whole and the snapper and 43 

everything as a whole instead of breaking us down to where we 44 

can’t catch a grouper this time of the month and we can’t catch 45 

amberjack this time of the month and we can only catch this at 46 

this time of the month.  Let’s do it as a whole as a whole as 47 

far as fishing and not break it all up in different sections. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions?  Daryl Carpenter, 2 

followed by David Walker. 3 

 4 

MR. DARYL CARPENTER:  Good afternoon.  I know my time is short 5 

and so I’ll try to hurry up.  Number one, I want to thank the 6 

council for the council TV.  I watched it all day yesterday and 7 

my neighbors wondered what the hell was going on when I had it 8 

piped through my surround sound at the house and everybody could 9 

hear it.  Thank you for that. 10 

 11 

I also understand that some of the most constructive 12 

conversation and so forth for those of us that can’t always be 13 

here comes in the round table discussion that Dr. Crabtree is so 14 

nice to have after a lot of these meetings.  I would like to see 15 

if the Gulf Council TV maybe could be added to that round table 16 

discussion and that would have helped me a whole lot.  I would 17 

have liked to have heard it. 18 

 19 

For starters, I want to say that on the red drum issue I do 20 

support that we open a study on it.  Let’s look at it.  I’m 21 

cautiously optimistic about it.  I would like to see the study 22 

results before we go any further. 23 

 24 

On the red snapper issue, I’m grateful to see an increase in 25 

TAC.  However, I’m disheartened to see that we’re going to lose 26 

days on it, all because of weight issues.  Our fish are getting 27 

bigger and if I heard right on the thing yesterday, Dr. Crabtree 28 

predicted that they’re estimating or predicting up to a 15 29 

percent weight increase this year, whenever they start seeing 30 

it.  All that’s going to do is it’s going to shut us down sooner 31 

on fewer fish.  It’s hurting us.   32 

 33 

On the Red Snapper AP meeting, on the recommendations that they 34 

made, I was at that meeting and I had to leave before they did 35 

it, but I’m totally against any early opening of the red snapper 36 

season and pushing it back to April as long as we still have an 37 

abbreviated season. 38 

 39 

In our part of the country, we don’t have people that -- We are 40 

a fishing destination and that’s it.  They’re coming to fish.  I 41 

feel like any closure that we have that affects our months of 42 

June and July are really going to -- It’s going to be 43 

detrimental to us.  Our vacationers, are kids are out of school.  44 

You heard my deckhand speak earlier.  He’s in school and he 45 

would lose his income if we don’t have anything that encompasses 46 

June and July. 47 

 48 
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I had some comments on the amberjack stuff, however I understand 1 

that’s still in the early workings and will come up.  On sector 2 

separation, I know it’s been a really contentious issue and as I 3 

stand right here today, I cannot support the sector separation, 4 

because I don’t know what it is.  To quite Mike Jennings, what 5 

he just said, show me what it’s going to be first. 6 

 7 

I have no problems with looking at it as a charterboat operator.  8 

Let’s look at it and see, but I can’t stand here and support it 9 

today without seeing what it’s going to be. 10 

 11 

My last -- I’m going to end on a negative and I hate to do it, 12 

but yesterday, one of the things that I was really aggravated 13 

with, as I was listening to the SSC report, is I heard several 14 

times that we did this survey or this study and these numbers 15 

did not fit into the model and so we changed the numbers. 16 

 17 

One of the things that I was able to stop what I was doing and 18 

take notes on is when they were talking about the natural 19 

mortality on under age one fish.  If I heard it right, they just 20 

completely just doubled the number on a whim because the number 21 

they initially had didn’t fit the model. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Carpenter, please wrap it up.  Thank you.  Any 24 

questions? 25 

 26 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you for your comments and I appreciate you 27 

taking the time to come from Louisiana to tell us how you feel. 28 

 29 

MR. CARPENTER:  For three minutes. 30 

 31 

MR. PEARCE:  A one fish limit, if it gave you a longer season, 32 

how would you think about that? 33 

 34 

MR. CARPENTER:  Mr. Pearce, I was confronted with that today and 35 

my initial reaction is no.  We’re already reduced to nothing.  36 

We’ve been able to hold the price of our trips by really holding 37 

our overhead, but as it is now, I try to keep my trips available 38 

to the common man.  I’m probably one of the cheapest 39 

charterboats in my region and it’s already hard to convince 40 

people to go for just two fish. 41 

 42 

MR. PEARCE:  As a follow-up also, I know you talk to a lot of 43 

recreational anglers in your area and I know we’ve had a little 44 

conversation about this, but how would they feel about a reef 45 

fish permit or a stamp that had mandatory reporting? 46 

 47 

MR. CARPENTER:  It’s starting to grow acceptance from the 48 
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knowledgeable people, the people who are taking their time to 1 

learn the process and learn what the council can control and 2 

what is deemed by law.  In fact, in the conversation we had, I 3 

have presented a plan, a plan that I previously presented to 4 

Myron and the Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries, 5 

that involves just that. 6 

 7 

It involves not just a stamp, a reef fish stamp, but a 8 

serialized reef fish stamp to go along with a serialized self-9 

clearing permit or self-clearing sheet, just like what Louisiana 10 

Wildlife and Fisheries uses in their wildlife management areas 11 

for hunting purposes. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  The natural mortality rate that you talked about, 14 

those estimates were increased because there’s a whole series of 15 

science and research that’s been done since the last assessment 16 

that indicates those natural mortality rates are higher.  It 17 

wasn’t done just because it didn’t fit the model or something. 18 

 19 

I think you may be referring to the changing of the weighting 20 

and the age composition data and I would be happy to talk to you 21 

about that. 22 

 23 

MR. CARPENTER:  Dr. Crabtree, there was a whole lot and this 24 

meeting seems to move a whole lot faster whenever you’re 25 

watching it or listening to it off of the thing and so there’s a 26 

possibility that I could have missed some of it, but I took good 27 

notes and what I heard the presenter say was that when it came 28 

to the natural mortality for the age one and under fish that it 29 

didn’t fit the model and the quote was “We did not have time to 30 

fully explore it and so we doubled it”. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  There’s a lot of research that supports them 33 

doing it and so there’s a lot more to that story than what you 34 

heard, but I would be happy to talk to you about it at the 35 

break. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  David Walker, followed by Bill Tucker.  We have 38 

about twenty-five more. 39 

 40 

MR. DAVID WALKER:  I’m David Walker from Alabama, Walker Fishing 41 

Fleet, a commercial fishery.  I would like to express my 42 

gratitude to the council for a Gulf full of red snapper.  I look 43 

forward to working with the council on all other reef fish IFQ 44 

fisheries, to create a Gulf full of all reef fish.  A catch 45 

share fishery is still the most successful fishery management 46 

plan in the Gulf.  Thank you. 47 

 48 



81 

 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Hi, David.  I also read in this same report that 1 

Mr. Zales was quoting from that there has been 70 percent less 2 

discards in the commercial fishery as well as the price has 3 

increased by 18 percent.  Is that correct? 4 

 5 

MR. WALKER:  The price increase?  Are you talking about since 6 

the implementation of the program? 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Since the IFQ, has your price increased, what 9 

you’re getting for your fish, by 18 percent? 10 

 11 

MR. WALKER:  I would say more than 18 percent. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.  Bill Tucker, followed by 14 

Richard Gibson. 15 

 16 

MR. BILL TUCKER:  My name is Bill Tucker and I’m a commercial 17 

reef fish fisherman out of Clearwater, Florida.  I want to talk 18 

on a few things here.  On Amendment 32 and the grouper fishery, 19 

I know we talked at the round table the other night and we’re in 20 

the early phases of this. 21 

 22 

I know that the current rate, according to the document, is like 23 

a four-to-one red to gag catch and it looks like we need to go 24 

to a sixteen-to-one gag catch and I really think that the IFQ 25 

fishery and the IFQ program will allow us to do that.  I don’t 26 

think we need to tweak it an awful lot.  I think we need to let 27 

the program move. 28 

 29 

We’ll be fishing for what catch shares we have when they’re 30 

allocated.  The incentive will be for fishermen to fish for the 31 

catch shares that they have at the time.  I don’t know that we 32 

have a problem with that.  It hasn’t manifested itself.  Let’s 33 

pay attention and let’s watch it and let’s see how it goes.  34 

Maybe we can build in some fudge factors with the difference 35 

between the catch target and the catch limit, but I think we 36 

ought to let the program work. 37 

 38 

We also have the Edges closure that’s coming in and we don’t 39 

know what effect that’s going to have on the reduction in gag 40 

catch.  Let’s look at these as we work through the document and 41 

consider the possibilities and just be open to them. 42 

 43 

On the red drum, I support a limited opening or the opening of a 44 

limited red drum fishery in the EEZ to collect some data on that 45 

fishery.  It seems like it’s an underutilized resource. 46 

 47 

On the recreational sector and what the recreational sector is 48 



82 

 

going through, and I hear the testimony here, it is 1 

heartbreaking.  There’s a lot of recreational fishermen out 2 

there and everybody wants to get a piece of the pie.  The pie is 3 

only so big though and we have to keep within these limits. 4 

 5 

These are overfished stocks and the only way it’s going to get 6 

better is if the fish stock grows and so we have to keep within 7 

these limits.  If you’ve got 250,000 fishermen and two-and-a-8 

half million pounds of fish, that’s only ten pounds per man per 9 

year and so the numbers are bleak to start with. 10 

 11 

If we were in a commercial fishery, we would be looking at 12 

things like license limitation and we would be trying to take 13 

some licenses away, which is exactly what we faced in the 14 

grouper and the red snapper fisheries.  We start pulling people 15 

out because there’s too much capacity.  We’re not even talking 16 

about that in the recreational sector and these are hard cuts. 17 

 18 

I was never -- In the beginning, I had no use for catch shares 19 

and it’s not until you get to the point where the alternatives 20 

are so poor that you start considering what alternatives you 21 

haven’t explored. 22 

 23 

That guy that was talking about the text messages and his couple 24 

of things, this guy is thinking outside the box and he is 25 

thinking and he’s considering the alternatives, because he knows 26 

how bleak it is.  When you have a group of people who are 27 

looking at sector separation because they want to cut themselves 28 

out of that pack, we need to be looking at this. 29 

 30 

If these guys want more days, give them a catch tag where they 31 

can fish at whatever days they want, but we’ve got to get out of 32 

this box.  My time is up. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  Any questions?  Richard 35 

Gibson, followed by Mike Nugent. 36 

 37 

MR. RICHARD GIBSON:  My name is Richard Gibson and I’m a third-38 

generation commercial fisherman and I would just like to make a 39 

statement as far as the IFQs.  I believe that you should use the 40 

same years that you used on the snapper for the IFQs for the b-41 

liners and the reason why I say that and not only just for b-42 

liners, but in my eyes for all species, is because you have a 43 

great deal of people that were fishing hard for other species in 44 

those years. 45 

 46 

If you swap the years around, you keep moving the years around, 47 

certain people that are working hard to catch that species, if 48 
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you move the years around, they’re going to miss what they 1 

should have got for some of those years.  I don’t know if that 2 

makes any sense to you or not. 3 

 4 

I’m basically saying that you should keep the years when you go 5 

to the IFQ for the b-liner the same as it was for the snapper.  6 

I would like to ask a question or two, if that’s possible, to 7 

anybody that might be willing. 8 

 9 

Me and many other people would like to know -- I must have been 10 

obviously fishing, but at what date did you all send out a 11 

letter to every reef permit holder saying that your next ten 12 

years is going to be your history for this fishery?   13 

 14 

Everybody I’ve talked to said they missed it and maybe we were 15 

all fishing and not at these meetings and trying to survive, but 16 

I don’t know.  Can anybody answer that question?  Nobody on this 17 

council, the chairman or anybody, can tell me?  Maybe I’m not 18 

supposed to ask questions, but I’ve talked to a lot of reef 19 

permit holders and everybody is -- We feel the IFQs are great, 20 

but -- 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, would you address that? 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not sure exactly what you’re referring to in 25 

terms of a letter, but I would be happy -- When we finish up 26 

here if you’ll find, me I would be happy to talk to you about 27 

that. 28 

 29 

MR. GIBSON:  Any idea how long that will be? 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  It will be however long people take to finish up. 32 

 33 

MR. GIBSON:  I understand.  There’s just a lot of people that 34 

they’re in favor of IFQs, but they feel like they weren’t 35 

properly informed that in your next ten years you need to build 36 

a history on whatever fishery you want to participate in.  I 37 

appreciate your time. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Mike Nugent, followed by Jim 40 

Zurbrick. 41 

 42 

MR. MIKE NUGENT:  Mike Nugent, charterboat owner/operator from 43 

Aransas Pass, Texas.  I represent the membership of Port Aransas 44 

Boatmen.  The first comment is just me and it’s not our 45 

association, but I would support that split season on the 46 

amberjack and I’ll see what our association will further down 47 

the line. 48 
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 1 

Starting out with sector separation, the first thing I would say 2 

is I was under the impression that overfishing already stopped 3 

and so I would have to ask Gary, but either SOS is fast as hell 4 

or they retroactively introduced it or put it in or something, 5 

but I thought overfishing was already stopped in red snapper. 6 

 7 

Our association is opposed to sector separation and I think from 8 

testimony and from the scoping meetings and from website forums 9 

and everything else there’s a lot of people who are opposed to 10 

it right now. 11 

 12 

One of the things I would like to seek clarification on, when 13 

you all get around to it on sector separation, is this 14 

misconception that in order to get good data and get good 15 

reporting and have electric logbook reporting that we have to 16 

have sector separation.  Our association strongly supports 17 

electric logbook reporting.  We’re opposed to VMS on 18 

charterboats, but we strongly support electronic logbooks and 19 

you have that without having anything to do with sector 20 

separation. 21 

 22 

To me, you’re putting the cart before the horse.  You don’t need 23 

to separate until you get some years of catch records for the 24 

charterboat industry. 25 

 26 

Another thing that we’re opposed about the sector separation is 27 

that in order to make the numbers work, it’s going to require 28 

fleet reduction in the for-hire industry and to me and our 29 

association, everybody that’s a federally-permitted vessel at 30 

this point came into a limited access system and they qualified 31 

and they’re members in it and they’ve got a permit.  They’re 32 

just as entitled as the next man to stay in this system and we 33 

should learn how to all go together on it. 34 

 35 

The last thing I would say, before I run out of time, is that -- 36 

I said it in Corpus Christi and if you’re really interested in 37 

seeing what the for-hire industry and how we feel about catch 38 

shares and how we feel about sector separation, and it’s a lot 39 

cheaper than a lot of the things you’re doing, is send a letter 40 

or a postcard to all the permit holders and find out.  Then you 41 

don’t have to depend on yahoos like me coming up here and 42 

telling you one way and other yahoos telling you another way.  43 

Why don’t you just ask everybody and let’s get it settled?  44 

Thank you very much. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike. 47 

 48 
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MR. TEEHAN:  Mike, thanks for coming out and your comments.  1 

Just for your information, the next council meeting will be in 2 

Galveston in April and so if you could get us that information 3 

about amberjack, it would probably be very helpful. 4 

 5 

MR. NUGENT:  We’ll have an association stance by then. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks again, Mike.  Jim Zurbrick, followed by 8 

Richard Keough. 9 

 10 

MR. JIM ZURBRICK:  Thank you, council members, for allowing me 11 

to speak in front of you.  I’m Jim Zurbrick from Steinhatchee, 12 

Florida, and I represent many of the commercial folks there in 13 

Steinhatchee and charter guys in Steinhatchee. 14 

 15 

First off and one of the most important items for me is the 16 

sector separation.  I’m fully in agreement with a sector 17 

separation.  You’ve got licensed charterboat guys that they have 18 

permits.  The captain and crew is exempt from having bag limits.  19 

If a referendum proves that they want to go this way, let them 20 

go that way. 21 

 22 

You’ll have VMS reporting and you’ll have good accountability 23 

and that’s a word that everyone should be sleeping with every 24 

night.  It should be written on your mirror at your house, 25 

because that’s what it’s all about, sustainable and 26 

accountability. 27 

 28 

Also, the fish traps.  Anybody, any council member, that doesn’t 29 

keep an open mind about that fish trap shouldn’t be on this 30 

council.  It might be a bad taste in your mouth and it might be 31 

a terrible memory.  It was to me, but this is a new trap and I’m 32 

surprised at the Pew Organization.  I’m glad they’re not against 33 

some kind of a cancer cure.  They don’t even want to open the 34 

talk, the communication, and have the studies done.  This is 35 

wrong. 36 

 37 

We can hate it, but let’s be honest and give it a chance, 38 

because if this was to work, this will help without putting a 39 

lot of folks out of business.  As bad as that taste is in your 40 

mouth, please bear with it. 41 

 42 

Also, I am a spear fisherman.  That’s what I did for a good 43 

number of years, but as I’m getting older, I am rod and reef 44 

fishing more.  I think that the spear fishermen, that small 45 

sector, that small percentage of bycatch that they don’t have, 46 

needs to be taken into account when we come up with reductions 47 

in this gag grouper fishery. 48 
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 1 

You’ve got a percentage, even though it’s small, but we did take 2 

away captain and crew because of a 1 percent savings for the 3 

stock, for the quota.  Keep that in mind going forward, that the 4 

spear fishermen, that little bit of bycatch they don’t have. 5 

 6 

Also, for whatever it’s worth, the gospel -- Has somebody got a 7 

Bible?  Three spear fishing boats operating from New Port Richey 8 

all the way to Cedar Key are seeing more gag grouper, and you 9 

know how these cycles work, in the seventy to eighty foot than 10 

they’ve ever seen in ten years.  Guys who are actively the spear 11 

fishermen -- Bob, probably he can pull up some of that data. 12 

 13 

Now, there isn’t a lot on the quota sheet.  If you’re looking 14 

for an IFQ, not a lot of it is appearing, because the weather 15 

has been so bad.  This is one of the worst Januaries in eleven 16 

years a far as wave height, but they are seeing fish like 17 

they’ve never seen. 18 

 19 

Now, that’s good.  Do I think the gags need work?  Yes, without 20 

a doubt.  Does it need a reduction of 70 percent?  I don’t think 21 

so, but I know that it does need some work and thank you. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim.  Any questions for Jim?  24 

Richard, followed by Chris Niquet. 25 

 26 

MR. RICHARD KEOUGH:  My name is Richard Keough and I’m a captain 27 

of a private sport fishing boat.  I used to be a charterboat 28 

operator.  The first thing I want to say is I’m against the 29 

sector separation, unless you all can show me in black and white 30 

that it’s not going to be detrimental to the recreational 31 

fishermen. 32 

 33 

I also want to touch on a couple of things about what they had 34 

said on the reporting.  I don’t think it’s flawed data they 35 

have.  They just don’t have the data, on the recreational boats 36 

especially, but some kind of license, a ticket, a stamp, 37 

whatever, serial numbered, where you could keep up with it on a 38 

daily report and make it mandatory to report, which may be hard 39 

to do, but that’s better than what you’ve got. 40 

 41 

One other thing is the seasons are getting so short now and have 42 

you all ever considered splitting the season up and like opening 43 

it on weekends and closing it during the week and opening it on 44 

weekends and spread it out a little bit that way?  That’s all 45 

I’ve got to say and thank you. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions?  Chris Niquet, 48 
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followed by Bart Niquet.  Are either Chris or Bart here?  1 

They’re gone?  Henry Hunt, followed by Michael Sullivan. 2 

 3 

MR. HUNT:  My name is Henry Hunt and I’ve been up here before.  4 

I would like to say that I’m against sector separation and the 5 

fish shares.  A question I brought up at the scoping meeting in 6 

Panama City was the people that are highly motivated for this 7 

sector separation, as well as catch shares, a lot of them have 8 

commercial IFQ red snappers. 9 

 10 

I asked the question of is it possible somewhere in the fishery 11 

management plan that these fish out of the commercial sector 12 

would be versified and be able to be used in the recreational 13 

sector at some given time that these people with these 14 

commercial IFQs, if they were in the charter industry, could use 15 

them for that purpose?  16 

 17 

The statement made was it’s very possible.  Now, there’s a lot 18 

of people that are for catch shares.  I don’t know how many 19 

actually have IFQ snapper shares, but for me, I don’t have any 20 

and so I see that somebody that does have some and they’re 21 

motivated for pushing this thing, it benefits them in the 22 

possibility that they could sell these shares as well as use 23 

them in the charter business that I’m also in. 24 

 25 

If they were docked near me or something, then they would be 26 

more competitive.  They could run a lot more days out of the 27 

year than I could and so I don’t feel that this thing is 28 

justifiable until you get the data right and the information, 29 

whether it’s coupons or stamps or permits or what have you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Henry, your time is up.  Thank you.  Michael 32 

Sullivan, followed by John Law. 33 

 34 

MR. SULLIVAN:  I too have already been up here.  I’m against 35 

catch shares and sector separation and I’ll keep it short. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  John Law.  Jeremy Brooks.  Mark 38 

Kelley, followed by Louis Barberi again.  Gone?  Then Michael 39 

Pitts will follow Mark Kelley. 40 

 41 

MR. KELLEY:  I’m Mark Kelley from Panama City.  I’m against 42 

catch shares and I’m against sector separation.  As far as on 43 

the grouper, I know we’re fixing to take this massive cut and we 44 

need whatever it takes to keep us in business, to keep us open, 45 

if it’s a boat limit or cutting the per person way down to one 46 

on gags.  I’m for anything so when that phone rings I can say 47 

yes, we can catch them, instead of putting a closed sign for 48 
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business up.   1 

 2 

This trap situation, I’m not so certain about.  You worked so 3 

hard to get rid of them and now you’re entertaining the thought 4 

of bringing them back.  I’m surprised we haven’t thought about 5 

bringing the purse seiners back, too.  I think that pretty much 6 

says it all. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Michael Pitts.  Bill Coursen.  9 

Tracy Redding, we’ll hold out on her.  Captain Mike Eller. 10 

 11 

MR. ELLER:  My comments on 32B, the scoping document, our 12 

association voted the other night -- Actually, we had a pretty 13 

heated debate a couple of nights on sector separation.  While a 14 

lot of people were very worried about sector separation because 15 

they thought that once you split the quota that everybody is 16 

going to get a lot less time on the water, there was also a lot 17 

of discussion about being lumped into the group of anglers that 18 

nobody is making any effort to actually count their fish. 19 

 20 

We all know the problems with the data and we all know the 21 

problems with collecting data on private boats and yesterday, 22 

which was probably the most depressing day I’ve ever sat in on 23 

committee or council meetings in the ten or fifteen years I’ve 24 

been here. 25 

 26 

It seems that there is nothing on the horizon to count private 27 

recreational fish.  We’re going to have to work through the five 28 

states and we all understand that.  Stamps and tags and all 29 

that, which are basically taxes, new taxes, are very worthy 30 

goals, but they’re also goals that are going to take some time 31 

and that’s if we don’t get a big fight out of the CCA and if we 32 

don’t get a big fight out of the RFA and just private 33 

recreational anglers in the first place. 34 

 35 

Yes, we want to count our fish on charterboats and I think that 36 

the private recreational people want to count their fish too, 37 

but I’m worried that they’re not willing to do what it takes.  38 

 39 

When it comes to sector separation, what I see in the future is 40 

I see that if we stay together, the people that are on 41 

charterboats that are working very hard to get their fish 42 

counted are going to suffer the same fate as the recreational 43 

anglers that don’t have any way of counting their fish.   44 

 45 

Tags and endorsements and all this is the direction we need to 46 

be going to, but I’m worried that my industry is going to die on 47 

the vine before we get there.  There does not seem to be the 48 
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political will and certainly not the money there to get to 1 

counting fish on private boats. 2 

 3 

We left sector separation on the table.  We did not vote on it 4 

and it’s an ongoing debate.  I still personally am very much up 5 

in the air with it, but after listening to what I heard 6 

yesterday, I’m starting to see that I really have no choice.  I 7 

want to find the cure for all of the recreational anglers, but I 8 

don’t see that happening and I don’t see the political will or 9 

the money involved to make that happen. 10 

 11 

I think that eventually we’re probably going to have to look 12 

very hard at sector separation, because if they can’t fix the 13 

problem for all of us, then we probably need to try to start 14 

fixing the problem for those of us that we can.   15 

 16 

There’s obviously a lot more, but when it comes to fish traps, I 17 

gave testimony on 32B that I think that we should at least look 18 

at them possibly with the new technology and possibly with the 19 

VMS.  I don’t think that we should automatically rule the gear 20 

out.  Thank you. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike.  Any questions?  Tracy 23 

Redding, followed by Captain Mike Thierry. 24 

 25 

MS. TRACY REDDING:  I’m Tracy Redding.  I own and operate AAA 26 

Charters, a charter booking service for boats along the Alabama 27 

Gulf Coast.  I would like to thank the Gulf Council and staff 28 

for the opportunity to give public testimony today and 29 

continuing to hold evening question and answer sessions. 30 

 31 

My testimonies over the last couple of years have remained 32 

fairly consistent and my message remains focused on sector 33 

separation, real-time mandatory electronic logbooks, and 34 

mandatory VMS units in the charterboat fleet. 35 

 36 

In my opinion, sector separation is goal number one.  If this 37 

issue is dropped from Amendment 32 and remains in the Generic 38 

Annual Catch Limit and Accountability Measures Amendment, I 39 

would like to ask that the Data Collection AP be convened 40 

between this meeting and the next council meeting in Galveston 41 

to continue discussions of what, when, who, where, how sector 42 

separation may be achieved and begin to address the more 43 

specifics of the possible management tool and the implications. 44 

 45 

I would also like to see the VMS AP meet to discuss how that 46 

system is working and how that makes sense, if it makes sense, 47 

the pros and cons in the for-hire sector. 48 
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 1 

I completely support the move to open red drum in the EEZ, with 2 

possibly a maximum of one red drum per recreational angler and 3 

maybe a maximum per boat limit.  I support further studies 4 

regarding fish traps.  I’m solution minded and as a short-term 5 

band-aid, let’s look at a one fish bag limit for red snapper 6 

this season, to extend the access to the resource for our for-7 

hire captains and the recreational anglers they carry. 8 

 9 

I would also support the council considering the amberjack 10 

season before and after red snapper and then one other thing 11 

that I’ve heard several times over the last couple of months 12 

that I’ve been in all five of the coastal states is the idea of 13 

let’s look at the possibility of closing all of the bottom 14 

fishing for one brief period.   15 

 16 

Maybe that would be January or February, whenever the weather is 17 

the roughest.  Let’s look at what would happen if we stopped all 18 

the bottom fish for a brief period and gave all the species a 19 

break at the same time and lowered our mortality and dead 20 

discards and all of that.  That’s it and thank you very much for 21 

the opportunity today. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tracy. 24 

 25 

MS. MORRIS:  Thank you, Tracy.  I too am anxious for the Data 26 

Collection AP to start having meetings and we were hoping to 27 

have some guidance from them prior to June of this year and so I 28 

hope that we can schedule those meetings and get everybody 29 

together to start working on those important issues. 30 

 31 

MS. REDDING:  Not fishing season, please. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks again, Tracy.  Mike Thierry, followed by 34 

Jim Clements. 35 

 36 

MR. THIERRY:  Catch shares, I can see catch shares just being a 37 

nightmare for a charterboat guy.  I’m going to be able to charge 38 

Don over here $10,000 for a trip because he’s a wealthy guy and 39 

wants to entertain his customer or this gentleman over here 40 

brings his poor family down and has worked all year to go on 41 

vacation and what am I going to charge him?  It’s going to make 42 

the price of charters go up if I have to buy or lease shares to 43 

stay in business.  That’s just going to add to the cost. 44 

 45 

I think it’s going to be really bad for the consumers.  I come 46 

in with a really nice of catch of pretty red snapper and my 47 

competitor over here didn’t do the IFQ thing or whatever, the 48 
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shares, that day and his people can look at me and they’ll want 1 

to go with me next time.  They’re going to be aggravated, 2 

besides being mad, I would think. 3 

 4 

How am I going to -- Am I going to say this is a big company 5 

here and say for five fish a person you give me $5,000?  That’s 6 

what it’s going to come down to and I don’t think that’s very 7 

good for the consumer.  It’s going to make our business very 8 

difficult and I don’t think it’s necessary at all and I don’t 9 

know if anybody has mentioned that.  I really don’t support the 10 

sector separation until I know more about it.  I’m not saying I 11 

would go one way or the other.   12 

 13 

Years ago, we kept talking about there wasn’t any big fish in 14 

the Gulf and that we needed these big fish for more eggs.  Well, 15 

now we’ve got the bigger fish and are we getting credit for all 16 

these eggs, the five, the fifteen-pound fish that we’ve got now 17 

that we supposedly didn’t have before?  Are we getting credit 18 

for these? 19 

 20 

On the amberjack, I say we just keep a season as long as 21 

possible.  I prefer a larger size limit on them.  The 22 

commercials I believe is thirty-six.  Go to a thirty-two or a 23 

thirty-four-inch fish.  The fish live and they do good.  We 24 

can’t sell a trip if we’ve got nothing to sell. 25 

 26 

I know I would like to see a buyout in the charter industry.  27 

This would help fishermen that want to get out and it would 28 

reduce effort.  To me, it would be a win/win situation.  I feel 29 

like we need to count fish by numbers and not by pounds.  30 

Somebody correct me if I’m wrong on this. 31 

 32 

I remember Phil Goodyear years ago said this was what we should 33 

do, count the number of fish, when he started the model.  Is 34 

that correct?  I think Phil pushed for that.  Don’t quote me on 35 

that, but my memory -- It was a long time ago, but I think he 36 

wanted that. 37 

 38 

You were asking about one or two fish and how long of a season 39 

will we have with one fish would be my question?  Would it 40 

double the number of days?  I guess my time is up and thank you 41 

all.  Any questions? 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike.  Jim Clements, followed by Pam 44 

Anderson. 45 

 46 

MR. JIM CLEMENTS:  My name is Jim Clements and I’m a member of 47 

the GFA as well as the Shareholder’s Alliance.  I would like to 48 
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introduce a new idea for an alternative for Amendment 32 and 1 

that is the use of multiuse shares for shallow water and 2 

deepwater in the IFQ grouper program. 3 

 4 

Multiuse shares are already in place in the present IFQ program.  5 

Because gag grouper are overfished, the use of multi shares for 6 

gag grouper should be kept or, if anything, increased.  When you 7 

set the TAC for gags, it obviously needs to be lowered.  When a 8 

fisherman exhausts his regular gag shares, he will use the multi 9 

shares.  If he can use his multi shares for shallow water and 10 

deepwater, which are more valuable fish, by the way, the catch 11 

of gags will be reduced. 12 

 13 

If the multi shares are increased, the catch of gag and the red 14 

grouper will be further reduced and the shallow water and the 15 

deepwater dead discards will be reduced.  When any species is in 16 

trouble in the future, multiuse shares for that species should 17 

be increased. 18 

 19 

This could create an additional buffer for the gag quota.  This 20 

is a win/win situation.  I’ve talked with Andy and he thinks 21 

this is feasible.  I’ve talked with Shep and there’s likely no 22 

need for a referendum.  Amendment 32 is the proper place to 23 

introduce this idea. 24 

 25 

As I’ve said before, it’s never too late for a good idea.  26 

Please introduce this in Amendment 32 as an alternative and let 27 

the council vote it up or down.  Thank you for your time and 28 

since this is a new idea, I would appreciate some questions. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim.  Any questions for Jim? 31 

 32 

MS. MORRIS:  Jim, just go over again how it would work.  Could 33 

you please explain one more time how it would work? 34 

 35 

MR. CLEMENTS:  How which would work? 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  How your system would work. 38 

 39 

MS. MORRIS:  What you just suggested. 40 

 41 

MR. CLEMENTS:  The whole thing?  Well, when you increase the 42 

multiuse shares, I’m going to use those multiuse shares when I 43 

get through my regular shares and if I use it on deepwater, I’m 44 

reducing the discards, dead discards, because they come up dead.  45 

Also, with shallow-water, I’m reducing the dead discards and 46 

basically it’s the scamp, because they’re caught in the same 47 

place that the gags are. 48 
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 1 

It’s a great reduction in discards and you don’t need to -- Red 2 

grouper need to be protected also and the way it’s set up now is 3 

when your gag groupers are caught and you get to your multi, 4 

you’re going to use them for red grouper only and you’re hurting 5 

that species. 6 

 7 

Why not protect the species that’s in trouble, which is the gag, 8 

and harvest the species that are not in trouble for the public 9 

to eat, which is the deepwater and the shallow-water?  I know 10 

sometimes I don’t come across what I want to say.  I know what I 11 

want to say, but I appreciate the question. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim.  Any other questions for Jim?  14 

Pam Anderson, followed by John Schmidt. 15 

 16 

MS. ANDERSON:  Hello again.  I’ve attended the workshops and 17 

meetings regarding the catch shares and yes, we do need to be 18 

responsible and protect our resource and we need to give fishery 19 

managers tools to preserve this resource, but we don’t believe 20 

catch shares is the way to do that. 21 

 22 

They limit access to the fishery for many by adding costs to 23 

their fishing trips.  Our natural resource should not be bought 24 

and sold.  It belongs to all the citizens. 25 

 26 

You hear testimony for catch shares from some commercial 27 

operators and dual permit holders, like part of the SOS group 28 

and the environmental groups, but you are hearing a lot of 29 

comments against the catch shares from the rest of the 30 

recreational sector and I’ll remind you that there are 1,150 in 31 

that for-hire sector and there are 150 in the SOS group and so 32 

it is a substantial number that are not standing for the sector 33 

separation as well as catch shares. 34 

 35 

The sector separation will only divide our sector and it will 36 

lead to a reduced for-hire industry and competition for quota.  37 

We do not need the sector separation.   38 

 39 

I do support Mr. Ben Fairey’s comment and others concerning 40 

counting fish in our recreational fishery instead of pounds.  As 41 

the fishery grows, the snapper are bound to increase in size.  42 

That’s being held against the recreational sector. 43 

 44 

I am in agreement with Bob Zales and Scott Robson and others 45 

about the budget information on electronic logbooks.  We need 46 

that program to get correct data to the scientists.  It’s what 47 

you all have told us you needed and that’s what we agreed that 48 
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would help this system go forward to get this data right and now 1 

it seems that that plug might be pulled out from under us and 2 

that’s not right to do that.  It causes a lot of mistrust and I 3 

think that it’s very distressing. 4 

 5 

I agree with Mike Nugent’s comments about sector separation and 6 

I think that as people realize -- They’ve yet to realize what 7 

that’s going to mean to their businesses.  They are going to 8 

continue to drop out of the group that is for it.  We embrace 9 

better data and we want fair regulations and we believe that 10 

united we’ll fish.  Thank you. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Pam.  John Schmidt, followed by Tom 13 

Becker. 14 

 15 

MR. JOHN SCHMIDT:  Good afternoon, everybody.  I’m John Schmidt 16 

from Palm Harbor, Florida.  I’m a commercial fisherman.  I want 17 

to start by thanking the Southeast Regional Office and the 18 

Office of Law Enforcement for doing what I think is a great job 19 

in getting the new grouper IFQ program up and running. 20 

 21 

I know there’s bugs with it and some frustrations, but it’s a 22 

huge project and I really feel that they’ve done an outstanding 23 

job in the few weeks that they’ve had. 24 

 25 

I want to make a couple of comments about Amendment 32.  One 26 

thing that I hope the Gulf Council will take into account when 27 

they make their policies for Amendment 32 is the effects that 28 

will occur because of Amendment 31.  Over half of the longline 29 

fleet will be forced to fish a different way and that will not 30 

be efficient for them and so there’s going to be a reduction in 31 

catches there. 32 

 33 

For the remainder of the longline permits, they’ll be able, if 34 

the regulations stay as they are, they’ll be able to fish in 35 

areas where my permits have caught over 95 percent red grouper 36 

and so it’s going to enable some solutions to the gag problem as 37 

we go forward. 38 

 39 

The fishery, as I see it going forward, is that we don’t want to 40 

catch gags.  We don’t want to catch red snapper unless we have 41 

quota and we don’t want to catch turtles, dolphins, or sharks.  42 

We just want to catch red grouper with the lowest waste 43 

possible.  That’s good for every one of us, because the fishery 44 

rebuilds faster. 45 

 46 

Fifteen years ago, I was against traps too, but a lot has 47 

changed and under the present circumstances, a new version of 48 
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trap can be a real asset to the fishery and here’s the reasons 1 

why.  This new trap is an ecofriendly device and it has a ton of 2 

promise.  I think you’ve already heard it was a World Wildlife 3 

Fund Competition finalist. 4 

 5 

It has sacrificial zinc releases, two doors, to guard against 6 

abandonment.  The doors are also made of bare metal as an extra 7 

protection and a trap could be made more selective than any 8 

other fishing method by varying the size and shape of the 9 

openings.  Templates can even be used to select the species. 10 

 11 

What I didn’t know about traps is that the scientific evidence 12 

is that bycatch mortality and barotrauma injury is significantly 13 

lower than any -- 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  John, you’ve got to wrap it up.  Your time is 16 

up. 17 

 18 

MR. SCHMIDT:  -- than any other fishing method.  I guess there’s 19 

a lot of other benefits that I don’t have time to get into, but 20 

I want to say that in the interests of reducing bycatch and 21 

enabling the gag fishery to recover as soon as possible that we 22 

need to expedite this proposal rather than -- 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  John, I need to ask you to finish up. 25 

 26 

MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, I’m done. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions for John?  Thank you, John.  I 29 

appreciate your patience with us.  Tom Becker, followed by 30 

William Hagendorfer. 31 

 32 

MR. TOM BECKER:  Good afternoon.  I’m Tom Becker, President of 33 

the Mississippi Charterboat Captains Association.  I would have 34 

brought my official letter for the council.  We held a meeting 35 

last night on the catch shares and sector separation and a few 36 

other things, but I had the mispleasure of having to go fishing 37 

this morning and I had ten gentlemen that are on their way to 38 

Iraq in two days. 39 

 40 

We voted last night at the association that we are definitely 41 

against sector separation.  One of the reasons we looked at it 42 

is every time somebody gets separated, they conquer them and we 43 

don’t want that to happen to either sector. 44 

 45 

The data doesn’t give you a complete picture of who caught what 46 

right now.  There’s no logbooks.  I want to thank NOAA.  They 47 

finally listened after ten years of asking.  We have five boats 48 
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in Mississippi that are not classified, quote, headboats, but 1 

they can carry a total of eighty-eight passengers -- It’s more 2 

than that, I’m sorry.  I didn’t get the exact number of one 3 

boat, but one is brand new, but we don’t deal them that way.   4 

 5 

We deal them as a charterboat.  You bring your friends that you 6 

want on the boat and we can go out there and catch a lot of fish 7 

and we do, but we have never been -- When we come in, once or 8 

twice I may see a man to go through my catch and he’s from the 9 

Department of Marine Resources and he does a fine job, but it’s 10 

not that often.  A lot of times, I’m coming in late. 11 

 12 

On the catch shares, that is the wagon that they put $50 million 13 

into and what is going to pull that wagon?  The data that we 14 

have today?  No.  Let’s look at this maybe five years and let’s 15 

get the MRFSS data in here and the logbook programs and let’s 16 

look at it then.  Maybe it’s something we’ll go with, but we’re 17 

deadly against it.  I want to thank you.  Any questions? 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tom.  Any questions for Captain 20 

Becker?  William Hagendorfer, followed by Scott Robson. 21 

 22 

MR. WILLIAM HAGENDORFER:  I’m William Hagendorfer and I’ve got a 23 

commercial fishing boat.  I run other people’s boats all my life 24 

and I worked hard to get to where I could by my own self a boat 25 

and unfortunately, there was only two months left in the 26 

qualifying period for red snapper when I accomplished my goal. 27 

 28 

Therefore, I received 184 pounds of red snapper per year and 29 

each trip I go, I kill anywhere from 200 to 500 pounds of red 30 

snapper, attempting to catch vermilion snapper only.  The 31 

problem is that red snapper really like vermilion snapper and 32 

they bite them. 33 

 34 

I catch them and most of the ones I catch are twenty, thirty, 35 

forty-pound fish and they blow up something fierce.  Their 36 

scales stick out and I’ve tried everything I can, but there’s 37 

nothing I can do to save their lives.   38 

 39 

My proposal is to add some part of the total allowable catch for 40 

a bycatch, not to exceed a certain amount of my catch, so all 41 

these fish I’m killing while you all are saving them and 42 

creating more and more snapper out there and more and more I 43 

catch that are dead, but not counted against the quota.  These 44 

fish you all are saving, I’m just killing them. 45 

 46 

If you put aside maybe 5 percent of the total allowable catch 47 

for us people that are trying to catch vermilion snapper, to 48 
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have something to do with these fish.  To buy shares is $3.00 a 1 

pound and I can’t afford to buy those shares and put those fish 2 

in the box and me only get $1.00 a pound and somebody get $3.00 3 

a pound.  I just have to throw them overboard.  I have no 4 

choice. 5 

 6 

With the grouper IFQ, I received maybe enough to get by with 7 

just not targeting them at all and just catching what I catch on 8 

accident, but some of my groupers are red groupers that don’t 9 

live out here off of Mobile very much and I would like to be 10 

able to turn some of those over to scamps, rather than gags, 11 

because to catch gags I have to move in shallower and I catch 12 

even more red snapper then.  Thank you all for your patience and 13 

staying with us so late today and if there’s any questions, I 14 

would be glad to answer them. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you for staying so late, too. 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for coming.  I have a couple of 19 

questions.  How long have you been fishing and what areas do you 20 

normally fish?  I’m not asking you to give me your loran 21 

readings, but I’m just asking about what depth of water do you 22 

normally fish when you’re catching your vermilion? 23 

 24 

MR. HAGENDORFER:  I normally fish in like fifty to sixty 25 

fathoms.  There’s a good many up in forty fathoms, but there’s a 26 

lot of snapper up there and so I’ve moved further offshore to 27 

get out of them the best I could.  I fish in the Section 11.1 28 

mostly and just the very west end of 10.1. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Just one follow-up.  11.1 to 10.1 and I’m 31 

familiar with around the 10 or 11 area that you’re talking 32 

about.  What percent -- You’re fishing really deep water it 33 

sounds like for the vermilion and percentagewise, throwing back 34 

snapper to catch your vermilion in that depth of water, what’s 35 

the ratio?  How many snapper do you think you’re throwing back 36 

compared to how many pounds of vermilion you’re landing? 37 

 38 

MR. HAGENDORFER:  On an average trip, it’s around 10 percent of 39 

my catch is red snapper that I’m throwing back overboard and so 40 

my average trip is around 3,000 pounds of vermilion and I throw 41 

back around 300 pounds of red snapper most all the time.  I’m 42 

good about filling out my throwbacks and so it’s all in them 43 

throwbacks.  Sometimes maybe a thousand pounds gets thrown back, 44 

but other times, maybe not as many. 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  How long did you say that you’ve been commercial 47 

fishing? 48 
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 1 

MR. HAGENDORFER:  All my life. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Thank you for staying and making your comment.  I can 4 

understand why there might be some equity concerns about the guy 5 

on the hill getting three bucks a pound and you getting a 6 

dollar, but could you help me understand why, from your 7 

perspective, just pure business, why getting that dollar is not 8 

better than getting nothing and wasting the fish?  It seems to 9 

me that yes, it’s something and that maybe it’s not fair, but 10 

pure business, just look at the dollar side of it, a dollar 11 

beats the heck out of zero and throwing that fish back. 12 

 13 

MR. HAGENDORFER:  Because I have a small box, I can only hold so 14 

many pounds of fish and if I throw them back and just stay 15 

another day, I can get $3.00 a pound for my mingos that I put in 16 

that same ice.  Thank you for your question. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Scott Robson, followed by Ben 19 

Fairey.   20 

 21 

MR. ROBSON:  Good afternoon, council members.  Scott Robson, Co-22 

President of the Destin Charterboat Association and charterboat 23 

operator.  We would like to see the council use the ten-year 24 

rebuilding in gag groupers, as that would create the least 25 

economic hardship on the fishermen and coastal communities, and 26 

reduce the bag limits on the gag from two to one if it creates a 27 

longer season. 28 

 29 

In all that that I saw in the scoping meetings, we see that 30 

we’ve got a high discard mortality and I just wanted to kind of 31 

let the council know that I know what we’ve been doing in our 32 

area a lot at times, because we are catching fish and you’re 33 

releasing fish, because your bag limits are low, is we’ve been 34 

educating our passengers and our crew to just kind of reel up 35 

fish slower and just kind of slow down the day as it goes, 36 

because you’re going to be catching fish and releasing them all 37 

day long and so there’s no race, because your bag limit is not 38 

very much anyway. 39 

 40 

We would also like the council to further fish tags.  It should 41 

be further explored in the recreational fisheries and go to -- 42 

Somehow you’ve got to have, at least we feel, some kind of 43 

grouper and snapper endorsements, to help identify the user 44 

groups.   45 

 46 

We need to implement them too and also, we feel that the states 47 

need to implement them and it would also help us in the further 48 
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exploration of sector separation.  It would maybe help us 1 

identify the state water users when we come to the for-hire 2 

industry and separation of that. 3 

 4 

Also, talking to Bonnie yesterday, we would like to -- The thing 5 

came up with making us fishermen a part of the independent 6 

studies and data collection for stock assessments and we talked 7 

to Bonnie yesterday and I thought if this council maybe could 8 

create some kind of a committee, ad hoc, or panel or something 9 

like that to try to get us together where we could work with 10 

NOAA on creating a better independent study using our fishing 11 

boats to help her. 12 

 13 

Also, I had a question.  We brought up earlier about how there 14 

could be a chance of NOAA losing its funding for the pilot 15 

study, but as I understand the council, we have a Data 16 

Collection Committee and when is the last time they’ve met?  17 

That Data Collection Committee, we were going to explore the 18 

logbooks ourselves and us creating our own logbooks and when has 19 

that committee met and when is the last time and if they 20 

haven’t, are we moving forward with that?  I don’t see that.  It 21 

wasn’t in this agenda, but when will the Data Collection be in 22 

the agenda again?  Thank you much. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Anybody have any information for him on that? 25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  Certainly it’s up the Chair, but in visiting with 27 

John, it seems as if the Data Collection Committee was going to 28 

be planning to meet at the next meeting.  Harlon made a bunch of 29 

motions the last time we were together and they’ve kind of been 30 

working through that. 31 

 32 

They created the ad hoc group and I don’t think they were able 33 

to get them together between the last time we met and this 34 

meeting, due to holidays and other travel schedules, but the 35 

intent is, I believe, to have us meet at the next meeting and 36 

probably have the ad hoc group meet before that.  Is that right, 37 

Steve? 38 

 39 

DR. JOHN FROESCHKE:  Yes, that’s correct. 40 

 41 

MR. ROBSON:  It’s my understanding that this Data Collection 42 

Committee is going to be looking at electronic logbooks and 43 

maybe industry-supported logbooks.  In other words, if we lose 44 

the funding from this pilot program -- I see in the grouper, in 45 

this 32B, that we’re kind of dependent on NOAA’s logbook pilot 46 

program and it’s not so much -- When we were talking in SOS and 47 

the red snapper, we were kind of more exploring us creating our 48 
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logbook program and not being so much dependent on that and peer 1 

reviewing it through NOAA or mirroring it with them, but 2 

creating our own electronic logbook program.  It seems like the 3 

grouper has been moved to be dependent on an electronic logbook 4 

program. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Harlon, would you like to address that? 7 

 8 

MR. PEARCE:  Just a quick comment.  We met the last meeting and 9 

we’re going to meet the next meeting and trust me, it’s on the 10 

upper end of our agenda.  Everybody is interested in getting 11 

better data and the Data Collection Committee is going to work 12 

very hard. 13 

 14 

We passed motions two meetings ago, I believe, with a timeframe 15 

on it, so we could start hustling to get it done, but we’re like 16 

you.  We can’t wait either and we’re trying to hustle. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Scott.  Ben Fairey, followed by Bob 19 

Zales. 20 

 21 

MR. FAIREY:  Again, I would like to thank the council, the 22 

council staff, and Dr. Crabtree for all your hard work that you 23 

put into with these difficult issues that we all face.  The 24 

first thing I would like to talk about, as President of the 25 

Orange Beach Fishing Association -- I believe you all have a 26 

copy of a letter stating that we had a vote on January 26 in 27 

support of opening the red drum in the EEZ.  The membership was 28 

there at that meeting and voted unanimously to open that up and 29 

so the Association does support that.   30 

 31 

The rest of my comments are my personal comments.  I’ve heard a 32 

lot today about I’m against, I’m against, I’m against.  Well, 33 

I’m here to be part of the solution.  We can sit here and be 34 

negative, but we all have to work together. 35 

 36 

One of my favorite words is “compromise” and when it comes to 37 

sector separation, we have to start to take our own 38 

responsibility for going over every year and not every year.  I 39 

think we’ve maybe not gone over twice and we’re going to have a 40 

net loss of days this year in the for-hire industry. 41 

 42 

Fortunately, we are getting a few fish.  If we hadn’t got the 43 

fish, there’s no telling how long the season would be and we 44 

cannot run businesses with a thirty-day season.  We have to 45 

become accountable and I think that this council and the 46 

advisory panels can come up with a compromise. 47 

 48 
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I feel that at this point I don’t see anybody else bringing 1 

anything to the table besides the SOS group and sector 2 

separation, but I invite anybody to come join us and let’s work 3 

together and get over going over every year.  We’ve got to move 4 

forward and we’ve got to become accountable. 5 

 6 

The other thing I would like to say is I heard this morning -- 7 

We talked about blackfin tuna and wahoo.  As we have to go under 8 

the tight regulations on all these other fishes, effort is being 9 

moved and I agree that blackfin and wahoo needs to be managed or 10 

we’re going to get into the same situation, where we are facing 11 

overfishing because of just the effort is being moved to another 12 

species.  It needs to be looked at before we get to that point. 13 

 14 

My other point is about amberjack and I agree with Mr. Gill that 15 

we have to look at how we’re going to do this, because what’s 16 

good for us in the northern Gulf is not good for the guys in the 17 

southern Gulf and I don’t want to throw them under the bus, but 18 

we need to work on this as a compromise also.  Maybe close it in 19 

May.  I see my time is up, but that’s about it.  I appreciate 20 

Bonnie’s offer about independent data and we want to work with 21 

them. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ben.  We have a couple of questions. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  Thanks for your comments.  I really appreciate it 26 

and thanks for your letter in support of red drum and one 27 

question I want to ask is would your organization help us 28 

collect data, if we get that far on red drum, to where maybe 29 

it’s a tagging program or you give us the data on every fish you 30 

catch?  I think we’re going to need some fishery dependent data 31 

like that from the harvesting and the recreational sector, to 32 

help us begin to slowly develop data.  Would your organization 33 

be willing to help with that? 34 

 35 

MR. FAIREY:  I’ve had several of my members tell me specifically 36 

that they would be more than happy to help and I personally will 37 

be glad to help. 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Ben, for coming.  You talked about 40 

shifting effort to wahoo and blackfin tuna and both of them are 41 

cooler water fish.  Do you see yourself shifting effort between 42 

now and summer toward these species? 43 

 44 

MR. FAIREY:  When something is closed, like right now we’ve got 45 

grouper closed and red snapper -- If somebody called up and 46 

wanted to go fishing and said what are we going to go catch, I 47 

would say about the only thing we can go catch is we can go jig 48 
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some blackfins.  To survive, the guys have to catch something.  1 

We need product.  We need to try to avoid having so many 2 

closures at the same time. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ben.  Bob Zales, followed by Wayne 5 

Werner. 6 

 7 

MR. ZALES:  Bob, I thought I only filled out two cards and so 8 

I’m going to pass, but Don Dineen -- He had to take Pam Dana to 9 

the airport and they had to leave.  I introduced Larry to her, 10 

but just for you all, Dr. Pam Dana from Destin, she is the 11 

newest recreational representative on MAFAC for the Gulf of 12 

Mexico.  They had to leave though and thank you very much. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  He was going to be the last speaker and so he’s 15 

not here? 16 

 17 

MR. ZALES:  They had sent in email comments and essentially, 18 

they’re opposed to the sector separation and the whole thing.  19 

Anyway, it would have been nice for you all to have met her, 20 

because she’s a nice girl and hopefully she’s going to do a 21 

great job for us on MAFAC. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Our last speaker then is Wayne Werner.  Thanks 24 

for your patience, Wayne. 25 

 26 

MR. WERNER:  Normally -- I thought I would get through this 27 

meeting without having a complaint, but that just wouldn’t be 28 

me.  Anyway, we’re going to have to face a couple of issues with 29 

the IFQ systems that are going on, one of them being a few fish 30 

values.  Warsaw groupers, snowy groupers -- These are my own 31 

opinions, by the way.  It’s nothing to do with any organization. 32 

 33 

Warsaw groupers and snowy groupers are worth a lot less money 34 

than yellowedge groupers that are being tacked to the deepwater 35 

sector.  This is going to cause problems if you don’t separate 36 

out some of these fish, much as with gray tiles and golden 37 

tiles, two very separate fish with very separate prices. 38 

 39 

These fish are going to have to be addressed and there’s no way 40 

around it.  Otherwise, people are going to throw them back and 41 

they’re going to end up wasted.  We’re going to have to face 42 

these issues down the line. 43 

 44 

As everybody here knows, I’m quite in favor of IFQs being used 45 

in any sector and I disagree with what Bob Zales said and he 46 

said it three or four times, that there’s not enough fish to 47 

have sector separation.  There’s plenty of fish there, but it’s 48 
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just a matter of you being able to use them. 1 

 2 

The other thing that Mr. Clements brought up was quota put-3 

aside.  I think there’s a lot to be looked at in the future, 4 

with all the quotas that are going to be there, to have some 5 

sort of a small piece of variable value quota type system that 6 

entails different fish to address needs of waste and basically, 7 

that’s all I have to say.  Thank you. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, Wayne.  That concludes our public 10 

testimony.  I need some direction from council.  We are 11 

scheduled -- First of all, we were scheduled to conclude at 5:15 12 

and it’s 5:30, but we were also scheduled to have a committee 13 

report on Sustainable Fisheries and Ecosystem, which I think 14 

that committee didn’t even complete and is that right, Julie?  15 

What is your pleasure?  Julie, do you have a suggestion? 16 

 17 

MS. MORRIS:  Wait until tomorrow. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  If we need more time, let’s start at eight. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m not sure we need more time.  Let’s start at 22 

8:30 and if we run over a half-hour, we can go an extra half-23 

hour.  We can work through lunch or cut the lunch hour down.  I 24 

would rather not start early, because the agenda has us at 8:30 25 

and people may want to be here.  We will reconvene tomorrow 26 

morning at 8:30 and make it up as best we can.  I will depend on 27 

Julie to be responsible for that. 28 

 29 

I want to also thank the audience.  I don’t think I’ve ever been 30 

at a council meeting when the audience stayed so long and 31 

displayed such patience and so I really appreciate it. 32 

 33 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 5:30 p.m., February 3, 34 

2010.) 35 

 36 

- - - 37 

 38 

THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 39 

 40 

- - - 41 

 42 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 43 

Council reconvened in the Midnight Ballroom of the Battle House 44 

Hotel, Mobile, Alabama, Thursday morning, February 4, 2010, and 45 

was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If you all will take your seats, we’ll get 48 
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started.  We have a fairly long agenda and we’re on a short fuse 1 

this morning.  A couple of housekeeping items and first, we do 2 

not have a break in the agenda and so if you need to check out, 3 

in one of the committee reports that is very boring to you, 4 

maybe you can just run down there and if you’re not a member, 5 

check out then.  This is an attempt to get through on time.  A 6 

lot of people have plane reservations and we’re counting on 7 

finishing up by 1:15.  I might also note that we do not have a 8 

lunch break.  That was also part of the plan to get finished on 9 

time. 10 

 11 

A couple of other things.  I failed to mention that Robin 12 

Riechers has been appointed Director of the Coastal Fisheries 13 

Division of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Service and kudos to 14 

Robin. 15 

 16 

Also, exempted fishing permits -- Two things we need to divert 17 

from the agenda, if you’ll be bear with me and one is the 18 

enforcement people have to leave early and they have some 19 

comments on fish traps and so I’m going to defer to them early, 20 

but even before that, the exempted fishing permit issue, Steve 21 

Branstetter I think has a presentation on that.  Steve, when you 22 

do, tell us what we’re supposed to do. 23 

 24 

EXEMPTED FISHING PERMIT APPLICATIONS 25 

 26 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  You have two exempted fishing permit 27 

applications under Tab Q.  One is from the Gulf and South 28 

Atlantic Fisheries Foundation and to be quite honest, I probably 29 

should have been standing up here in 1993 as their Program 30 

Director asking you for this same EFP. 31 

 32 

As you well know, the Foundation has long done observer work and 33 

most of the work -- 99.9 percent of the fish that they examine 34 

are left onboard or discarded.  They’re doing bycatch research 35 

in the shrimp fishery, but there are some times they may need to 36 

bring small, undersized, federally-managed fish back for, if 37 

nothing else, quality control, making sure that the observers 38 

have identified the species correctly. 39 

 40 

They have asked for this EFP just in case they need to keep 41 

things like baby king mackerel or red snapper.  Any council 42 

managed species is what they’re asking to have an EFP to keep as 43 

many as 500 over the next eighteen months, during the two MARFIN 44 

grants that they have. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, would you comment on this and especially 47 

as to our role as advisory on this issue? 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would like your input as to whether you think 2 

we ought to approve or disapprove the EFP.  If you wanted to 3 

pass a motion giving me some guidance, that would be great. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  What is the agency’s recommendation? 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  This one is fairly routine and I don’t see it as 8 

controversial at all and I don’t think it has any significant 9 

impact on resources and so I don’t see any reason to object to 10 

this one. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  Do we need a motion? 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  I move that we recommend to NMFS that this 17 

experimental permit be granted. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Motion and a second.  Is there discussion?  Any 20 

objections?  So moved.  Now, the second one, Steve, were you 21 

going to address that one as well? 22 

 23 

DR. BRANSTETTER:  The second EFP is Tab Q-5 and it is an EFP 24 

application by Tom Haugen.  He’s a commercial fisherman in the 25 

reef fish fishery and he has requested an EFP to go out and test 26 

his new gear that you’ve seen sitting outside here all week.  It 27 

is a modified fish trap and he wants to go out -- He thinks he 28 

can do this and that this trap is much more efficient than the 29 

old standard fish traps. 30 

 31 

He’s been working with our Pascagoula Lab to design a sampling 32 

program for this.  The basic premise of it is he wants to go out 33 

and test about fifty of these new traps against the old standard 34 

ones, to see what the differences in the catch rates are.  Then 35 

he will spend the rest of his time fishing it to tweak it and 36 

try to make it more efficient. 37 

 38 

He’s got two specific areas that he plans to use.  He’s going to 39 

use his own two vessels and he’s going to use his own IFQ to 40 

land the fish with.  He’s not asking to keep undersized or 41 

anything else.  He just wants to be able to use the gear, which 42 

is not an authorized gear. 43 

 44 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Is there going to be any kind of a control over 45 

what he’s -- Is it going to be done under the auspices of the 46 

lab or are they going to have observers to be able to quantify 47 

the data and make sure -- 48 
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 1 

DR. BRANSTETTER:  Yes, he’s working with the Harvesting Division 2 

in Pascagoula, with John Mitchell and Dan Foster, and they’re 3 

going to be -- They may either be onboard or he will be 4 

recording the data according to the way they’ve set up the 5 

sampling protocols for him. 6 

 7 

DR. MCILWAIN:  One follow-up question.  Maybe if we don’t have 8 

anybody onboard we could do some type of photographic record of 9 

what’s coming onboard, just to verify, so there’s no questions 10 

about it in the future. 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess I would ask Bonnie.  He states in the 13 

application that he will work with the Science Center in 14 

Pascagoula to ensure a viable study and it’s our understanding 15 

he’s been in contact with folks there, but has the Center 16 

prepared to make a commitment of resources in order to carry 17 

this out? 18 

 19 

DR. PONWITH:  Yes, the Center can work with the person.  What I 20 

need to do is actually quantify the level of that.  If you have 21 

an interest in terms of stipulations, I think communicating 22 

those, so we both have an understanding in terms of your views 23 

from a management standpoint and what kind of requirements that 24 

might create in terms of documentation, I think that would be 25 

helpful. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  It seems to me that what we don’t have with this EFP 28 

is something that tells us all that.  It seems to me that it 29 

would be more appropriate to defer this until we have that and 30 

so I would move that we table our consideration of this EFP 31 

pending commitment from the Science Center and scientific 32 

protocol to verify what is going to be done and how it is going 33 

to be accomplished. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  A motion to table is non-debatable and it’s 36 

been seconded.  All in favor of the motion signify by saying 37 

aye; opposed.  The motion passes.   38 

 39 

As I mentioned earlier, law enforcement needs to leave early and 40 

Tracy Dunn has requested that they be allowed to make comments 41 

on fish traps and so we’re going to go a little bit out of 42 

order, with your indulgence, and, Tracy, are you ready to make 43 

some comments? 44 

 45 

COMMENTS FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT 46 

 47 

MR. TRACY DUNN:  For the record, my name is Tracy Dunn, Deputy 48 
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Special Agent in Charge, Southeast Office of Enforcement.  I 1 

apologize that we do need to leave early today, but I did want 2 

to, with all the controversy and the comments on fish traps, at 3 

least provide a quick summary of our enforcement comments. 4 

 5 

I’ve talked to a lot of the fish trap proposal, the fishermen 6 

who had the proposal, and heard a lot of the comments and I just 7 

wanted to say, of course, the decision is always the council’s 8 

and we would enforce whatever provisions that the council saw 9 

fit to put into place. 10 

 11 

With that, fish traps have been historically a huge problem for 12 

enforcement.  I worked these in the Keys a lot and so I have a 13 

great deal of experience with them.  Not too many people do 14 

anymore, because most of those people have gone, but I can tell 15 

you I spent a vast amount of time trying to deal with people who 16 

did not want to follow the regulations. 17 

 18 

Somebody who wants to follow the regulations, no problem.  19 

That’s the case with all of our enforcement efforts, but I think 20 

you have to look at the gear and what it can possibly do and, of 21 

course, the problem is the problem of ghost fishing, ghost trap 22 

fishing. 23 

 24 

The comment came up about VMS would solve all the problems and 25 

if it does not, why do we have it?  Real quickly, VMS was really 26 

intended for closed area enforcement and to give us a lot of 27 

information as to where boats are, so we could deal with closed 28 

areas. 29 

 30 

Fish traps, of course, VMS would be a benefit.  We would know 31 

where boats were and where they were potentially setting gear, 32 

but if you look at any regulation, and in enforcement, it’s an 33 

occupational hazard, I always start thinking about how I would 34 

get around it and I think the council is going to have to do.  35 

How easily would it for an unscrupulous fisherman -- Again, I’m 36 

not talking about the honest guys and I always kind of let 37 

people know we work for that group, because we are trying to 38 

protect their share of the fishery and what they’re trying to 39 

do. 40 

 41 

We have found historically that fish traps offer a little bit 42 

more opportunity to get around -- It’s gear you can leave in the 43 

water and it’s hard to detect and it’s hard to find.  Even if we 44 

had a VMS location for where a boat has been, it’s like a needle 45 

in a haystack and which one would be the line of illegal traps? 46 

 47 

It’s very, very -- Let me back up and say it’s not 48 
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unenforceable, but it’s very enforcement intensive as far as 1 

resources to stay on top of it and to follow up on leads and to 2 

try to capture that one individual that may be trying to get 3 

around the law and then the damage that can come from it. 4 

 5 

Of course, any illegal gear that’s put in the water would not 6 

follow the management plan and would not have biodegradable gear 7 

and would continue to fish no matter what was going on.  It’s a 8 

gear you can leave in the water and you can pick up whenever you 9 

want.  If somebody is around, you don’t have to pick it up and 10 

you know it’s going to be there and you know it’s going to 11 

continue fishing.  That’s historically the problem we’ve had 12 

with fish traps and I’m willing to entertain any questions. 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  Things are different then when you were enforcing 15 

fish traps in the past.  We’ve got VMS and we’ve got the ability 16 

to put locators on them, beacons on them.  We’ve got a lot of 17 

other things that could help with enforcement now than we did 18 

before and the only reason I would like to look at fish traps is 19 

because I think I see no discards and I see no turtles and I see 20 

catching more red grouper and less gag and if it will do that, 21 

then I would like to relook at it.   22 

 23 

I really would and I think that in the new world I think you 24 

have a different enforcement chance than in the old world where 25 

you were before and I think we can also limit it to areas like 26 

not in the Keys and keep it out of areas where you had the 27 

problems in the past.  That’s all. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Anybody else have any comments? 30 

 31 

MR. DUNN:  Let me comment real quickly.  Again, enforcement can 32 

only provide its guidance as to how difficult it would be to 33 

enforce.  If there are new methods by which we can track boats 34 

and gear, that will help, but we’re talking about the honest 35 

fisherman as far as tracking boats and gear.  They will be more 36 

than compliant.  It’s always those that don’t. 37 

 38 

They’re not going to put beacons on and they’re going to do 39 

everything but follow the law and it’s how that gear then is 40 

handled as far as enforcement is concerned, finding it and 41 

retrieving it and making a case on it. 42 

 43 

That was the other point I should have made, is a lot of the 44 

traps we pulled out of the Keys, and I tried to get a historical 45 

case history run, and most of the traps we found were unmarked.   46 

 47 

We were able to find them and we were able to pull them and they 48 
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were illegally constructed and they continued to fish and they 1 

were unmarked and it was very, very difficult to make a case on.  2 

We did and I actually caught a couple of fish trappers and it 3 

took me a long time of setting up.  I’m just saying it can be 4 

done, but it’s just resource intensive and that’s all I want you 5 

to know. 6 

 7 

As far as how you want to do it and as far as any beacons or any 8 

technological advancements that help us monitor, we’re fine with 9 

that. 10 

 11 

MR. PERRET:  Tracy, you’re absolutely right that it’s that small 12 

percentage that don’t follow the laws and that’s why we have all 13 

these laws.  I resent the heck that I have to go through and 14 

take darned near everything I’ve got on off to get through an 15 

airport.  I’m never going to do that to an airplane.  I might 16 

want to do something to Teehan every now and then, but I have 17 

sat and I have testified so many times at the state level with 18 

law enforcement right next to me and legislators ask, can you 19 

enforce it and the answer, without ever wavering, is we can 20 

enforce anything you put on the books. 21 

 22 

You guys have more technology now and granted, you need more 23 

people.  Yes, it would be more difficult to enforce, but I just 24 

-- We don’t have a national standard about ease of enforcement 25 

and all this stuff and so like I told Rick Leard yesterday, 26 

don’t tell me you don’t have enough time.  We can do things.  27 

You guys, I know you can do it.  Yes, it may be more difficult, 28 

but I know you can enforce whatever we and NMFS put on you.  29 

Thank you. 30 

 31 

MR. DUNN:  Let me comment.  Again, my role here is to comment on 32 

the enforceability and that’s all I’m doing.  If you guys decide 33 

that it is a gear you want to see, then we’ll work with it, but 34 

I would be remiss in my duties if I did not point out some of 35 

the difficulties we have in enforcing that particular gear. 36 

 37 

MR. PEARCE:  No more difficulty than we have sitting here trying 38 

to keep people working and I understand your position, but we 39 

can’t legislate for outlaws.  We have to find ways to help you 40 

enforce the laws and like Corky said, we’re always going to have 41 

outlaws and nothing we do here at this council with enforcement 42 

is going to change that, I’m afraid to say.  I just want to see 43 

it looked at and thank you. 44 

 45 

MR. SAPP:  Just a real quick one and, Tracy, thanks for your 46 

comments.  Do your concerns apply to the request for an exempted 47 

fishing permit that we just heard? 48 
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 1 

MR. DUNN:  I haven’t really looked at that.  Again, I’m talking 2 

about a total fishery and how we would enforce that.  An 3 

exempted fishery permit offers its own challenges, but probably 4 

not near as many. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s move on then if we can, if there are no 7 

other comments on this.  This would bring us back to our agenda 8 

and the first thing on the agenda is the Ecosystem Committee 9 

that we did not finish yesterday and I believe that’s right.  Go 10 

ahead, Julie. 11 

 12 

SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES/ECOSYSTEM COMMITTEE REPORT 13 

 14 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes, this is -- The committee report was on Tab G 15 

and was emailed out to everybody yesterday by Karen.  Before I 16 

start the report, I want to let everyone know that there were 17 

two issues that we didn’t get to in committee that we’ll need to 18 

bring up in full council. 19 

 20 

One is answering a question that was posed by the SSC and the 21 

other is the presentation that John prepared that we didn’t get 22 

time to get to during committee and so here is the report. 23 

 24 

The Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee was convened by 25 

me.  The revised agenda was approved as written and the minutes 26 

were approved as written. 27 

 28 

We then discussed the options paper for the Generic ACL/AM 29 

Amendment and we reviewed the options paper.  Under Action 1, 30 

Transfer Management of Selected Stocks, Mr. Teehan suggested 31 

that the Council write the FFWCC and express their intent to 32 

delegate management of the various fisheries to them so they are 33 

aware.   34 

 35 

I concurred and suggested that this be discussed by the council 36 

in April, when it will have a more complete options paper.  Mr. 37 

Teehan added that he would discuss the potential transfer of 38 

management with his commission at a future commission meeting.  39 

 40 

Under Action 2, Designating Ecosystem Component Species, the 41 

Committee discussed the criteria for qualification to be 42 

considered an ecosystem component species, particularly the 43 

criteria, “not generally retained for sale or personal use”.   44 

 45 

The alternatives use landings below some minimum amount to 46 

classify a stock as not generally retained.  However, it was 47 

noted that there are some species, such as red hind or other 48 
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groupers, that are retained or sold even if caught only in small 1 

amounts.   2 

 3 

Consequently, some species cannot be considered ecosystem 4 

component species even if they meet the other three criteria, 5 

non-target species, not subject to overfishing or overfished, 6 

not likely to become subject to overfishing or overfished.  The 7 

committee asked staff to consider additional alternatives for 8 

Action 2, possibly based on the species grouping analysis.   9 

 10 

Under Action 6, Sector Allocations, the committee noted that 11 

sector allocation is currently being considered in both the 12 

ACL/AM amendment and Reef Fish Amendment 32.  Sector allocation 13 

for groupers had been added to Amendment 32 in October as part 14 

of a series of scoping document editorial revisions from the 15 

Reef Fish Committee, but was later added to the ACL/AM options 16 

paper for all species with allocations by a council motion.   17 

 18 

The committee members felt that the ACL/AM amendment is the 19 

appropriate place to address this issue and without objection, 20 

passed the following motion.  The committee recommends, and I so 21 

move, that sector separation issues be copied and adapted in its 22 

entirety from Reef Fish Amendment 32 and placed in Action 6 of 23 

the ACL/AM Amendment, as per council motion at the previous 24 

meeting. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 27 

discussion?   28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  Julie, I’m not sure the way I read the motion that it 30 

actually takes it out of 32.  Is that the sense of the motion?  31 

It says “copied”, which, to me, leaves it in 32. 32 

 33 

MS. MORRIS:  I haven’t checked the Reef Fish Committee minutes, 34 

but I think we did that in the Reef Fish Committee. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I remember the discussion.  We wanted to take it 37 

out of this one, because we was afraid that it would slow it 38 

down, but if you look at what the scheduled showed for the 39 

finalization, I think, of 32, as well as the ACL, the ACL only 40 

is finalized like after one council meeting, two months or three 41 

months.  That’s really the difference that you’re talking about. 42 

 43 

If it’s what the council wants to do, I think we heard a lot of 44 

discussion about we need to start going forward and doing 45 

something.  Sometimes a baby step is better than a big step and 46 

so still, if the full council just feels like it’s not time to 47 

go forward with that and an extra three months is really going 48 
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to make a difference, then that’s fine.  Thank you. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on the committee motion?  3 

Any opposition to the committee motion?  Hearing none, the 4 

motion passes. 5 

 6 

MS. MORRIS:  Under Action 7, Framework Procedure for Setting 7 

Annual Catch Limits, Steve Atran noted that there are two 8 

frameworks for consideration, a very long and detailed framework 9 

procedure for setting ACL and a shorter framework for other 10 

applicable law.   11 

 12 

He noted that with minor rewording the shorter framework could 13 

serve both purposes and he had added a fourth alternative to 14 

that effect.  Julie Morris suggested that staff evaluate whether 15 

this section could be simplified and perhaps one of the 16 

alternatives dropped.  17 

 18 

Under Action 8.1, Specify ACL for Red Drum in Federal and State 19 

Waters, committee members noted that the alternatives all set 20 

red drum ACL equal to zero in federal waters.  The council is 21 

considering allowing a harvest of red drum in federal waters.  22 

Shepherd Grimes noted that the Red Drum FMP is missing many of 23 

the parameters required under the current guidelines, such as 24 

MFMT and OFL. 25 

 26 

The committee recommends, and I so move, in Action 8.1, to 27 

establish an Alternative 4 to modify and update the Red Drum FMP 28 

and to set an ACL of greater than zero with options to establish 29 

limits to that ACL definition. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There’s a committee motion.  Any discussion? 32 

 33 

MR. RIECHERS:  I wasn’t on the committee and so I didn’t speak 34 

up in committee.  I guess I’m a little bit -- I know we’re going 35 

to have a Red Drum Committee Report down the road here and I 36 

think this is moving much faster than that report is going to 37 

give us any sort of catch anyhow.   38 

 39 

I don’t know if we really want to put this in here or if we were 40 

to go forward with a scoping document and an amendment in that 41 

other notion of allowing some harvest, I would think that’s 42 

where we would set the annual catch limits for red drum.  43 

Putting it in here seems to be a little bit premature, because 44 

we don’t have the information that would allow us to have a 45 

catch limit greater than zero at this point.   46 

 47 

In that respect, I think I have to speak in opposition to it 48 
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being added at this point and it’s not because I’m necessarily 1 

opposed to the notion, but it’s just we’re going to end up 2 

putting this in Considered but Rejected or not picking it as the 3 

preferred in a meeting or two, simply because of timing issues 4 

at this point. 5 

 6 

MR. GRIMES:  I think it’s going to be some time before you get 7 

this red drum issue dealt with via the Red Drum FMP and you have 8 

deadlines for implementing annual catch limits and I had 9 

envisioned this staying in the Generic ACL Amendment and setting 10 

your ACL equal to zero and developing the science and stock 11 

status-related estimates and parameters and have that process 12 

ongoing and then when you came back via the Red Drum FMP and you 13 

wanted to reopen the fishery in some form, you would then come 14 

back in and adjust ACL when you implemented MFMT and OFL, et 15 

cetera. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep, does that mean you’re for the motion? 18 

 19 

MR. GRIMES:  Generally, I guess. 20 

 21 

MR. PEARCE:  Shep, also, doesn’t the ACL/AM Amendment tell us 22 

that we have to set them for even data-poor fisheries or begin 23 

to set them for that and that’s what this would be? 24 

 25 

MR. GRIMES:  You have to set ACLs for every species that’s in 26 

your fishery management plan, except for the very few 27 

exceptions. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  All this really is is a placeholder for when we’re 30 

ready to go. 31 

 32 

MR. GRIMES:  That’s exactly right and that’s how I would view 33 

it. 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  Shep, I’m not going to belabor the point too 36 

much, but it’s a placeholder, but it’s an alternative amongst 37 

several alternatives and it’s an alternative that at this point 38 

isn’t really possible and so I’m not certain that in that notion 39 

-- We always hear let’s take away the alternatives that aren’t 40 

possible, so that we’re not analyzing things that we don’t need 41 

to be analyzing.  I hear that around the table a lot and so, 42 

again, I’m not going to fall on my sword over this one, but I 43 

just don’t think the place and the timing is appropriate here. 44 

 45 

MR. GRIMES:  I actually misunderstood or misread this.  I 46 

thought it was setting the ACL equal to zero.  You still need to 47 

have some ACL set for red drum and it seems like that would be 48 
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set at zero until you could address it over the long term. 1 

 2 

MR. SAPP:  Shep, am I understanding that you suggest that we 3 

modify the motion so that we replace the “greater than zero” 4 

with “equal to zero”? 5 

 6 

MR. GRIMES:  I believe you have alternatives to set ACL equal to 7 

zero in the document and so you would just vote this down and 8 

proceed with the document as it is currently written. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m somewhat confused, but is there any further 11 

discussion on this motion?  What I hear is Shep’s advice is to 12 

vote this down. 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think the issue is that given the timeline this 15 

amendment is on, we’re not going to be able to get all this 16 

resolved and so rather than deal with it here, let’s just leave 17 

it the way it is with the alternatives of ACL equal to zero and 18 

then we’ll come back in a later date, when we have more 19 

information and are better prepared to do it, and readdress the 20 

situation.  I tend to agree with Robin that that’s probably the 21 

best thing to do right now, because I don’t think we’ll be able 22 

to get all this resolved in the timeline this amendment is on. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It appears the consensus is to vote this down, 25 

but let’s go ahead and take a formal vote on this.  All in favor 26 

of the motion signify by saying aye; all opposed.  The motion 27 

fails. 28 

 29 

MS. MORRIS:  Under Action 8.2, Specify ACL for Royal Red Shrimp, 30 

Steve Atran noted that, based on conversations  with Regional 31 

Office staff, a subsection would be added to define ABCs for the 32 

penaeid shrimp, brown, white, pink.   33 

 34 

However, no ACL alternatives would be needed, since these are 35 

annual stocks and do not require ACLs.  Royal red shrimp are not 36 

an annual species and will require an ACL.  However, the MSY of 37 

royal red shrimp is a range of values and not a single number. 38 

 39 

Actions 8.3 and 8.4 will specify ACL and potentially ACT for 40 

data-rich and data-poor species.  They will be completed once 41 

the ABC control rule is completed.  Action 9, Accountability 42 

Measures is also a to-be-completed section. 43 

 44 

Mr. Atran gave a PowerPoint presentation on the Status of the 45 

ABC control Rule for Data Rich and Data Poor Species.  He noted 46 

that the SSC will meet again in late March to finalize the ABC 47 

control rule.   48 
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 1 

He added that the SSC requested guidance on setting a level of 2 

stock abundance below which harvest will not be allowed, i.e., 3 

ABC will be set to zero.  The options are: no action, do not 4 

specify a minimum level of stock abundance; b)5 percent of BMSY, 5 

proposed by the North Pacific Council; c)10 percent of BMSY, 6 

proposed by the Pacific and South Atlantic Councils; and d)some 7 

other level of stock abundance. 8 

 9 

This is the question that we will need to return to before the 10 

completion of this committee report and so you can be thinking 11 

about that. 12 

 13 

For reference, the current red snapper update assessment places 14 

the current, 2008, stock status at 17 percent of BMSY proxy.  15 

However, the SEDAR-7 benchmark assessment placed the red snapper 16 

status in 2003 at 6 percent of the BMSY proxy. 17 

 18 

Mr. Strelcheck gave a PowerPoint presentation on Species 19 

Grouping Analysis.  Cluster analysis shows fairly good support 20 

for mid-water, shallow-water, and deep-water species grouping 21 

based on year, month, depth and gear type variables.  However, 22 

cluster analysis does not support working well with rare 23 

species.   24 

 25 

Trends in catch rates were also looked at over time.  For 26 

example, gag and red grouper showed similar trends over time, 27 

but gag and black grouper showed different trends.  The analyses 28 

are currently being reviewed by the Science Center and a full 29 

report will be available at the April council meeting. 30 

 31 

 32 

Review of the December 2009 Ecosystem SSC Meeting, the committee 33 

reviewed the minutes of the Ecosystem SSC held in December 2009.  34 

Dr. Burns pointed out that the committee had recommendations for 35 

future workshops in 2010 and 2011.   36 

 37 

Their recommendations were: to conduct a systematic type of 38 

workshop, based on the SEDAR schedule, where the group would 39 

choose one species scheduled for 2010 and hold a workshop; hold 40 

a workshop to deal with specific issues, such as socio-economic 41 

fisherman behavior; when possible, conduct stochastic stock 42 

reduction analyses to provide more insight concerning 43 

uncertainty.  The SSC should investigate the application of a 44 

gaming approach to evaluate ecosystem interactions.  45 

 46 

They responded to the ABC Control Rule Working Group by 47 

suggesting that some dimensions could be added that would 48 



116 

 

address criteria for trophic interactions, fisheries, habitat, 1 

social vulnerability, and climate sensitivity.  I’m going to 2 

sort of skim down to the motion here. 3 

 4 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to ask the Ecosystem 5 

Scientific and Statistical Committee to hold a workshop on a 6 

species scheduled for SEDAR in the next twelve to eighteen 7 

months and develop some ecosystem analyses that could contribute 8 

to the SEDAR process. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  11 

Any objection?  The motion passes. 12 

 13 

MS. MORRIS:  Dr. Bortone commented on the estimated prices for 14 

those workshops that he felt were excessive and he supports the 15 

workshop, but believes it could be held for less money.  16 

 17 

The Ecosystem SSC requested support for a second workshop to 18 

address socioeconomic behavior of fishermen and after 19 

discussion, that led to another committee motion.  The committee 20 

recommends, and I so move, to ask the chair of the SEP and the 21 

chair of the Ecosystem SSC to develop a proposal for a 22 

socioeconomic fisherman behavior workshop. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any objections to 25 

the motion?  The motion passes. 26 

 27 

MS. MORRIS:  I brought up the hook competition study suggested 28 

by Dr. Walters that could potentially be conducted by Megan 29 

Darcy.  Dr. Walters said hook competition by an aggressive 30 

species can limit the catchability of other less aggressive 31 

species by up to 50 percent. 32 

 33 

It may be useful with regard to reports from fishermen that they 34 

cannot get their hooks past red snapper to catch grouper.  Ms. 35 

Williams asked about the study methods and whether the results 36 

would be useful.  Dr. Burns explained that the premise was that 37 

red snapper were outcompeting red grouper for hooks.   38 

 39 

Ms. Morris said that red grouper may appear less abundant than 40 

they are in reality because more red snapper are caught because 41 

they get to the hooks faster than the red grouper.  We asked 42 

about the cost of the research.  Dr. Bortone said the funds 43 

requested were $5,000.  He said this was a reasonable amount but 44 

that he and some council technical staff questioned whether the 45 

proposed approach, modeling how handling time affects CPUE for 46 

snapper and grouper, would be the best way to answer this 47 

question.  48 
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 1 

The committee’s time had expired and there were two items that 2 

would be deferred to full council, the Review of the Proposed 3 

National Standard 2 Guidelines, which we will get to in just a 4 

minute now, I hope, and then the request from the SSC.  Then I 5 

would suggest that we -- Which would you like to take up first, 6 

Mr. Chairman, the request from the SSC or John’s presentation on 7 

National Standard 2 Guidelines? 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s take them in that order that you’ve 10 

suggested. 11 

 12 

MS. MORRIS:  Here is the question again from the SSC.  Would the 13 

council like to establish a basement minimum level of stock 14 

abundance, I guess expressed in terms of BMSY, a percentage of 15 

BMSY, and when a stock was evaluated at that level, the ABC that 16 

would be recommended would be zero and so we have -- Steve, are 17 

these alternatives that you came up with? 18 

 19 

MR. STEVEN ATRAN:  These were alternatives that came up during 20 

the discussion for the SSC meeting and so I just put it in the 21 

form of set of options, but you’re by no means limited to just 22 

these suggestions. 23 

 24 

MS. MORRIS:  Steve, it seems like this is -- Is this something 25 

they need to hear direction from us on before they can complete 26 

the ABC control rule that we’re anxiously awaiting? 27 

 28 

MR. ATRAN:  If you give guidance on some minimal level below 29 

which harvest will not be allowed, they will build that into the 30 

ABC control rule.  If you don’t give guidance, they will not and 31 

you will probably still have an opportunity to add it if you 32 

wish in the public hearing draft.  It seems like a fairly 33 

uncomplicated addition to the ABC control rule. 34 

 35 

MS. MORRIS:  Steve, are there any stocks that we currently have 36 

BMSY estimates for that fall below either the 5 percent or 10 37 

percent threshold? 38 

 39 

MR. ATRAN:  No, the lowest stock level that I’m aware of is red 40 

snapper, which is why I put that up as an example, and red 41 

snapper is currently above the suggested thresholds in the 42 

document. 43 

 44 

MS. MORRIS:  The lowest we could possibly go would be don’t set 45 

a minimum stock abundance level and then the next tick up from 46 

that would be 5 percent.  Is there any discussion or a motion? 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  This is one of those things that I’m not real 1 

comfortable in making a determination, because it seems to me 2 

that we don’t have a basis of what the ramifications for one 3 

number versus another.  In effect, we’re picking a number out of 4 

a hat and the 5 percent could be just as good as the 10 percent 5 

or there could be some impact that the numbers have some meaning 6 

on. 7 

 8 

It seems to me that at the very least, whatever we choose, we 9 

get some feedback, analysis, whatever, that gives us some feel 10 

for what the ramifications of our decision might be and we don’t 11 

have any at this point. 12 

 13 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  I guess I’m a little bit confused, because 14 

some of our MSST, minimum stock size thresholds, which is the 15 

overfished threshold, are set at one minus M and in some cases, 16 

that’s 0.3.  That would be 30 percent of biomass at MSY and 17 

that’s just to be at the overfished threshold and not to where 18 

you would likely have to absolutely end fishing altogether.  I’m 19 

not so sure what this is. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Ms. Morris, do you want to lead us through 22 

this? 23 

 24 

MS. MORRIS:  I’m having trouble understanding your comment, Dr. 25 

Leard.  Are you saying these numbers are too low or that they 26 

seem too high?  It seems like you’re saying a 30 percent BMSY 27 

puts some species in the overfished condition, but what we’re 28 

talking about here is no ABC, a recommendation for no allowable 29 

catch. 30 

 31 

DR. LEARD:  That’s what I’m thinking, is for instance, like I 32 

think Spanish mackerel and cobia, the MSST is set at essentially 33 

30 percent of biomass at MSY and so if it were at 20 percent of 34 

biomass at MSY, it wouldn’t even be overfished and it may not 35 

even be undergoing overfishing and so why would you set at ABC 36 

at zero if it’s not even overfished or undergoing overfishing, 37 

by your definitions? 38 

 39 

MS. MORRIS:  My sense from the discussion is either we have no 40 

idea how to answer this question or we support no action, do not 41 

specify a minimum level of stock abundance.  I guess the 42 

question is do you want to return to this at a future meeting, 43 

when we have a greater context for making a decision?  I’m 44 

seeing a nod from at least one member. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The nod from Dr. Crabtree is especially germane 47 

here. 48 
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 1 

MS. MORRIS:  This question will go on the agenda for the next 2 

committee meeting, with hopefully some preparatory materials 3 

that can get us into the right mindset to make a determination 4 

about this.  Then we should turn next to the briefing on the 5 

National Standard 2 Guidelines. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s G-6.  Is that right? 8 

 9 

MR. GRIMES:  Before we leave the report entirely, I just wanted 10 

to point out on page 1 there’s a statement relative to ecosystem 11 

component species and it basically notes that even if the other 12 

three criteria are met, if species are retained, then they can’t 13 

be ecosystem component species and that is not correct. 14 

 15 

The guidelines specifically envision, and I’ll read from the 16 

guidelines to you: “Occasional retention of the species would 17 

not, in and of itself, preclude consideration under the EC 18 

classification.” 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Julie, in your report, you talk about the 21 

research and the committee did not make a motion and so I wanted 22 

to ask the question, does that mean that that research project 23 

will not be funded?  I think any type of research project that 24 

they are asking for council funds should be done so in a motion 25 

and approved by this council. 26 

 27 

MS. MORRIS:  Are you talking about the hook competition study? 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 30 

 31 

MS. MORRIS:  We didn’t have a formal motion on it, but it was my 32 

sense of the committee discussion that we expected that the 33 

council staff would continue to make a determination about 34 

whether the results of the study were going to be informative in 35 

the way that we wanted them to be and we were going to leave it 36 

up to them to make that determination, because it was a small 37 

amount of money, of about $5,000.  Do we need to make a motion?  38 

Is that what you’re suggesting? 39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, because I was actually just thinking that I 41 

think by this particular matter coming forward that there will 42 

be others that will want certain research projects funded and to 43 

me, any time we fund something, I just feel like all the members 44 

should know about it and approve it if we feel that it’s 45 

necessary. 46 

 47 

If you want to give that type of guidance to staff, then we 48 
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probably need to do that in some form of a policy later, but for 1 

now, if you would like to make that motion for staff to decide 2 

whether or not to fund that project, it’s fine with me. 3 

 4 

MS. MORRIS:  I don’t think the motion is necessary, but if the 5 

council agrees with Ms. Williams, I would make that motion. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  For this particular one, I don’t think it’s 8 

really necessary either, although I agree with Kay in principle.  9 

If we start to do this, we’re going to have to develop a policy, 10 

but for this one, I think we had enough discussion and it was 11 

pretty clear the charge of the committee to staff.  John, are 12 

you ready? 13 

 14 

DR. FROESCHKE:  I’m just going to give a brief overview of the 15 

updated NS-2 Guidelines.  The National Marine Fisheries Service 16 

proposed revisions to the guidelines for NS-2 for the Magnuson-17 

Stevens Fisheries.  The purpose was to provide guidance for the 18 

use of the best scientific information available and there were 19 

changes to the existing BASI guidelines as well as the peer 20 

review guidelines. 21 

 22 

The purpose of these guidelines are to use the best scientific 23 

information available for conservation and management actions 24 

and the intended effect is to ensure that the scientific 25 

information is validated through peer review or other 26 

appropriate processes and these procedures are transparent and 27 

used appropriately. 28 

 29 

There are five components to these NS-2 Guidelines: the BASI 30 

peer review process, the role of the Scientific and Statistical 31 

Committee, as well as the stock assessment and fishery 32 

evaluation of SAFE reports, and the fishery management plans.  33 

I’ll briefly go through each of these five components and 34 

summarize results or changes or show you that no changes were 35 

made. 36 

 37 

The best scientific information available, this is based on 38 

several principles, including objectivity, transparency, 39 

timeliness, verification, validation, and peer review and the 40 

new guidelines state that there should be considerations of 41 

uncertainty in the scientific information, as well as the time 42 

required for any peer review process of any scientific data are 43 

undertaken. 44 

 45 

Minimum standards for peer review were established by the final 46 

information quality bulletin for peer review and the proposed 47 

action provides for guidance for national quality standards 48 
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based on objective outcomes, providing useful information 1 

leading to the intended scope of work.  It adopts many of the 2 

Office of Management and Budget standards.  The idea of this was 3 

that it was not intended to replace or duplicate existing peer 4 

review processes, such as the SEDAR peer review process. 5 

 6 

The SSC has two roles as scientific advisors to the fishery 7 

management and also as a peer review panel and so one of the 8 

issues of the previous guidelines were that the existing 9 

language states that each council shall develop annual catch 10 

limits that do not exceed the recommendations of the SSC or the 11 

peer review process. 12 

 13 

A possible interpretation of this is that if the peer review 14 

process recommended a lower fishing level, then this potentially 15 

precluded the role of the SSC in providing guidance to the 16 

council and they felt that this was not the appropriate way, 17 

because the SSC is intended to provide guidance. 18 

 19 

They’re recommending that peer review is, one, not intended to 20 

provide a fishing level recommendation and, alternatively, that 21 

peer review should be conducted early in the process to provide 22 

adequate time for the SSC to review it and then make a fishing 23 

recommendation to the council. 24 

 25 

The Stock Assessment and Fishery Evaluation, SAFE, Reports, the 26 

intent of these are to provide the council with a summary of the 27 

scientific information and the proposed actions, which are minor 28 

changes, will clarify the purpose and content of these SAFE 29 

reports.  There were no major changes to this.  The fishery 30 

management development plans maintains current NS-2 Guidelines 31 

and there were no changes to this component as well. 32 

 33 

Written comments can be identified and must be received by March 34 

11 at www.regulations.gov and then the contact information is on 35 

there.  If it’s too small or if you need additional, I can 36 

supply that for you.  That concludes my summary. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions for John?  Thank you.  39 

Ms. Morris, does that conclude your committee actions?  Okay.  40 

We need to go ahead and move into the rest of the agenda.  We’ve 41 

cut out about forty-five minutes of Vernon’s time for the Reef 42 

Fish. 43 

 44 

It’s been suggested that perhaps we might want to go through all 45 

the other shorter committee meetings first and wait for Reef 46 

Fish, but my preference is not.  My preference is to go ahead 47 

and follow the agenda and it may require more time for Reef 48 
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Fish.  Go ahead, Mr. Minton. 1 

 2 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 3 

 4 

MR. MINTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  You should have received 5 

a committee report.  If you haven’t, check with Karen or Trish 6 

over there.  The agenda was adopted with the addition under 7 

Other Business of a discussion on greater amberjack and a 8 

discussion of set-aside quotas for research and pilot programs.  9 

The minutes of the October 20, 2009 meeting were approved as 10 

written.  11 

  12 

Northeast Gulf of Mexico Reserve Program, Chris Gledhill gave a 13 

progress report on the Pascagoula and Panama City Laboratories 14 

monitoring program of the Madison-Swanson and Steamboat Lumps 15 

reserves, plus Twin Ridges, an open fishing area used as a 16 

comparison.   17 

 18 

Basically, the abundance trends to date is that gag abundance is 19 

level in the Madison-Swanson, while decreasing over the eastern 20 

Gulf.  Red grouper are increasing in Madison-Swanson while 21 

decreasing over the east Gulf.   22 

 23 

Red snapper annual means are not significantly different, but 24 

there was a recent increase within Madison-Swanson and Twin 25 

Ridges.  For size of fish, gag, red grouper and red snapper were 26 

larger within MPAs than over eastern Gulf, but too few fish have 27 

been measured to make any determination about trends.   28 

 29 

Ms. Morris asked if the areas where gag occur could be scaled up 30 

to the rest of the Gulf to identify areas of gag abundance.  Dr. 31 

Gledhill responded that only a few areas of the Gulf have been 32 

mapped.  However, he said wherever red grouper were found, gag 33 

were also found.   34 

 35 

Under the Red Snapper Update Assessment, Clay Porch gave a 36 

presentation describing the red snapper update assessment and 37 

Sean Powers gave a presentation describing the model runs that 38 

were evaluated and rationale for selection of model run AS3 for 39 

management advice.   40 

 41 

The assessment used CATCHEM_AD, an age-structured, length-based 42 

model.  It showed that there was some evidence that older fish 43 

are in the deeper waters of the Gulf.  A SEDAR panel noted that 44 

the reduction in the shrimp effort in 2008 was even greater than 45 

the reduction called for in the red snapper rebuilding plan. 46 

 47 

Red Snapper Regulatory Amendment, Carrie Simmons summarized the 48 
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purpose and need as well as management alternatives considered 1 

in the Red Snapper Regulatory Amendment.  Roy Crabtree requested 2 

that sections of the document be edited, including the 3 

discussion concerning optimum yield.   4 

 5 

Assane reviewed the Socioeconomic Panel Report and after some 6 

discussion, the committee made the following recommendation, and 7 

I so move: In Section 3, Action 1, to make Alternative 2 the 8 

preferred alternative, total allowable catch would be 6.94 9 

million pounds in 2010. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on 12 

this motion?  Any objection?  The motion passes. 13 

 14 

MR. MINTON:  Moving on, Bob Gill discussed the potential release 15 

of additional commercial quota as the red snapper stock 16 

rebuilds.  After further discussion the committee recommends, 17 

and I so move, request staff to develop a discussion paper on 18 

potential red snapper changes and present it at the April 2010 19 

council meeting. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There’s a committee motion.  What does this 22 

motion mean? 23 

 24 

MR. MINTON:  It’s just a discussion paper on how we could 25 

further look at different ideas about the red snapper.  It’s 26 

just talking like a white paper. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on this motion? 29 

 30 

MS. MORRIS:  This is where we ended up after talking about 31 

whether to start a scoping process for all of the other red 32 

snapper issues that we wanted to address and we finally settled 33 

on let’s just have a discussion paper as a first step to figure 34 

out whether we want to go to scoping and what the issues might 35 

be to ask about in scoping. 36 

 37 

MR. RIECHERS:  I was having trouble with this too, because the 38 

discussion above it doesn’t really indicate that as much as it 39 

indicates a discussion just about commercial quota, but it was 40 

that broader discussion about all those topics that we need to 41 

deal with in red snapper and is that correct? 42 

 43 

MR. SAPP:  Am I understanding correctly or not that these 44 

discussions will include a review of the red snapper IFQ or is 45 

that a separate subject? 46 

 47 

MR. MINTON:  I think that would be separate. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on this motion?  Any 2 

objections to the motion?  The motion passes. 3 

 4 

MR. MINTON:  After hearing information from the Clay Porch and 5 

Sean Powers on the Red Snapper 2009 Update Assessment, including 6 

the limited fishery-independent information, the committee 7 

recommends, and I so move, to request advice from the SSC on a 8 

study design and schedule for additional fisheries independent 9 

research to address the current uncertainty in age structure of 10 

red snapper. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  13 

Any objection? 14 

 15 

MS. MORRIS:  I’m not objecting.  It was my motion and I think we 16 

should pass it, but in conversations that I’ve had with Roy over 17 

the course of the meeting, it seems like we really need to push, 18 

in a way that may be more assertive than we usually do, with 19 

letters to Lubchenco and very strong articulation from the 20 

council, that we need this fishery independent research and we 21 

need it to be funded now.  It needs to be timed in a way that we 22 

can have that information available for whenever our next 23 

benchmark or update assessment for red snapper would be. 24 

 25 

I don’t know if the motion needs to be stronger and include 26 

those kinds of things or we need another motion following this 27 

about that. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I couldn’t agree more and I guess I want to ask 30 

Shep a question here.  If we approach our congressional 31 

delegations on this, does that violate our lobbying constraints? 32 

 33 

MR. GRIMES:  Potentially yes, depending on how you do it, I 34 

suppose.  Expressing to your congressional delegations that this 35 

is a priority and something the Gulf Council is interested in is 36 

not a problem.   37 

 38 

Going and asking for money to do it is a problem, but I would 39 

note too that I think we were emailed a letter from Senator 40 

Shelby to Dr. Lubchenco and a response back that dealt with this 41 

issue, mentioning that it was one of NOAA’s high priorities or 42 

highest priorities, and I’m not really sure of the wording, but 43 

you could at least discuss that letter and that would be part of 44 

this process, I suppose. 45 

 46 

MR. PERRET:  If we happen to be in a congressional office 47 

discussing various issues and it’s initiated from the elected 48 
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official and/or a staffer if this study is needed and how much 1 

money would it take, would it be all right to respond to a 2 

request like that? 3 

 4 

MR. GRIMES:  It is definitely appropriate to answer questions, 5 

yes. 6 

 7 

MS. MORRIS:  This motion was structured to request advice from 8 

the SSC, but after the committee made this motion, I went back 9 

to the assessment, the red snapper assessment, and they always 10 

create a list, and I’m looking for it now, of information needs 11 

and I guess we probably don’t need to ask advice from the SSC.  12 

We just need to let everybody know how important it is for us to 13 

get everything that’s on that list in the assessment, in terms 14 

of research needs, funded. 15 

 16 

I guess I’m asking advice from Roy and the NOAA Fisheries staff 17 

and people with more experience with this than I do, where’s the 18 

right place to put the pressure to get funding for that kind of 19 

fishery independent research? 20 

 21 

DR. PONWITH:  I just want to -- In my report at the end of the 22 

meeting, I was going to reiterate the fact that increases were 23 

made in the expand annual stock assessment budget line for the 24 

Southeast and there will be some increases in both the South 25 

Atlantic and the Gulf of Mexico. 26 

 27 

We’ll be adding at least one additional stock assessment 28 

scientist and some additional age readers, people to process 29 

biological samples, and there will be some additions to the 30 

fishery independent work. 31 

 32 

Another part of my report closing out today, which I think is 33 

appropriate to discuss here, is that with some of those 34 

resources, my plan is to host a meeting and link it into the 35 

council process, so that we can make sure that appropriate SSC 36 

members, AP members, so that we get the industry and NGO’s 37 

advice on this, academic scientists, people from other states 38 

from outside of the region faced with similar reef fish issues 39 

like we have in the Gulf, and host a meeting to look at our 40 

current practices for fishery independent data collections and 41 

actually nail down what the next steps --  42 

 43 

On a scalable plan, if we got this amount of money, what would 44 

be the very next thing we would do and how would we scope out 45 

from there, so that we had all that thinking pulled together and 46 

could adjust the fishery independent sampling programs based on 47 

that as a plan. 48 
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 1 

We held a similar workshop to that in the South Atlantic.  I did 2 

it there first because of the sense of urgency, due to the 3 

proposed closure in the South Atlantic, but I feel that the Gulf 4 

of Mexico would benefit from that greatly. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Julie, one of the reasons I would kind of like 7 

to leave that in there is the reference to the study design.  I 8 

know that the SSC indicated the need for these sorts of things, 9 

but as far as the details of the study design, I don’t think 10 

that’s in the SSC report.  I don’t think it would hurt to leave 11 

this motion on the board and pass it. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have to agree with Bonnie.  I know that when 14 

they are doing certain projects they have various technical 15 

staff and their assessment people let them know what it is that 16 

they don’t have and they actually design the research. 17 

 18 

What I’m concerned about is to request advice from the SSC on 19 

study design.  If we’re asking how to design the study, I don’t 20 

think it’s the SSC members that would be the correct people to 21 

tell us how -- You think they are the correct people to tell us 22 

how to design an actual experiment?  Bonnie, who advises the 23 

Center now on their designs when they go out and they do 24 

research? 25 

 26 

DR. PONWITH:  Let me say that the Fisheries Science Center views 27 

it as a very important responsibility to have a hand in study 28 

designs, to make sure that the quality of data that we generate 29 

in the region is satisfactory to answer the questions we need 30 

answered to provide adequate scientific advice to the fishery 31 

management councils.  32 

 33 

That said, the SSC’s advice is highly valued, because the SSC is 34 

one of the final review bodies of the science products from the 35 

SEDAR process that ultimately goes to the fisheries management 36 

councils.   37 

 38 

From that standpoint, any advice that the SSC had, based on that 39 

experience as that peer review body, of the stock assessment 40 

would be stronger if you had the following information collected 41 

in this way, that kind of feedback loop is absolutely 42 

invaluable, but doing that in conjunction with the Science 43 

Center would be, I think, the firm partnership. 44 

 45 

MR. SIMPSON:  In addition to the discussion that’s just 46 

occurred, a couple of weeks ago I sat in on the MARFIN Steering 47 

Committee and there were several projects that were of a fishery 48 
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independent nature that I personally thought were very useful in 1 

the reef fish and other areas that I recommended, but that’s yet 2 

to be determined what projects will be funded, but there’s some 3 

work in that area, too. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  All I was going to say is we select the members of 6 

the SSC and we try and get the best scientists we have and on 7 

the SSC are state scientists that are involved in this type of 8 

work, as well as members of academia and all.  To me, that’s a 9 

no-brainer.  They’re the people that should be giving us the 10 

advice on this thing. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and vote on this one then.  All 13 

in favor of the motion signify by saying aye; opposed.  The 14 

motion passes. 15 

 16 

MS. MORRIS:  I would like to offer another motion that would be 17 

to have the council chair draft a letter strongly urging Dr. 18 

Lubchenco to give a high priority to fishery independent 19 

research funding regarding the age structure of red snapper, as 20 

soon as possible.  The letter should refer to the 21 

recommendations from the stock assessment workshop for further 22 

research. 23 

 24 

MR. GILL:  Second. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  This also seems to be a no-brainer.  There’s a 27 

motion on the board.  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion 28 

passes. 29 

 30 

MR. TEEHAN:  Before we leave red snapper, which I suspect we’re 31 

about to do, I just wanted to ask Roy real quick, now that we’ve 32 

picked a total allowable catch for 2010, to review or refresh 33 

our memory on what the schedule they predict will be for giving 34 

us the closing date of the recreational season. 35 

 36 

The reason I ask that is a certain amount of timing involved as 37 

far as Florida’s consideration of consistency with our meeting 38 

schedule.  We have a meeting the 17th and 18th of February and I 39 

suspect we won’t have a date then.  We have another meeting the 40 

28th and the 29th of April and I think Roy indicated we won’t know 41 

an ending date until May. 42 

 43 

That leaves us with a meeting date of the 23rd and 24th of June to 44 

make a determination of consistency with the recreational season 45 

in the Gulf and if that’s the case and it turns out to be a mid 46 

to end of July closing date, that’s going to be problematic for 47 

my state to try to get something in place without taking 48 
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emergency action.  I was just wondering if Roy could refresh our 1 

memories on the delivery date. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  Having consulted with Mr. Teehan on this and 4 

recognizing the importance of trying to maintain compatible 5 

regulations with Florida, I think what we can do is when we put 6 

out the proposed rule, we can put in there that if this rule is 7 

approved the closure date would be this.   8 

 9 

If the rule is not approved, it would be that and I think that 10 

would give you the guidance you need and that would happen well 11 

in advance of your April meeting and that would give you 12 

something you could go forward with.  If we can have all of our 13 

landings in in March sometime, then we ought to be able to do 14 

that in the rule and that would also give -- I know particularly 15 

the charterboat folks want to know when is the fishery going to 16 

close and I think that would give them as good a guidance as we 17 

can as to what’s going to happen. 18 

 19 

Could I remind you that you’re going to need to have a vote to 20 

submit to the Secretary and to deem the regulations?  We didn’t 21 

do that and I don’t know if your plan is to do that after the 22 

report is concluded, but I’ll just remind you that we’ll need a 23 

roll call vote to submit and deem the regulations. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and do that now.  We need a 26 

motion and a roll call vote, a motion to send this to the 27 

Secretary.  Is that correct? 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  So moved. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded and, like I say, 32 

we need a roll call vote.  Does this also include the deem 33 

necessary?  We’ll add that.  Shep, would you provide the 34 

verbiage for the deem necessary? 35 

 36 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just add -- It’s to send the Red Snapper 37 

Regulatory Amendment to the Secretary of Commerce along with the 38 

accompanying regulations we deem necessary and appropriate. 39 

 40 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ready for the roll call?  Dr. 41 

Shipp. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 46 

 47 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 48 



129 

 

 1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 2 

 3 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 4 

 5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Ray. 10 

 11 

MR. RAY:  Yes. 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Minton. 14 

 15 

MR. MINTON:  Yes. 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 20 

 21 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight. 22 

 23 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  Yes. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 26 

 27 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Morris. 30 

 31 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 32 

 33 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 34 

 35 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 40 

 41 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 42 

 43 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 46 

 47 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 48 
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 1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 2 

 3 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 4 

 5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 6 

 7 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 10 

 11 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I’ll report that all votes were 14 

positive for this vote. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Bortone. 17 

 18 

MR. MINTON:  Under the Options Paper for Amendment 32, Steve 19 

Atran, Assane Diagne and Carrie Simmons reviewed the comments 20 

received at eight scoping meetings held around the Gulf coast 21 

and Steve Atran reviewed a summary of the written comments 22 

received.  Steve Atran then reviewed the actions in the options 23 

paper. 24 

 25 

Action 1, Rebuilding Plan for Gag, Shepherd Grimes advised the 26 

committee that in order to have a full range of alternatives, a 27 

new alternative should be added to reflect the shortest possible 28 

time period that the stock could recover.  Without objection, 29 

the committee passed the following motion, to establish in 30 

Action 1 a new Alternative 4, establish a rebuilding plan that 31 

will rebuild the gag stock to a level consistent with producing 32 

maximum sustainable yield in five years. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have a committee motion.  35 

Is there any discussion?  Is there any objection?  Without 36 

objection, the motion passes.   37 

 38 

MR. MINTON:  Under Action 2, Recreational Sector Separation, the 39 

committee discussed this and there was a motion with one 40 

opposition to delete Action 2, the Recreational Sector 41 

Separation, from Reef Fish Amendment 32 and incorporate it into 42 

the Generic ACL/AM Amendment. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  45 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 46 

 47 

MR. MINTON:   Under Action 3, Annual Catch Limits and Annual 48 
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Catch Targets, the committee members noted that the current 1 

alternatives either did not specify an annual catch target or 2 

set ACT equal to optimum yield.   3 

 4 

A motion was made to develop an ACT Control Rule to address 5 

management uncertainty and set the ACT based on the control 6 

rule.  The following motion was passed without opposition.  The 7 

motion applies to the alternatives to set ACL and ACT for both 8 

red grouper and gag.  For Actions 3.1 and 3.2, add an 9 

Alternative 4, in which ACT would be set by an ACT control rule 10 

that took into consideration management uncertainty. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There’s a committee motion.  Is there 13 

discussion?  Is there objections?  Hearing none, the motion 14 

passes. 15 

 16 

MR. MINTON:  Roy Crabtree felt the basis for the red grouper and 17 

gag ABCs were not clear in the options paper and they needed to 18 

be made clear.  He suggested that the council write a letter to 19 

the Science Center asking for an explanation of why the SSC 20 

adopted the specified ABCs.  We didn’t have a motion on that.  21 

It was kind of by consensus and so do you want to make a motion 22 

or do we need to?  I don’t really know. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t think we need.  Steve sent out some more 25 

information and talked to Sean Powers and others that I think 26 

address this, but I think what we need to make sure we do is 27 

that in this document that we very clearly lay out what the 28 

basis is for the recommendations. 29 

 30 

If you just look at the SSC report, it’s very difficult to 31 

figure out, but I think Steve talking to Clay and Sean and the 32 

folks who were here, I think they’ve figured it out.  We just 33 

need to include that in the document and, of course, we have 34 

Science Center folks who participate on the teams putting 35 

together and so I think we just need to make sure that we do 36 

that and we’ll be all right. 37 

 38 

MR. MINTON:  Under Accountability Measures, Action 4, Steve 39 

Atran noted that the proposed accountability measures should be 40 

applied only to gag and red grouper within the shallow-water 41 

grouper aggregate and not to the deep-water grouper or tilefish. 42 

 43 

Under Action 5, Adjustments to Multi-Use IFQ shares, Assane 44 

Diagne reviewed the alternatives and rationale for including 45 

this action to adjust multi-use shares in response to an 46 

expected low gag commercial allocation.  The committee took no 47 

action on this section.  I guess I’ll wait for a second to see 48 
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if anyone wants to in full council. 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  We kind of flew through the accountability 3 

measures in Action 4 and I would like to back up to that for a 4 

second if we could.  That got very confusing I think to 5 

everyone, because of the acronyms and the complexity of it. 6 

 7 

What I would suggest that we do here is we put in place 8 

accountability mechanisms, ACLs and all those things, for gag 9 

and red grouper in Amendment 30B.  I would like to see this laid 10 

out as here’s what we put in place and we have new ABC 11 

recommendations now and here’s how they fit into that and then 12 

here are the things that, based on that, we would need to 13 

change. 14 

 15 

For example, I think the way we set it up, the ACL was equal to 16 

the yield at MSY and now it would have to be equal to the ABC 17 

and so that would be a change.  At that point, gag was not 18 

overfished and now it is and we ought to consider whether we 19 

need to have a payback provision. 20 

 21 

Then I think the other issue that Steve raised had to do with 22 

the three-year running average on the recreational catches and 23 

when you lower the ACL, you need to restart the calculation of 24 

those.  Otherwise, you’re going to have those high catches 25 

before you lowered it and it’s going to make it look like you go 26 

over. 27 

 28 

I would like to just see here’s what we put in place and here 29 

are the things that are a problem now and give us alternatives 30 

to fix those problems, rather than trying to reinvent the whole 31 

wheel, unless somebody on the council wants to try to reinvent 32 

the whole wheel, but we spent quite a bit of time working on 33 

that and that really just went into place very recently and I 34 

would just as soon not start all over on that and just tweak it 35 

and bring it up to date based on the new assessment. 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, when we have two sectors that fish on our 38 

stocks, such as commercial and recreational, if commercial 39 

should go over or vice versa, recreational, on these grouper 40 

quotas, then when we have to go back in and lower the TAC, 41 

perhaps because of our assessments on our stocks, who is going 42 

to do the payback on those if one sector stayed within their 43 

allocation whereas the other sector did not? 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  In the way we set it up in 30B, there was no 46 

payback provision, but they were sector-specific ACLs.  We then 47 

subsequently modified the commercial ACL through a subsequent 48 
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rulemaking, based on the IFQ.  What it was set up was, I think 1 

for both gag and red grouper, was that if the recreational 2 

sector went over, then their season would be shortened the next 3 

year to prevent them from going over again.  They were, and, 4 

Steve, correct me if I’m wrong on any of this, but they were set 5 

up as sector-specific ACLs. 6 

 7 

I think we need to consider do we put a payback in, which we did 8 

with greater amberjack, because it was overfished, and it was 9 

sector-specific as well, but we didn’t do that in Amendment 30B 10 

with either gag or red grouper and so that’s one of the changes 11 

we would look at. 12 

 13 

MR. MINTON:  Anything further?  Okay.  Going to Action 5 then, 14 

we’ve read through that and we took no action on this section.  15 

Any comments on this section?  Action 6, Recreational Bag 16 

Limits, Size Limits and Closed Seasons, there are currently no 17 

alternatives in this section, since the council has requested 18 

that the Science Center reevaluate its red grouper and gag 19 

projections once the final 2009 landings are available.  It was 20 

staff’s intent to have scenarios based on the reanalysis 21 

available at the April council meeting.  22 

 23 

MR. ATRAN:  That was our intent, but during the Reef Fish 24 

Committee meeting, we learned that the reanalysis will not be 25 

available until probably after the April council meeting and so 26 

we will have scenarios based upon the current analysis, but I 27 

expect we’ll have that reanalysis ready for the final action. 28 

 29 

MR. MINTON:  Thank you, Steve.  On Action 7, Bycatch Issues, 30 

7.1, Commercial Bycatch, Ms. Morris stated that a discussion of 31 

commercial dead discards needed to be in this section in order 32 

to evaluate the objectives of the section.   33 

 34 

Mr. Atran noted that there was dead discard information in the 35 

document, but it was in the introductory section.  Dr. Crabtree 36 

suggested that alternatives be added to adjust red grouper catch 37 

levels, including adjustments to OY, in order to reduce gag dead 38 

discards.  The following motion was passed without objection, to 39 

add alternatives to adjust the red grouper catch levels, 40 

including OY, in order to reduce gag discards as required. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  43 

Is there any objection?  Without objection, the motion passes. 44 

 45 

MS. MORRIS:  The committee report is I think wrong.  What I was 46 

requesting was a discussion and a set of options dealing with 47 

recreational dead discards be added to the document.  I just 48 



134 

 

wanted to clarify that. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, and I know we’ve -- I guess we’re past there 3 

somewhat.  Can this document have a payback in it for going over 4 

or can you just do that, since we had no paybacks? 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  As we talked about in the accountability 7 

mechanisms, I think there should be an alternative in there for 8 

the council to consider whether they want to add a payback 9 

provision and I think -- I saw some heads nodding when I talked 10 

about doing it that way and I assumed that we were in agreement 11 

on that and that’s what we were going to do and so that would be 12 

an alternative that would be in there to modify our current 13 

accountability mechanisms. 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I just wanted to make sure 16 

that we were going to do that. 17 

 18 

MR. MINTON:  If you look down below, Action 7.2, Mr. Atran noted 19 

that the recreational bycatch was inadvertently left out and so 20 

I don’t know where to head with that.  Steven, we need to have 21 

it in there the next time around, I guess. 22 

 23 

MR. ATRAN:  It will be in there. 24 

 25 

MR. MINTON:  Thank you.  Section 7.2, Consideration of Fish 26 

Traps as Allowable Gear, Mr. Teehan read from a statement from 27 

the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission which had previously 28 

been provided to the council in which the Florida Fish and 29 

Wildlife Commission stated that it does not consider fish traps 30 

an appropriate gear for a fishery currently under a rebuilding 31 

plan.   32 

 33 

He made a motion to delete this section from the amendment.  Bob 34 

Gill moved to amend the motion by adding wording to refer the 35 

issue to the Reef Fish AP for their recommendations, but there 36 

was no second to the amendment.  The following motion then 37 

passed by a vote of six to zero, to delete Action 7.2, 38 

Consideration of Fish Traps as an Allowable Gear. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion? 41 

 42 

MR. GRIMES:  Just given all the testimony that you heard 43 

yesterday and all the discussion around this issue generally, if 44 

this were to pass, it would just be based on the same rationale 45 

that you had when you originally removed the gear from the 46 

fishery and that was a fairly recent decision and all of those 47 

reasons remain valid, perhaps, and that would be a basis for not 48 
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considering this action any further. 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  We heard enforcement comments from Tracy and 3 

while there were some comments about you can enforce anything I 4 

think someone said, we all recognize that things that require 5 

at-sea enforcement pose particularly tough challenges. 6 

 7 

That has been the issue with these types of unattended gear all 8 

along and I think those concerns remain and so I think it is 9 

very legitimate for you to factor enforceability into your 10 

decisions. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Any further discussion?  Any objection to the motion?  13 

The motion passes without objection. 14 

 15 

MR. MINTON:  Under Action 8, Recreational Data Collection and 16 

Monitoring Programs, committee members noted that it should be 17 

clear that any data collected under alternatives in this section 18 

must be coordinated with the Marine Recreational Information 19 

Program.  After discussion, the following motion passed four to 20 

three, defer Action 8 to a subsequent data amendment. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 23 

 24 

MS. MORRIS:  I’m going to offer a substitute motion.  I sent it 25 

to Phyllis and it’s up on the board.  This was a close vote in 26 

committee.  It was a four to three vote.  Part of the rationale 27 

for excluding it or deferring it was that it wasn’t timely and 28 

we wouldn’t be able to complete the work on having better data 29 

and monitoring available before mid-summer when we have to set 30 

the catch levels for next year. 31 

 32 

What I tried to do was rework Action 8 with a couple of things 33 

in mind, first that whatever data that was being collected would 34 

be consistent with MRIP and second, that the target date for 35 

implementation of this improved data collection and monitoring 36 

would be 2012, so that it’s not something that would have to be 37 

ready to go. 38 

 39 

Third, that everything would be done in collaboration with the 40 

states, in anticipation that these programs would actually be 41 

administered by the states.  Those are the changes that I tried 42 

to incorporate.  My biggest goal is to keep Section 8 in the 43 

document, at least until the next time we look at it, and to 44 

clarify those kinds of things, a 2012 expectation of 45 

implementation, collaboration with the states, and collecting 46 

data that’s consistent with MRIP. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  From my recollection, it also appears is that another 1 

difference is that you deleted the stamp alternative, but other 2 

than that, the other alternatives that were there are included, 3 

but modified.  Is that correct?  Thank you.  Any further 4 

discussion on the substitute motion? 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  What happens if it doesn’t happen by 2012? 7 

 8 

MS. MORRIS:  I guess that’s something that would -- It seems 9 

like we have many deadlines in our management actions that slip 10 

off into the future, beyond when we expect them to.  I don’t 11 

imagine that the consequences would be great, but that would be 12 

something to look at the next time we see the document.  Maybe 13 

it should be 2013. 14 

 15 

I’m hoping that particularly Bill Teehan would begin to have 16 

conversations with the Florida Commission about which of any of 17 

these might be feasible and they might be willing to partner 18 

with us on, because that would be key for the groupers. 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  Could you move up the screen a little bit?  I’m 21 

trying to understand the Alternative 3 there.  This would be a -22 

- I guess it’s not clear to me what MRIP consistent data means 23 

in that context.  MRIP just doesn’t work that way currently.  24 

MRIP has an effort survey and then dockside interviews and it’s 25 

just not clear to me what that means exactly. 26 

 27 

MR. SIMPSON:  I’m not speaking for Julie, but it seems to me 28 

that if you institute some kind of electronic reporting that’s 29 

not consistent with MRIP, then that would be something you 30 

wouldn’t want to do.  If there is electronic reporting or forms 31 

or systems that would go into place that would be adverse or not 32 

in the same form or protocol as MRIP, that would be something 33 

you would want to shy away from. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  Roy, I guess I would ask the question of whether you 36 

or Shep see problems with the motion as proposed.  Are there any 37 

issues there that would concern you?  We took it out in 38 

committee because of concerns on timeline.  There’s an attempt 39 

here by Julie to obviate that concern and I guess my question 40 

is, from your perspective, does it meet that? 41 

 42 

DR. CRABTREE:  I still have the same concerns about our ability 43 

to get this done in the timeline that the amendment is being 44 

developed.  I guess if you want to put this back in to see it 45 

fleshed out a little bit more and then come back to this, that’s 46 

fine, but most of these are very complicated things that the 47 

details of how to do them are far from worked out and what’s 48 
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going to happen with MRIP and how MRIP is going to handle these 1 

types of things is not clear yet. 2 

 3 

I think and suspect that MRIP will move towards electronic 4 

logbooks in the for-hire sector, but that’s yet to be proven 5 

that that’s a workable way to go and so I think it’s up to you 6 

if you want to put it back in.  I still have concerns about the 7 

timing, but if the council wants to see this more further 8 

developed and come back to it at the next council meeting, 9 

that’s fine. 10 

 11 

MR. MINTON:  I’ve got some similar concerns about the timeline 12 

and our ability to actually put together a program, a functional 13 

program, during that time.  There’s an awful lot of areas that 14 

we would have to cover and so I’m -- I want to see this happen, 15 

but I don’t think this document is the place for it to be.   16 

 17 

I think it’s got to be almost a stand-alone kind of a document 18 

to cover all the different areas and it’s going to take some 19 

time, with all the little things that will have to happen, 20 

before it will actually be accomplished.  I like the idea, but I 21 

don’t like the timing of it right now. 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  At committee, I voted to keep this in and I’m 24 

going to keep that vein here.  I think everyone around the table 25 

probably realizes that it may come out the next time and 26 

obviously we can’t meet those deadlines and timelines up there, 27 

but as we hear our public testimony, and we hear it time and 28 

again, we hear that need for better data and we hear people and 29 

a passion from people out there that want to give us that better 30 

information. 31 

 32 

We need to signal to them that we’re trying and that we’re 33 

really trying to put some thought into it and that we’re -- It 34 

does require thought, as Vernon is suggesting.  We can’t just 35 

get better immediately.  We have to do it the right way, but we 36 

need to spend some time talking about it and thinking about it 37 

and having the Center work on it.  I know there’s a lot of folks 38 

behind the scenes working on it, but we need to kind of show 39 

people what we’re doing. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  I agree with Robin on that point.  Julie, you 42 

mentioned Mr. Teehan doing all he could, but the motion says 43 

“states” and so we’ve got five states involved.  As well as the 44 

Center working on it, the states have people involved with data 45 

collection and so on and so I’m sure it’s going to be a 46 

cooperative effort between all those involved. 47 

 48 
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MR. TEEHAN:  I’m going to pile on here.  I did vote to remove 1 

this in committee, but I think Robin hit the nail right on the 2 

head.  We heard a lot of public testimony yesterday that people 3 

are starting to get discouraged with the council and our lack of 4 

action in trying to progress with this. 5 

 6 

They want to give us data and they know that that’s the biggest 7 

problem, probably, in stock assessments and so I’m going to vote 8 

in favor of this. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Thank you.  We have a lengthy substitute motion on 11 

the board.  Any further discussion?  All those in favor say aye; 12 

all those opposed like sign.  The motion passes.   13 

 14 

MR. MINTON:  That takes us down to Time and Area Closures.  15 

Carrie Simmons reviewed the alternatives and rationale for this 16 

section.  Bob Gill recommended that the default dates for new 17 

time/area closures be consistent with the Edges closure dates of 18 

January through April.  Ms. Williams did not see the need for 19 

additional closures.  She made a motion to remove Action 9 from 20 

the document, but the motion failed to get a second.  After 21 

that, we recessed and reconvened on Wednesday.  Limited Access 22 

Privilege Program -- 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Under your Action 9, on the Time and Area 25 

Closures, what I had a problem with it is that the expanding 26 

that area, expanding that closure, did not go out in the 27 

previous document to scoping.   28 

 29 

It was put in the document because someone called the council 30 

office and asked that it be put in there, one fisherman, and the 31 

fact that the expansion didn’t go out, that was one of my main 32 

reasons for not supporting it, but if it is the desire of this 33 

committee to leave that expansion in this document, then we are 34 

going to have to have some analysis from Andy with the VMS data, 35 

landing data.   36 

 37 

I’m sure there’s other things that may need to be included, but 38 

there’s a lot of work that Carrie is going to have to do because 39 

of this expansion as far as evaluating what we’re going to 40 

achieve from it. 41 

 42 

We also still need the information about the credit that’s going 43 

to be given as far as the closure that we put on the fishers 44 

presently for those particular areas that are closed.  We’re 45 

always closing areas, but we’re never giving anything back 46 

because of it and like I said, I would ask that staff get with 47 

the Science Center and have the evaluations as to what are the 48 
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fishermen going to be losing by closing this other additional 1 

area that did not go out in the previous scoping document.  2 

Carrie, is that all you would need for that?  Have I missed 3 

anything?  You got it all? 4 

 5 

Those are just my comments.  I’m not going to ask that you 6 

remove it.  I just wanted it on the record that this expansion 7 

did not go out in the previous document and it was put in there 8 

because we had one fisherman call and ask that we include it.  9 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 10 

 11 

MR. MINTON:  Thank you, Ms. Williams.  Under the Limited Access 12 

Privilege Program, Assane Diagne summarized the report of the 13 

Limited Access Privilege Program Advisory Panel meeting and the 14 

issues discussed included resource allocation, accountability in 15 

all sectors, pros and cons of catch shares, and data collection 16 

improvements.  17 

 18 

Following that, we had the Approval of the Upcoming Assessment 19 

Schedules.  The committee reviewed the proposed schedules for 20 

SEDAR-22, benchmark assessment of yellowedge grouper and 21 

tilefish, the 2010 greater amberjack update assessment, and 22 

SEDAR-23, benchmark assessment of goliath grouper. 23 

 24 

Bill Teehan noted that recent cold weather had produced an 25 

unscheduled fish kill and resulted in a number of dead goliath 26 

groupers that were being added to the biological database for 27 

the goliath grouper assessment.  Under Other Business, Greater 28 

Amberjack, Mr. Greene asked if the council could -- 29 

 30 

DR. PONWITH:  Just for clarity’s sake, the schedules for those 31 

SEDAR actions were reviewed and there was concern that by not 32 

voting on the schedule that it represented a lack of endorsement 33 

of the schedule.  Those SEDARs are scheduled to start beginning 34 

in April, the pre-meetings for it. 35 

 36 

It is unconventional to go to the council for an overview of the 37 

actual schedule of the individual SEDAR process as opposed to 38 

the annual and out-year SEDAR schedule, what species are going 39 

to be scheduled.  The reason for this change is that this is the 40 

first year that we’re implementing the revised SEDAR approach 41 

that we’ve been in discussion with over the last year. 42 

 43 

Just for the sake of clarity, we wanted to make certain that the 44 

council did endorse the SEDAR schedule that we have on the 45 

table, not only the species, but also the schedule that we’re 46 

using for FY2010.  Thank you. 47 

 48 
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MR. MINTON:  I recall during committee we went through and asked 1 

everyone if there was any problems or questions they had and so 2 

I guess we would ask the full council to go back and look at the 3 

dates that are scheduled under those and if I don’t hear an 4 

objection, then we’ll assume that it’s been looked over and 5 

approved.   6 

 7 

 8 

Under Other Business, Greater Amberjack, Mr. Greene asked if the 9 

council could explore the option of changing the start of the 10 

year for the greater amberjack season for 2011 to later in the 11 

year, around June.  This would allow charterboat operators to 12 

use the available open days more efficiently.   13 

 14 

I think we talked about that and I believe we’re going to try to 15 

look at that later on, possibly in -- Roy, was that June, the 16 

later opening for the amberjack?  We talked about it, that it 17 

could be a positive thing for everyone, and I think we said we 18 

would have data in possibly by June, to tell us what those 19 

numbers would do.  Do you recall? 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think the plan is for staff to start working on 22 

a framework amendment with some alternatives and bring it back 23 

to you at the next council meeting.  The June was a target date 24 

to take final action on the regulatory amendment and submit it 25 

to the Secretary, so we could go through rulemaking and have it 26 

effective by January 1, 2011. 27 

 28 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t know that we need a motion for this, but 29 

I’ll just try to make it, unless I see a nod from Roy saying we 30 

do.  I would like an option -- We talked about split options 31 

around the red snapper season and I think I would like an option 32 

that the best we can would split those days, whatever they are, 33 

that would go up to the red snapper season and then when red 34 

snapper closes, it goes the other way as well. 35 

 36 

We talked about one.  Andy presented one split option, but I 37 

kind of want one that benchmarks both sides of the red snapper 38 

season as well.  Do we need a motion for that, Roy, or can you 39 

all just include that in the next -- 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think you just need to instruct your staff, 42 

council staff, that you want to see that and whatever specific 43 

guidance you give them is always helpful. 44 

 45 

MR. RIECHERS:  Do we need a motion to that, Mr. Chair, or is 46 

that just understood? 47 

 48 
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MR. MINTON:  It would probably be cleaner with a motion. 1 

 2 

MR. RIECHERS:  I would move that in regards to greater amberjack 3 

we look at an alternative that splits the number of fishing days 4 

to have an open period prior to the red snapper season and 5 

immediately following the red snapper season.  6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  Second. 8 

 9 

MR. MINTON:  There’s a motion and a second. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s in addition to some other alternatives. 12 

 13 

MR. RIECHERS:  Absolutely, some of those that Andy already 14 

presented, yes. 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s fine. 17 

 18 

MR. MINTON:  We’ve got a motion on the board.  Any objection to 19 

the motion?  Hearing none, the motion carries.  Andy Strelcheck 20 

gave a PowerPoint presentation on projected landings and 21 

alternative seasons.   22 

 23 

For 2010, due to a reduction in harvest level because of a 24 

221,000 pound overage in 2009, the preliminary projection for a 25 

2010 recreational greater amberjack season would be January 1 to 26 

July 21.   27 

 28 

In 2011, assuming the current quota is in effect and there is no 29 

overage payback, the season is projected to remain open for 238 30 

to 333 days, with the longest opening occurring if the month of 31 

May is closed.  Depending on the results of the greater 32 

amberjack update assessment, there could also be a change in the 33 

TAC that would allow a year-round season. 34 

 35 

In Other Business, Quota Set-asides, Kay Williams described a 36 

program from the Mid-Atlantic region in which set-asides of 3 to 37 

5 percent of the quota were created by a framework action.  38 

Fishermen were then allowed to submit research proposals and bid 39 

for portions of the set-aside quota.  In this way, additional 40 

data could be obtained on species and fishermen could fish 41 

outside of the quota closures.  Mr. Chair, I believe that 42 

concludes any action items and the basic summary of the report. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Minton.  There are a number of 45 

other items that we need to address right now.  Roy, I think you 46 

wanted to say something about the funding issue, the $50,000.  47 

Is that correct? 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  We heard about this in public testimony and I 2 

looked through and found exactly what that is.  There was a 3 

$50,000 Gulf of Mexico Recreational Fishery Electronic Logbook 4 

Pilot and what you need to understand is this is the President’s 5 

budget and it never includes congressional earmarks. 6 

 7 

They are always taken out and not in there and so the fact that 8 

that’s not there doesn’t mean anything other than that’s the way 9 

the budget process works.  You can go through here and there are 10 

a great deal, a huge number, of projects that are zeroed out 11 

because they are congressional earmarks that were put in. 12 

 13 

Now, Congress may put that back in or they may not and that will 14 

be their decision, but the fact that it’s not in there now -- I 15 

could have told you before the budget came out that those 16 

wouldn’t have been in there, because they’re never in there, 17 

because they’re congressional earmarks and Congress has to put 18 

them in. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Roy.   21 

 22 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s been suggested -- I would like 23 

to have someone propose a motion that we formally accept the 24 

SEDAR schedule that was presented. 25 

 26 

MR. PERRET:  So moved. 27 

 28 

MR. TEEHAN:  Second. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded to accept the 31 

SEDAR schedule.  Any objections?  Hearing none -- Mr. Teehan, I 32 

think you have a little action here. 33 

 34 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’ll be very brief.  Due 35 

to the time constraints, we went ahead and canceled the dancing 36 

girls and the cake for this, but in light of the four -- This is 37 

not to take away from any of the other scoping hearings that 38 

were held for 32, but we had four of them in Florida and the 39 

Florida contingent just wanted to recognize Mr. Ed Sapp for his 40 

contributions of driving from Gainesville to Key West up to St. 41 

Petersburg and down to Ft. Myers and back up to Panama City and 42 

then back to Gainesville all within a week. 43 

 44 

In recognition of that, the Florida contingent to the Gulf of 45 

Mexico Fishery Management Council would like to present the Road 46 

Dog of the Year Award to Mr. Sapp. 47 

 48 
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MR. SAPP:  I will display it in a place of honor, I can assure 1 

you. 2 

 3 

MS. MORRIS:  On a related topic, Bob Gill and I have been 4 

working with the Fisheries Leadership and Sustainability Forum 5 

on a policy paper about the complexity of the gag and red 6 

grouper issues that we’re working with and we came up with an 7 

outline and a couple of staff members from the Fisheries 8 

Leadership and Sustainability Forum developed that into a 9 

discussion paper. 10 

 11 

I think we emailed it to everybody yesterday and one of the 12 

authors who worked with us on that is Katie Latanich and she’s 13 

in the audience.  She’s been with us the whole meeting.  She 14 

works at Duke University and I just want to commend them for 15 

their help on this and I want to encourage everybody to take a 16 

look at the discussion paper. 17 

 18 

At the beginning of it, there’s like some questions, eight 19 

questions, that Bob and Katie and Amy and I developed together, 20 

which seem like they’re really at the core of what our challenge 21 

is in managing gag and red grouper at this point in time. 22 

 23 

Then at the end, they circulated the discussion paper to a 24 

number of experts at universities around the country who have 25 

experience in creative ways of dealing with the kinds of fishery 26 

management challenges that we are facing and there’s a number of 27 

case studies and good ideas and links on how to follow up on 28 

those kinds of things and I just want to encourage everybody to 29 

take a look at the discussion paper, particularly those eight 30 

questions at the beginning. 31 

 32 

The stuff at the middle, we’ve all been living through and so we 33 

know it, but then the case studies and analysis at the end I 34 

think are very useful and helpful, not just in this fishery, but 35 

in the other reef fish fisheries we’re working on. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Julie.  Vernon, you said you had one 38 

more sentence? 39 

 40 

MR. MINTON:  I think I should get this into the record for sure, 41 

although it is written in the report.  Under these quota set-42 

asides, in the last couple of sentences, it says: It was 43 

suggested that this be put on the agenda for discussion at the 44 

next Data Collection Committee meeting and Steve Bortone stated 45 

that he would canvass the other councils to see what they were 46 

doing with set-asides.  Thank you. 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  Just one more item and it was just brought to my 1 

attention that this is relative to the EFP for Mr. Haugen on 2 

fish traps.  That notice of receipt of that EFP filed with the 3 

Federal Register this morning and so that starts a thirty-day 4 

public comment period on that EFP and I wanted to make you folks 5 

aware of that, because I wasn’t sure if it had or had not filed. 6 

 7 

MR. SAPP:  Just another issue that I think the council ought to 8 

begin to have some discussion on is the review of the red 9 

snapper IFQ.  We’re into the fourth year of our five-year plan 10 

and it’s required that we review it and I think we need some 11 

guidance as to timing and what are the things that we probably 12 

need to be looking at.  Towards that end, I think that Phil is 13 

prepared to maybe give us a timeline and some guidance. 14 

 15 

MR. STEELE:  Mr. Sapp brings up an interesting point, that the 16 

council is charged with evaluating the IFQ program, in this case 17 

the red snapper, to see if it’s meeting its goals and 18 

objectives.  As you know, we established the red snapper IFQ 19 

program in January of 2007 and the five-year review comes up in 20 

December of 2011. 21 

 22 

There was specific language in Amendment 26, which is the IFQ 23 

amendment, under Action 2.  The preferred alternative under 24 

Program Duration was to not limit the duration of the IFQ 25 

program.  However, it does require a review every five years. 26 

 27 

Similar language in Section 303A of Magnuson also says any 28 

limited access privilege program shall include provisions for 29 

regular monitoring and review by the council and the Secretary 30 

of the operation of the program, including determining progress 31 

and meeting the goals and objectives of this program. 32 

 33 

There really aren’t any established criteria for determining the 34 

effectiveness of these programs.  I think Lee Anderson, in his 35 

LAPPs-101, had a little bit of guidelines of how we determine 36 

the effectiveness of the programs, but more importantly, I think 37 

there’s a movement afoot at the Science Center now in developing 38 

a survey with our economists down there to determine the 39 

effectiveness.  I would defer to Dr. Ponwith on this to bring us 40 

up to date on this program and to give us her recommendations on 41 

how to proceed. 42 

 43 

DR. PONWITH:  Dr. Jim Waters is collaborating with Dr. Walter 44 

Keithly right now in the development of a survey instrument and 45 

it’s still underway and so I haven’t reviewed it yet, but 46 

they’re early in the stages of putting it together.  I presume, 47 

because these are both economists, that this is going to be 48 
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focusing on the economic capabilities of the program. 1 

 2 

The real question is, what are the aspects, in terms of how the 3 

program is performing, in addition to the economic performance, 4 

do we feel as though are important to be evaluated and actually 5 

come up with a plan to tackle each of those components of it. 6 

 7 

Also, if the council had input that they wished to include, so 8 

that it could be incorporated into the design of that survey, 9 

this would be a good time.  The reason that we’re beginning the 10 

work so early is that as a survey it naturally has to go through 11 

PRA, Paperwork Reduction Act, clearance and that’s a very long 12 

process and we want to get this moving early enough that we 13 

don’t hit barriers with it. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re opening an issue here and a lot of hands 16 

have gone up and we’re short on time and I’m afraid we wouldn’t 17 

do justice to this if we get into a discussion at this meeting.  18 

Perhaps the idea would be staff for develop some sort of a 19 

discussion paper for the April meeting and in the meantime, 20 

council members can determine whether there are aspects that 21 

they would like to address regarding the five-year review of the 22 

IFQ. 23 

 24 

I would really prefer not to get into the discussion now, 25 

because we just don’t have time to do it justice.  Any problem 26 

with that?  Okay.  Let’s go ahead and get a formal motion. 27 

 28 

MR. SAPP:  I make a motion that we request that staff develop a 29 

discussion paper regarding issues involving the five-year 30 

anniversary of the red snapper IFQ. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Second. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Bob, you were there and, Vernon, you were there 37 

and Corky and Larry and several of us sitting around this table 38 

was involved with the IFQ.  What it said is the council would 39 

review to see if it was meeting its goals and objectives as 40 

stated in that plan and so that’s what we need to look at.  You 41 

open the document and you look at what the goals and objectives 42 

were of that plan. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, I think both Phil and Bonnie have 45 

indicated what Magnuson says and what Amendment 26 included and 46 

I think the motion is appropriate and again, this is not the 47 

time to start a lengthy discussion on that.  We can do this in 48 
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April. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, it’s not saying don’t do it.  What 3 

it’s saying is -- Because we’re asking staff to develop a 4 

discussion paper and all I was doing was letting staff know to 5 

go back and look just at the goals and the objectives while 6 

they’re doing this discussion paper. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Fine, but let’s move on though. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would point out to you too the plan says after 11 

five years and so it went in place in 2007 and so that’s 2007, 12 

2008, 2009, 2010, 2011.  After five years means January of 2012 13 

and not January of 2011, five years of the program. 14 

 15 

I would suggest that we ask staff just to give a presentation to 16 

us rather than tasking them with developing a formal paper at 17 

this point, but it seems to me the time to really do the 18 

evaluation is after five full years of the program and I think 19 

that was our intent and that doesn’t happen until 2010. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I understand, but, Roy, we can’t wait until 22 

2010 to not even start even thinking about it.  We need to be 23 

prepared when the five years is up.  Any further discussion on 24 

this motion?  Let’s take a vote on this.  All in favor of the 25 

motion as written signify by raising your hand; all opposed.  26 

The motion passes. 27 

 28 

DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  If I may, Mr. Chair, just a question for 29 

clarification.  Essentially, this paper will just present to you 30 

the issues that are typically included in the review of an IFQ 31 

program.  Is that what -- 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s correct.  I think we have completed our 34 

discussion of Reef Fish.  Is that correct, Mr. Minton?  I 35 

applaud you for at least gaining some time.  According to the 36 

agenda, the next item is Budget, Tab K.  37 

 38 

BUDGET COMMITTEE REPORT 39 

 40 

DR. MCILWAIN:   Members present were McIlwain, Fischer, Gill, 41 

Pearce, and Riechers.  The Budget Committee was convened by the 42 

chairman at 1:30 on February 1.  The agenda was approved as 43 

written and the minutes of the August 2009 meeting were approved 44 

as written. 45 

 46 

Ms. Readinger referred to Tab K, Number 3, an allocation table 47 

for all eight councils for Calendar Year 2010.  She advised the 48 
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committee that the Gulf Council’s funding is anticipated to be a 1 

total of $3,574,000.  That’s our total anticipated funding for 2 

Calendar Year 2010. 3 

 4 

Ms. Readinger referred to the handout that presents a comparison 5 

between Calendar Year 2009 and Calendar Year 2010 funding types.  6 

Base funding will be increased by $72,400, LAPP funding remains 7 

at the same level, ACL implementation funding will be increased 8 

by $518,200, NEPA funding will be decreased by $2,000, and SEDAR 9 

funding remains at the same level as 2009. 10 

 11 

The total anticipated funding for 2010 is $3,574,000, which is a 12 

$590,000 increase over the council’s total 2009 funding.  13 

Calendar Year 2010 funding has not become available and the 14 

Program Office has conveyed that funding will be available in a 15 

couple of weeks. 16 

 17 

The council’s 2010 budget submitted to NOAA totaled $3,740,700, 18 

or $166,600 more than the anticipated funding.  Staff will 19 

present a revised budget to the council based on actual 2010 20 

funding for review and approval at the April council meeting. 21 

 22 

There was discussion relating to the council’s 2009 carryover 23 

funding and Ms. Williams asked if the carryover funding was 24 

included in the numbers.  Ms. Readinger responded that the 25 

carryover funding in the amount of $354,700 is not included in 26 

the 2010 budget numbers.   27 

 28 

Ms. Williams asked if the council’s 2010 budget would have a 29 

$166,000 funding shortage.  Ms. Readinger replied that staff 30 

will revise the budget based on the actual funding.  The budget 31 

was submitted at a level higher than the President’s budget, in 32 

the event additional funding should become available.  A formal 33 

budget is not required to be submitted to NOAA. 34 

 35 

Dr. Bortone stressed that the council will probably be level 36 

funded for the next three years and the staff will exercise 37 

frugality to ensure funds are available in future budget years.  38 

Ms. Readinger referred to the Handout for Tab K which compares 39 

2009 and 2010 funding.  It was anticipated that the council will 40 

receive a $590,000 increase. 41 

 42 

Ms. Williams noted that the increased funding plus the no-cost 43 

extension monies will total approximately $900,000.  Mr. Simpson 44 

pointed out that the only money currently available for use in 45 

day-to-day operations is the 2009 carryover money.  Mr. 46 

Chairman, this concludes my report. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. McIlwain. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a motion and that is to request that staff 3 

analyze our 2010 base funding plus carryover, with any other 4 

add-ons, and to include a report on our 2010 operational budget 5 

activities costs and administrative costs.  If I can get a 6 

second, I’ll explain why. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s get it up on the board before we see if 9 

we have a second.   10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It’s to request that staff analyze our 2010 base 12 

funding, plus carryover, with any other add-ons, because 13 

sometimes there are add-ons after, and to include a report on 14 

our 2010 operational budget activities costs and administrative 15 

costs. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second? 18 

 19 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I’ll second it. 20 

 21 

MS. WILLIAMS:  This really isn’t anything new.  Staff normally 22 

prepares an operational budget activities costs, as well as an 23 

administrative cost.  I actually went back and reviewed some of 24 

the things that we did in 2008 and I think when it’s laid out 25 

the way that Cathy did in the particular report that I’m 26 

referring to, she included all of these things.   27 

 28 

There have been times when we’ve just looked at figures and we 29 

really didn’t know what they meant or what the monies was being 30 

spent on.  I think by this it would be helpful, because it’s 31 

going to actually show us if there’s any funding maybe perhaps 32 

available for us to fund some type of research activities. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, can you let Cathy address this? 35 

 36 

MS. CATHY READINGER:  Kay, I just want to make sure I understand 37 

exactly what information you want.  You want operational budget?  38 

We have an administrative budget that includes all of our 39 

activities and is that what you’re referring to? 40 

 41 

I also want to point out that the 2009 carryover funding is 42 

designated for specific activities.  That’s why it was approved 43 

and so those are not funds that we can divert to anything else.  44 

It’s specifically for those activities that we included in the 45 

no-cost extension. 46 

 47 

MR. RIECHERS:  I certainly can support the motion, but what I 48 
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might say is we may just want to have that in paper at the next 1 

meeting and then at the following meeting maybe get an update 2 

from Cathy, because really at the next meeting we’re just going 3 

to barely be into our fiscal year and so you’re really going to 4 

know whether you have savings to move around or do some things 5 

with further on down the year. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s address this budget.  All in favor of the 8 

motion signify by raising your hand; all opposed.  The motion 9 

carries.  The next item is the Administrative Policy. 10 

 11 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 12 

 13 

MS. MORRIS:  I’m not going to read the whole report.  The first 14 

motion is at the top of page 2 and it deals with some minor 15 

revisions to the section of the SOPPs that deal with council 16 

compensation and so I’ll read that motion. 17 

 18 

On behalf of the committee, I so move to restore the Federal 19 

Rule 50 CFR 600.245 and NOAA Guidelines to Section V.B.1.a. of 20 

the SOPPs and to adopt all of the changes as presented in red, 21 

so that it will read: “Council Compensation.  Council members 22 

whose eligibility for compensation has been established in 23 

accordance with the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and 24 

Management Act and NOAA guidelines as indicated in Section 25 

V.B.1. will be paid on a contract basis without deductions being 26 

made for Social Security or Federal and State income taxes.  The 27 

level of compensation for authorized Council members shall be as 28 

established in accordance with Section 302(d) of the Act and the 29 

federal rule (50 CFR 600.245). 30 

 31 

Compensation will be paid to eligible Council members for time 32 

spent in the performance of official duties for the Council and 33 

as authorized by the Council or the Council Chair.  Payment will 34 

be made for a full day's pay whether the duties performed are in 35 

excess of or less than eight hours a day for physical attendance 36 

at authorized meetings.  Payment for authorized participation in 37 

conference calls, webinars, or any other electronic meeting that 38 

does not require the member to be physically present to 39 

participate will be paid at the half-day rate if the electronic 40 

meeting is less than four hours.  Payment for participation in 41 

an electronic meeting that has a duration of four hours or more 42 

will be paid at the full day’s pay rate.  The time is 43 

compensable where the individual member is required to expend a 44 

significant private effort which substantially disrupts the 45 

daily routine to the extent that a work day is lost to the 46 

member.  "Homework" time in preparation for formal Council 47 

meetings is not compensable.  Non government Council members 48 
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receive compensation for:”  That’s the end of the amended 1 

language. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I speak in opposition of the motion.  The reason 6 

I speak in opposition of the motion is because the Act, which is 7 

law, states: Compensation and Expenses, the voting members of 8 

each council who are required to be appointed by the Secretary 9 

and who are not employed by the federal government or any state 10 

or local government shall receive compensation at the daily rate 11 

for GS-15, Step 7 of the General Schedule when engaged in the 12 

actual performance of duties of such council. 13 

 14 

If we’re having webinars, that is a performance by a council 15 

member.  To me, if we have a conference call, most of our 16 

conference calls are not those where we establish listening 17 

stations.  They are for clarification.  I can only recall in 18 

eleven-and-a-half years one time that a council member was ever 19 

paid for having a meeting over the telephone.  I know Mr. 20 

Fischer was on the council when that particular instance 21 

occurred. 22 

 23 

To me, even the wording in this, when we’re talking about 24 

electronics and conference calls and webinars, it was my 25 

understanding we were going to have webinars to help us reduce 26 

the cost of travel.  We also, I was told, we were going -- This 27 

was suggested by staff just to make things equal with our SSC 28 

members who receive stipends. 29 

 30 

We are different from our SSC members.  It also says if those 31 

funds become not available, then of course the stipends would 32 

not be available to our SSC members.  I don’t think our SSC 33 

members, which will be in the next motion, should be paid for a 34 

conference call.  Webinar, yes. 35 

 36 

This last SSC meeting, we had members leave and there were some 37 

SSC members that were not happy about it, because they stayed 38 

all day and participated while some of the other ones left.  You 39 

hear all the time that some of us will get together and we’ll 40 

have like a three-way call just to discuss local business about 41 

council business and we shouldn’t be paid for that.  We should 42 

be paid as we’re supposed to be.  A webinar is a council 43 

meeting, as far as I’m concerned.  The law doesn’t say anything 44 

about the time spent for travel. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, I think you’ve made your point. 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  Those are my points and thank you. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We run the risk of losing a quorum here though 3 

if we don’t finish up pretty soon.  Cathy, did you want to 4 

comment? 5 

 6 

MS. READINGER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  I do want to say that we do 7 

notice conference calls as official meetings in the Federal 8 

Register notice and so they would be determined to be meetings, 9 

just the same as we do webinars. 10 

 11 

Plus, I did want to tell you that I did speak with Jeff Joyner, 12 

who is with the Financial Assistance Legal Division out of 13 

Washington, D.C.  He and I discussed what Kay was pointing out, 14 

about what the Act says about the daily rate being specified at 15 

GS-15, 7.  We also discussed the language in the regulations and 16 

I’m going to quickly read it to you.   17 

 18 

It says: Such compensation may be paid on a full day’s basis, 19 

whether in excess of eight hours a day or less than eight hours 20 

a day.  Between Jeff and two other attorneys in his office, the 21 

determination was that we could pay council members for a 22 

partial day pay if it was the council’s policy. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Let’s move on and address this 25 

motion.  The motion is on the floor and all in favor of the 26 

motion signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 27 

 28 

MS. MORRIS:  The next motion is at the bottom of page 2 and it’s 29 

pretty much the same language, but it applies to the SSC and I 30 

will read it to you.  On behalf of the committee, I so move to 31 

adopt the language in red font in XI.B of the SOPPs so that it 32 

will read: XI. COUNCIL ADVISORY GROUPS OR PANELS: B. Scientific 33 

and Statistical Committees, Subject to the availability of 34 

appropriations, the Secretary of Commerce will pay a stipend of 35 

$250.00 per meeting day attended to members of the Special and 36 

Standing SSC who are not state marine fisheries employees or 37 

federal employees.  Payment will be made for a full day's pay 38 

whether the duties performed are in excess of or less than eight 39 

hours a day for physical attendance at authorized meetings.  40 

Payment for authorized participation in conference calls, 41 

webinars, or any other electronic meeting that does not require 42 

the member to be physically present to participate will be paid 43 

at the half-day rate if the electronic meeting is less than four 44 

hours.  Payment for participation in an electronic meeting that 45 

has a duration of four hours or more will be paid at the full 46 

day’s pay rate.  Stipends will be paid to eligible members for 47 

attendance at meetings of the SSC, SEDAR, and to give 48 



152 

 

presentations to the Council on behalf of the SSC, as authorized 1 

by Council. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ms. Morris. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m going to speak in opposition.  The SSC 6 

members, we’re supposed to pay them a stipend.  The committee 7 

chairs got together and it’s $250.00.  If it’s a meeting, that’s 8 

what they should be paid.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a motion.  All in favor of the motion 11 

say aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 12 

 13 

MS. MORRIS:  The next committee motion starts at the bottom of 14 

page 3 and continues on page 4 and it has to do with travel 15 

expenses.  On behalf of the committee, I so move to adopt the 16 

additional language in red on Tab E, Number 4 as modified: “Any 17 

expense deemed by the Executive Director as non-essential will 18 

be disallowed.  Travelers are encouraged to submit travel 19 

reimbursement forms no later than sixty days from the date of 20 

the meeting, otherwise expenses may not be reimbursed.  21 

Travelers may petition the Chair of the Council for 22 

reconsideration of reimbursement.” 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any objections?  25 

Hearing none, the motion passes. 26 

 27 

MS. MORRIS:  I just want to say that the committee is looking 28 

forward to a project that Tina O’Hern is leading, our Travel 29 

Coordinator, to develop a set of travel policies that we can all 30 

use to try to figure out what are reasonable expenses and what 31 

are not reasonable and prudent expenses.  We’ll be hoping to 32 

review that at a future meeting. 33 

 34 

MS. WILLIAMS:  There was some discussion between the last motion 35 

and this motion where we’re asking about making changes to our 36 

SOPPs and it’s stated in this language: Ms. Morris stated if 37 

committee members wanted to make changes to the language in any 38 

section they should make the recommendations during this 39 

process. 40 

 41 

I don’t think we came to this committee thinking that we were 42 

going to be making changes to the entire document, because staff 43 

was simply, from the council’s previous motion, we asked them to 44 

separate what would go into our SOPPs and what would go into our 45 

handbook. 46 

 47 

Mr. Gill recommended the council make modifications to the SOPPs 48 
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once the two documents are developed and I think that is 1 

appropriate.  I just wanted to make sure that we were going to 2 

have the opportunity to do that, because there are some sections 3 

in our SOPPs that we may want to address.  Thank you, Mr. 4 

Chairman. 5 

 6 

MS. MORRIS:  Most definitely we will.  I expect that the 7 

committee will be meeting again in the April meeting and will be 8 

looking at the handbook and the SOPPs in separated form and any 9 

other -- I’m sure once we do that we’ll see other things that 10 

need to be changed, corrected, edited, and improved.  Those 11 

kinds of motions would be perfectly appropriate at that time.   12 

 13 

Now we’re down at the motion at the bottom of page 4.  On behalf 14 

of the committee, I so move to delete the word “Council” in the 15 

second paragraph on Page 5 of Tab E, Number 5, so that it will 16 

read: “It shall be the policy that in the absence of the Council 17 

Chair or chair of any of its committees, the Vice Chair will 18 

preside and exercise the duties of that office as herein 19 

provided.  Individuals are elected or appointed to the offices 20 

of the Council Chair and Council Vice Chair even though they may 21 

be state officials.  Alternate representatives (designee or 22 

principal) do not assume these offices, but may participate as 23 

members of the committees.” 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  I’m going to speak in opposition to this motion.  28 

This is precisely the wordsmithing that we were talking about 29 

doing later and I don’t see any sense in piecemealing it and I 30 

think it ought to be incorporated in the overall wordsmithing we 31 

do after the two documents are separated and so I speak in 32 

opposition. 33 

 34 

MR. PERRET:  I don’t really have any opposition to the motion, 35 

but I agree with Bob.  What particular troubles me is “even 36 

though they may be state officials” and I don’t know why state 37 

officials are singled out.  I just think it needs some 38 

wordsmithing. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There seems to be a consensus that we need to 41 

just delete this one and incorporate it into the updating.  Is 42 

that okay with you, Kay? 43 

 44 

MS. WILLIAMS:  This was actually my motion and the reason I did 45 

it is because when we separated the two, there was a lot of 46 

things that got dropped out and I was strictly going back to our 47 

previous SOPPs, where it said -- It was a wordsmithing, but 48 
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because of the comments that was made, that’s why we went ahead 1 

and made it, but I’m perfectly okay with us waiting until we -- 2 

Like Bob Gill said.  As long as we have another chance to make 3 

some changes, that’s fine. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think the consensus is to vote this one down 6 

though and so let’s formally do that.  All in favor of the 7 

motion signify by saying aye; all opposed.  The motion fails. 8 

 9 

MS. MORRIS:  Continuing on the bottom of page 4, on behalf of 10 

the committee, I so move to adopt the additional language in red 11 

font on page 25 in Section H, Standards of Conduct, Number 1, 12 

Applicable Statutes, so that it will read: “In addition to 13 

abiding by the applicable Federal conflict of interest statutes, 14 

both members and employees of the Councils must comply with the 15 

standards of conduct cited in 50 CFR Section 600.225.” 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If there was ever a no-brainer, this is it.  18 

Any objection to this motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 19 

 20 

MS. MORRIS:  Then the final paragraph in bold is the committee 21 

continued through the remainder of the SOPPs and although there 22 

was not a formal motion, the committee, by consensus, approved 23 

all remaining suggestions for language to be removed from the 24 

SOPPs and placed in the administrative handbook with the 25 

understanding that at the April council meeting, staff will 26 

present a draft Handbook and a modified SOPPs for the council to 27 

review.  This is not actually a motion, but we could turn it 28 

into a motion if you think that would be necessary at this 29 

point. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Julie, I would like for the Administrative Policy 32 

and Budget/Personnel to meet jointly, because there may be some 33 

issues that we may want to make some changes to once we get our 34 

report on the administrative and the operational costs, if 35 

that’s okay with you. 36 

 37 

MS. MORRIS:  In April, would you like a joint meeting? 38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, please. 40 

 41 

MS. MORRIS:  Is that okay with the chair of the Budget 42 

Committee? 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would like to ruminate on it, but for the 45 

time being, I don’t see any problem with it. 46 

 47 

MS. MORRIS:  That’s fine with me and it sounds like it’s fine 48 
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for the council, but what I’m trying to ask direction from you, 1 

Chairman Shipp, is do you want me to convert this paragraph into 2 

a motion or is it clear the way it -- 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think it’s plenty clear and we’ll have an 5 

opportunity in April to make formal motions if we deem it 6 

necessary.  Does that conclude your report?  Wonderful.  Thank 7 

you, Ms. Morris.  Outreach and Education, Tab F, Mr. Gill. 8 

 9 

OUTREACH AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Following the path forged by Ms. Morris, I’m going to 12 

go directly to the motions and the first one is at the middle of 13 

the first page.  The committee recommended, and I so move, that 14 

should the Marine Resource Education Program South be funded, 15 

that the Outreach and Education Advisory Panel invite a Gulf of 16 

Maine Research Institute expert and a program principal 17 

investigator from the southeast region to an Advisory Panel 18 

meeting to discuss how the Panel can participate in developing 19 

and implementing the Marine Resource Education Program South. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any objections?  22 

Hearing none, the motion passes. 23 

 24 

MR. GILL:  The next one is at the top of page 2.  The committee 25 

recommended, and I so move, to approve resources to send a 26 

member of the Outreach and Education Advisory Panel member to 27 

attend the Marine Resource Education Program being held in March 28 

or April 2010. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any objections?  31 

The motion passes. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  Further down the page, the committee recommended, and 34 

I so move to convene the Outreach and Education Advisory Panel 35 

to draft a five-year strategic communications plan.  36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any objections?  38 

Hearing none, the motion passes. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Gill. 43 

 44 

MR. SAPP:  I have a real quick one.  The roundtable discussions 45 

that Roy conducts at each of our council meetings, unless you’re 46 

sitting real close, you can’t hear.  Can I request that staff 47 

procure a couple of handheld microphones so that Roy and whoever 48 
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else is sitting on the barbeque grill with him can have one and 1 

we can have one to pass in the audience? 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I don’t have any problem with that, 4 

but Roy may want to keep the informality of the whole thing. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it depends on the size of the crowd and 7 

how much trouble people are having.  It wouldn’t be a bad idea 8 

if we had the option for some microphones.  One other thing too 9 

is we webcast these meetings, but the Q&A was not webcast the 10 

other night.  I know my kids like to dial in and watch me get 11 

skewered.  Are we normally webcasting the Q&A? 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that goes back to what Dr. Bortone 14 

said.  It worries me a little bit that the informality might be 15 

lost if it’s being webcast.  I don’t know, but that’s just my 16 

first thought.  I guess it’s your call, Roy, really. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  If it’s webcast, in my view, it will occur 19 

exactly as it always occurs, but it’s just that it would be 20 

webcast.  I know in the South Atlantic we webcast the Q&A. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think it’s your call. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think they should be webcast. 25 

 26 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I would say that if it’s going to be webcast you 27 

almost have to have a microphone, so that you can hear the 28 

audience and hear your responses.  Being one that doesn’t hear 29 

well, I couldn’t hear half of the questions the other night. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  That was a problem the other night.  I know 32 

people were having trouble hearing and part of that was the 33 

setup of the room, but the room wasn’t receptive to moving 34 

chairs around and all that.  I think if we have the option for 35 

mics, depending on the number of people and all, it would be 36 

good. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ll request staff to look into that.  The 39 

next one is Spiny Lobster/Stone Crab Management, Tab H, Mr. 40 

Teehan. 41 

 42 

SPINY LOBSTER/STONE CRAB MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 43 

 44 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Unlike the previous two 45 

committee reports, I’m going to read every excruciating word.  46 

Members present were Teehan, Gill, Sapp, Simpson, and Corky 47 

Perret and so we had a full committee.  The agenda was adopted 48 
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with minor edits.  Minutes of the October 19, 2009 meeting were 1 

approved with no modifications.   2 

 3 

Carrie Simmons gave an overview of the Joint Spiny Lobster 4 

Amendment 10 Draft Options Paper Document, Tab H, Number 3.  The 5 

committee was concerned about moving forward without further 6 

consultation with Florida FWC.   7 

 8 

Mr. Teehan noted that the FWC was still uncertain about 9 

accepting the responsibility of delegation, including setting 10 

annual catch limits and accountability measures.  He recommended 11 

that the council send a letter to the Florida FWC listing all 12 

the species up for delegation.  I believe we’ve already 13 

discussed that in the ACL Committee report.   14 

 15 

Dr. Crabtree expressed concern relative to the timing and 16 

implementation of this amendment.  Carrie Simmons reviewed the 17 

proposed schedule for completion of Joint Amendment 10, Tab H, 18 

Number 4.   19 

 20 

The South Atlantic Council is proposing a joint meeting of the 21 

Stone Crab/Spiny Lobster Committee and advisory panels for each 22 

council to discuss the work Florida FWC has completed and flesh 23 

out some of the actions and alternatives.   24 

 25 

Discussions continued on whether action should be postponed 26 

until both of those meetings were completed.  Mr. Geiger, the 27 

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council liaison, stated that 28 

the South Atlantic Council has proposed holding this joint 29 

meeting in June, since their June meeting would be held in 30 

Orlando, Florida.   31 

 32 

The committee recommends, and I move, to table further 33 

consideration of options under the Spiny Lobster Amendment 10 34 

Options Paper until after the Joint Gulf and South Atlantic 35 

Council Spiny Lobster/Stone Crab committee meeting in June 2010. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  This is a motion to table and so it’s not 38 

debatable.  All in favor of the motion signify by saying aye.  39 

The motion passes.  40 

 41 

MR. TEEHAN:  The committee also recommends, and I so move, and 42 

this is putting the cart before the horse, to approve the 43 

meeting of the Joint Spiny Lobster/Stone Crab Advisory Panel and 44 

Committee with the South Atlantic Council in June 2010. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Mr. Chairman, I assume this is going to pass, but 1 

as soon as those dates are known in June, Dr. Bortone or 2 

whoever, get the word out on the dates, so people can plan their 3 

schedule accordingly.  Thank you. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on the committee motion?  6 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 7 

 8 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mr. Atran presented the report of the Standing and 9 

Special Spiny Lobster Scientific and Statistical Committee 10 

meeting and provided their recommendations for the Spiny Lobster 11 

SEDAR Terms of Reference, Tab H, Number 5.  The committee 12 

recommended, and I so move, to approve the Terms of Reference 13 

for the Spiny Lobster SEDAR as set forth in Tab H, Number 5. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  16 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 17 

 18 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mr. Gill expressed support for sending a letter to 19 

the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission explaining 20 

management changes considered by the council.  The committee 21 

recommends, and I so move, to recommend that the council send a 22 

letter to Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 23 

advising them that relative to mutton snapper, yellowtail 24 

snapper, octocorals, stone crab, spiny lobster, and Nassau 25 

grouper that the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council is 26 

considering changes in federal management and request their 27 

assistance in making those determinations.  28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The motion on the board has “changes in state 30 

and federal management” and I believe the words “state and” 31 

should go out and is that not correct? 32 

 33 

MR. PERRET:  What if we just say “management”? 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s make that editorial change.  Now, the 36 

committee motion as amended, any further discussion?  Any 37 

objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 38 

 39 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mr. Simpson requested that Dr. Bortone work very 40 

closely with the Chair and Vice Chair of this committee to 41 

ensure that the letter reflects the intent of the council.  Mr. 42 

Chairman, this concludes my report. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Teehan.   45 

 46 

DR. CARRIE SIMMONS:  I just wanted to let the committee know 47 

that the fairly set-in-stone date of that meeting would be June 48 
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7, Monday, June 7, the first day of the South Atlantic Council 1 

meeting. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Simmons.  That brings us to what 4 

is likely to be a really rapid committee report, Red Drum, and 5 

Mr. Pearce. 6 

 7 

RED DRUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 8 

 9 

MR. PEARCE:  The Red Drum Management Committee was convened by 10 

myself at 4:20 p.m.  The agenda was approved with the two 11 

additions proposed by myself.  One of the additions was a 12 

written presentation on risk assessment and a letter from the 13 

Orange Beach Fishing Association supporting a red drum fishery.  14 

The minutes of the January 2008 meeting were approved as 15 

written. 16 

 17 

The committee discussed the status of the red drum fishery.  I 18 

requested that the committee consider the fishery and not just 19 

the fish species we were talking about and I stressed that the 20 

fishery has been closed for more than twenty years. 21 

 22 

Mr. Perret reviewed the letter from Mississippi requesting the 23 

red drum fishery be opened in the Exclusive Economic Zone.  The 24 

Mississippi Commission unanimously passed the Resolution Number 25 

081809-2, requesting that the National Marine Fisheries Service 26 

and the Gulf Council amend the federal regulations to authorize 27 

and provide the following: 1) Allow for recreational fishermen 28 

to catch and possess one red drum per person per day in the EEZ 29 

for stock assessment and other purposes; and 2) Allow for 30 

recreational fishermen fishing from charterboats to catch and 31 

possess one red drum per person per day in the EEZ, exclusive of 32 

the captain and crew.   33 

 34 

Mr. Sapp asked if Mississippi still allows a commercial red drum 35 

fishery.  Mr. Perret responded that Mississippi still had a 36 

small red drum commercial fishery that the state regulated with 37 

a 35,000-pound quota. 38 

 39 

Mr. Pearce referred to the summary of the Ad Hoc Red Drum 40 

Advisory Panel meeting held in July 2007 and noted the advisory 41 

panel compiled a long list of data collection needs and 42 

methodology.  I then reviewed the summary of the advisory 43 

panel’s October 2007 meeting and I pointed out that the advisory 44 

panel passed the following motion, that the panel recommends 45 

that council have staff develop a scoping document to amend the 46 

red drum plan for the purpose of developing a long-term research 47 

program. 48 
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 1 

I then discussed a handout that was titled “Recommended Age 2 

Composition and Mark-Recapture Study Sample Sizes for Gulf of 3 

Mexico Red Drum” by Brian Linton dated January 2008.  In the 4 

handout, it said we could harvest over 5,000 fish per year and 5 

not harm the resource. 6 

 7 

I stressed that my goal was to simultaneously allow fishermen to 8 

catch fish and allow the development of a data collection 9 

program to provide scientific data.  The committee unanimously 10 

recommended, and I so move, to develop a scoping document to 11 

amend the Red Drum Fishery Management Plan to allow the harvest 12 

of red drum in the Gulf Exclusive Economic Zone.  I want to 13 

offer a substitute motion to that. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  First of all, we need to note that this was a 16 

committee motion and in discussion, then you can offer a 17 

substitute motion, Harlon. 18 

 19 

MR. PEARCE:  All right.  It’s a committee motion.  Is there any 20 

discussion of the motion? 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Now you can offer a substitute. 23 

 24 

MR. PEARCE:  In working with Robin, we’ve come up with a 25 

substitute motion that will help satisfy his needs and satisfy 26 

mine at the same time.  I can’t see that far, guys. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’ll read it for you, Harlon.  It’s to request 29 

that National Marine Fisheries Service review and update the 30 

document presented on sampling, Tab L Handout 1 and 2, review 31 

and update the red drum state escapement information, develop a 32 

discussion paper and analysis regarding how red drum harvest in 33 

the Gulf of Mexico would meet the research needs as set forth in 34 

past Ad Hoc Red Drum Review Panel reports, Tab L, Number 4 and 35 

Tab L, Number 5, and review or analyze the impacts the  harvest 36 

in offshore waters may have on the current state water harvest.  37 

This information would be used to develop a scoping document to 38 

amend the Red Drum Fishery Management Plan to allow the harvest 39 

of red drum in the Gulf EEZ.  That’s the substitute motion. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  About six lines from the bottom, “offshore” should 42 

be changed to “EEZ”.  There’s currently harvest in offshore 43 

waters, in state territorial offshore waters.  I would just say 44 

that should be EEZ. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ll accept that editorial change. 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  With that change, I think I would like to second 1 

that substitute motion. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded.  Do we have some 4 

discussion on this? 5 

 6 

MR. SAPP:  I also support the substitute motion.  One of my 7 

concerns with the initial motion was it made it look like the 8 

committee was endorsing the harvest of red drum and that we 9 

wanted to move forward it.  It needs to be known that that was 10 

not our intent.  What we really wanted to move forward with was 11 

discussion and I know my endorsement of it is going to hinge on 12 

whether or not I’m convinced that anything we do in the EEZ is 13 

not going to negatively impact the inshore recreational 14 

fisheries in each of the states. 15 

 16 

MR. RIECHERS:  I want to reiterate that notion and why we tried 17 

to amend this is basically, I wanted to signal to the public 18 

that what we’re really trying to do is get the information to 19 

look at this and, of course, we’re not necessarily going forward 20 

with a scoping document. 21 

 22 

We may, if the information tells us we can, but our first step 23 

is to get that information in front of us and review that 24 

information and then move forward, if in fact there’s some 25 

ability to do so.  Whether we want to call it a scoping document 26 

or not, it’s going to be a discussion paper that comes back to 27 

this council and we’ve got to have the information before we go 28 

any further with any of this discussion.  That’s why we tried to 29 

amend it and I appreciate working with Harlon to do that. 30 

 31 

MR. PEARCE:  I could give you a thousand reasons I want this to 32 

happen, but the main one is it’s time that we gave back to the 33 

fishery.  It’s time we had a success story.  After twenty years, 34 

this is one we need to look at and I’m not going to read 35 

everything I wanted to say, because I feel this motion is going 36 

to pass, and I thank everyone for the support to get this done, 37 

because this is for the fishery and the fishermen we’re doing 38 

this. 39 

 40 

MR. MINTON:  In talking with some of the fishermen, a lot of 41 

these fish that are caught, or from what I’m hearing, the 42 

majority that are caught in EEZ waters are coming back and 43 

dying.  They’re not making it down and so it would not only be a 44 

good thing for the fishermen, but it would certainly utilize 45 

that resource better. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would like to add that from my personal 48 
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experience on our research cruises when we catch a red drum that 1 

very frequently it doesn’t survive.  Any further discussion on 2 

this motion?  Any objections to the motion?  Hearing none, the 3 

motion passes. 4 

 5 

MR. PEARCE:  After that, Dr. McIlwain expressed the intent to 6 

allow a fishery and a data collection program.  Mr. Grimes 7 

pointed out that the staff would need direction on what to put 8 

into the document, including parameters for optimum yield, 9 

maximum sustainable yield, accountability measures, annual catch 10 

limits, et cetera.  11 

 12 

He said it needs to be clear as to what the existing plan is and 13 

what needs to be done.  Mr. Grimes said that it will be a 14 

significant scientific burden to explore opening the fishery and 15 

council staff would need to work with the appropriate National 16 

Fisheries personnel.  I said that the work needed to be done and 17 

done correctly.  Dr. McIlwain agreed that the work needed to be 18 

done, because the fishery has been closed for over thirty years.  19 

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Pearce.  That brings us to 22 

Habitat Protection, Tab M, Mr. Hendrix. 23 

 24 

HABITAT PROTECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 25 

 26 

MR. HENDRIX:  The Habitat Protection Committee met on Tuesday 27 

afternoon to discuss summaries of the council’s Texas and 28 

Louisiana/Mississippi Habitat Protection Advisory Panels.  The 29 

Texas Committee discussed the Ike Dike, a coastal barrier to 30 

protect the Houston/Galveston Region from hurricane storm surge, 31 

oyster reef restoration in Galveston Bay from Hurricane Ike, a 32 

new artificial reef project in southern Texas waters, the Flower 33 

Garden Banks, an update of their management plan, and a boundary 34 

expansion process, and a presentation on juvenile red snapper 35 

habitat. 36 

 37 

The Louisiana/Mississippi Habitat Protection AP met and 38 

discussed Mississippi Coastal Improvements Program, a Seabrook 39 

Floodgate in the Inner Harbor Navigation Canal in New Orleans 40 

and several other structures in the Lake Pontchartrain estuary.   41 

 42 

The Louisiana/Mississippi Habitat Protection AP also expressed 43 

concern that the council review the U.S. Strategic Petroleum 44 

Reserve Project that would discharge brine into the Gulf.  The 45 

committee discussed this and recognized that the notification 46 

process will bring this before the council.  Mr. Chairman, that 47 

concludes my report. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Hendrix.  The next committee 2 

report is Coastal Migratory Pelagics (Mackerel) Management, Tab 3 

C, Mr. Fischer. 4 

 5 

COASTAL MIGRATORY PELAGICS (MACKEREL) MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 6 

REPORT 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The committee was called 9 

to order and the agenda was adopted as written.  There was a 10 

minor change in the minutes.  I think it came from the legal 11 

area. 12 

 13 

Draft Options Paper for Amendment 18, Dr. Leard reviewed the 14 

proposed schedule for completion of Amendment 18 and a summary 15 

of the activities that would likely occur to meet that schedule.  16 

He noted that the Draft Options Paper for Amendment 18 was 17 

currently incomplete, due to the need for additional data and 18 

additional action by the South Atlantic Council that could not 19 

be completed prior to our meeting.   20 

 21 

He reviewed the actions and alternatives relative to the Gulf 22 

stocks that had been developed and noted that further 23 

development was likely before the council’s April 2010 meeting.  24 

The Committee also discussed the need to review the framework 25 

and to make it as consistent with reef fish as possible.  The 26 

committee made no recommendations with regard to these initial 27 

actions and alternatives. 28 

 29 

The committee also discussed a potential change to the control 30 

date for Gulf Group king mackerel, in the event that a catch 31 

share program was developed using landings as the basis for 32 

share allocations.  Following discussion, the committee 33 

recommends, and I so move, to set a control date of June 30, 34 

2009 for Gulf group king mackerel.   35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any objections to 37 

the committee motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  Dr. Leard reviewed potential complications and a 40 

proposed schedule for the development of a limited access 41 

privilege program or catch share program for king mackerel.  The 42 

committee also discussed other potential actions that were 43 

previously included in the scoping document.  The committee made 44 

no recommendations with regard to these potential activities at 45 

this time.  Following additional discussion, the committee 46 

recommends, and I so move, to set a control date of March 31, 47 

2010 for Gulf group Spanish mackerel. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion on the board.  Is 2 

there any discussion?   3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  March 31, 2010, do you see anyone attempting to 5 

go out there and catch more fish to add to their records?  6 

Should we go forward in time or back in time, such as like today 7 

rather than March? 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think this was discussed in committee. 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  This is the end of the fishing year and it’s 12 

really not that far from today for somebody to pad their 13 

records. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Further discussion on the committee motion?  16 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Fischer.  That brings us to Mr. 21 

Perret and Shrimp Management, Tab D. 22 

 23 

SHRIMP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Dr. Nance was unavailable 26 

to give the report this meeting and so Dr. Rick Hart from the 27 

Galveston facility provided the information.  The first thing 28 

was the Biological Review of the 2009 Texas Closure and in 29 

conclusion, Dr. Hart stated that environmental factors were the 30 

major contributors to the catch, the size of shrimp in Louisiana 31 

had increased while Texas was about the same, brown shrimp catch 32 

May through August was average, there was a continued decrease 33 

in effort and CPUE remained high, yield per recruit increased 34 

between zero percent and 4 percent as a result of the closure, 35 

the distribution of Gulf landings was down in Louisiana and up 36 

in  Texas ports, there was a slight change in the distribution 37 

of landings among Texas ports, and white shrimp catches were 38 

below average and size was larger than average. 39 

 40 

Mr. Atran reported on the Shrimp AP meeting.  The AP -- I think 41 

it was a unanimous recommendation that we retain the closure for 42 

2010 throughout the EEZ out to 200 miles, in cooperation with 43 

the State of Texas.  44 

 45 

Following discussion, the committee recommends, and I so move, 46 

that the council support the continuation of the cooperative 47 

Texas closure for 2010 throughout the EEZ off Texas to the 200 48 
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mile limit. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  Any 3 

objection?  Without objection, the motion is approved. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Atran also noted that the Shrimp Advisory Panel 6 

requested that NMFS implement Action 6 from Preferred 7 

Alternative 6 from Amendment 27/14 and that was the framework 8 

action to reduce the target bycatch reduction goals from 74 9 

percent to 67 percent in 2011 and thereafter to 60 percent by 10 

2032. 11 

 12 

Following discussion, the Shrimp Committee recommends, and I so 13 

move, to direct council staff to begin work on a framework 14 

action to reduce the reduction goal from 74 percent to 67 15 

percent in 2011. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any further 18 

discussion regarding the committee motion?  Is there any 19 

objection to the motion?  Without objection, the motion is 20 

approved. 21 

 22 

MR. PERRET:  Those were the only two action items.  For your 23 

information, Dr. Hart also discussed preliminary effort 24 

estimates thus far for 2009 and those estimates are, at the 25 

time, 81 percent reduction from the 2001 to 2003 average, which 26 

is 7 percent above the required 74 percent.  Additionally, there 27 

were some problems with the stock synthesis model for pink 28 

shrimp and so they’re exploring the VPA model for pinks and if 29 

it proves successful, they’ll be looking at utilizing it for 30 

some of the other shrimp species.  Mr. Atran also advised that 31 

the SSC endorsed this stock synthesis model.  That concludes my 32 

report, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Perret.  Since you’re doing such a 35 

fine job, the next committee is the Advisory Panel Selection 36 

Committee and Mr. Perret. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me in Shrimp Committee that we also 39 

had some discussion of trying to at least begin the initial 40 

process of looking at latent permits and addressing that and I 41 

didn’t see any mention of that in the report, but we did have 42 

that discussion and I think where we left it was that we started 43 

to start moving towards looking at that. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  I don’t see anything in my minutes. 46 

 47 

DR. CRABTREE:  There isn’t anything in the report about it, but 48 
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I know we talked about it. 1 

 2 

MR. RIECHERS:  I recall that as well and I think where we left 3 

it was Dr. Hart was going to go ahead and talk with Mr. Nance 4 

and the next time they present that information to us, they were 5 

going to have some of those compositions of who is catching what 6 

at different levels and how many active vessels there are and 7 

then of those active vessels, look at the percentages or 8 

poundage by class groups of this many boats are catching this 9 

many pounds and this many boats are catching this many and then 10 

kind of look at that distribution. 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ll also ask Dr. Travis to work with them on 13 

that, because I know he has taken a look at that sort of thing. 14 

 15 

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION COMMITTEE 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree, for pointing that out.  18 

You’re right and Robin is also correct.  Anyway, the AP 19 

Selection Committee met as the whole council.  I guess all I 20 

need to do is give the recommendation of the full council. 21 

 22 

Mackerel Limited Access Privilege Program Advisory Panel, the 23 

people that the full council selected to serve on that panel 24 

are: Mike Jennings, David Krebs, George Niles, Tom Marvel, Kelty 25 

Readenour, and Donald Waters.  That was approved by the full 26 

council. 27 

 28 

MS. MORRIS:  Corky, I was surprised during public testimony that 29 

a couple of those individuals thanked us for appointing them to 30 

the AP.  Was this announced prior to public testimony?  I 31 

thought normally it was kept confidential until this moment in 32 

the council agenda, when we officially announced it. 33 

 34 

MR. PERRET:  I certainly didn’t announce anything to anyone and 35 

I think Mr. Grimes had advised us all that what takes place in 36 

closed session should stay in closed session. 37 

 38 

MS. TRISH KENNEDY:  I was advised that since you met as a 39 

committee of the whole, the entire council, you had taken final 40 

action at that point and you weren’t going back into closed 41 

session to re-discuss it and therefore, it was a done deal and 42 

public record and so it was submitted out to the public.  You 43 

are now just reading it into the record on the recording. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  How do we want to handle it in the future I guess 46 

is the question? 47 

 48 



167 

 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Actually, I kind of think Trish is right.  If 1 

it’s full council, it’s not the normal situation where we refer 2 

it from committee to full council.  What do you think, Shep? 3 

 4 

MR. GRIMES:  I don’t really think it matters, but you’re right 5 

if the whole council had voted on it and made the decision, then 6 

you’re free to release that information to the public. 7 

 8 

MR. MINTON:  It does matter, because it’s my understanding we 9 

have to go back into closed session in full council, which would 10 

slow everything up again.  Why not do it one time and move on?   11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, we didn’t have full council scheduled to go 13 

back into closed session.  Anyway, as always, we refer to Shep 14 

and it seems to be if its final action in full council that it 15 

can become public record.  Let’s move on.  Anything else, Mr. 16 

Perret?  The next one is SSC Selection Committee, Tab J, Mr. 17 

Simpson. 18 

 19 

SSC SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 20 

 21 

MR. SIMPSON:  Monday, to address the need to add additional 22 

expertise and members, due to replacements, for Mackerel, I am 23 

now reporting to the public that the council appoints Ms. Shaye 24 

Ellen Sable, Mr. Aaron Podey, and Mr. Eric Porch to the Special 25 

Mackerel Scientific and Statistical Committee.  That concludes 26 

my report. 27 

 28 

SEDAR SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Simpson.  That brings us to 31 

SEDAR Selection, Tab O.  I will read the members appointed to 32 

this.  SEDAR Spiny Lobster: John Hunt, SSC representative; Bob 33 

Muller, SSC representative; Karl Lessard, an AP representative; 34 

Simon Stafford, an AP representative; Bill Teehan as council 35 

representative. 36 

 37 

SEDAR Yellowedge Grouper & Tilefish Assessment Workshop: Harry 38 

Blanchet, SSC; Shannon Cass-Calay, SSC; Richard Fulford, SSC; 39 

Joe Powers, SSC; Will Patterson, SSC; Robert Allman, AP; Irby 40 

Basco, AP; Bob Spaeth, AP; Martin Fisher, AP; T.J. Tate, AP.  41 

Elbert Whorton and John Mareska were previously appointed to the 42 

SEDAR Yellowedge Grouper group. 43 

  44 

SEDAR Greater Amberjack Assessment: Harry Blanchet, SSC; Read 45 

Hendon, SSC; Will Patterson, SSC; Sean Powers, SSC; Barbara 46 

Dorf, SSC; Ben Fairey, AP; James Taylor, AP. 47 

 48 
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SEDAR Goliath Grouper Data Workshop, Luiz Barbieri, SSC 1 

representative.  Additional advisory panel members will be 2 

selected once panel members are polled for their availability.  3 

The chair and vice chair of the council will appoint those 4 

members. 5 

 6 

Finally, the assessment workshop: Shannon Cass-Calay, SSC 7 

representative.  Additional AP members will be selected once 8 

panel members are polled for their availability.  The chair and 9 

vice chair of the council will appoint those members.  10 

 11 

MR. TEEHAN:  Just out of curiosity, are you going to appoint 12 

council members for yellowedge and tilefish and amberjack and 13 

goliath grouper? 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, I will.  That concludes the regular agenda 16 

and we now have some -- 17 

 18 

MR. SIMPSON:  Just a quick question, Mr. Chairman.  Am I right 19 

in assuming that these new individuals that just were appointed 20 

on the Special Scientific and Statistical Committee for Mackerel 21 

are now in the SEDAR pool and could be asked? 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes.  We have five items of Other Business to 24 

address, the Ed Walker request, the research and funding and Kay 25 

wants to address that, Marine Spatial Planning by Dr. Bortone, 26 

the number of meetings by Dr. Bortone, and then reports by Dr. 27 

Bortone.  The Ed Walker request, Mr. Sapp. 28 

 29 

OTHER BUSINESS 30 

REQUEST FROM CAPTAIN ED WALKER 31 

 32 

MR. SAPP:  Prior to this council meeting, all of the council 33 

members received a copy of a request from Captain Ed Walker and 34 

the issue deals with relief that he’s asking for from the 35 

council or whoever the appropriate person is and the issue has 36 

got to do with the limitations of crew size for vessels that are 37 

permitted as charter and as commercial vessels. 38 

 39 

It’s fairly complicated and confusing and so I went to the 40 

source, Shep, and he’s looked at it and is familiar with it and 41 

I hope is going to make some recommendations to us as to whether 42 

or not it’s something we can fix with council action and if we 43 

did that, would it have any adverse unintended consequences? 44 

 45 

MR. GRIMES:  I don’t know about the adverse unintended 46 

consequences part of that, but you could certainly change the 47 

regulations and I believe the way it’s set up now there are no 48 
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direct limits on commercial vessels or there are no regulations 1 

that expressly and directly limit crew size on commercial 2 

vessels. 3 

 4 

The way we define headboat and the way we define charterboat is 5 

based on the number of passengers.  Therefore, if a commercial 6 

fisherman or a commercial operation goes out and they have more 7 

than a certain number of crew onboard, then they’re considered 8 

to be a charter vessel or a headboat, depending on their 9 

certificate of inspection and all that. 10 

 11 

In that case, they’re then subject to bag limits and permit 12 

requirements associated with the recreational fishery 13 

regulations.  If you wanted to change that or create some 14 

regulation that would allow commercial guys to carry more crew 15 

members, you could certainly do that.   16 

 17 

I don’t really remember a lot of the discussion in the past, but 18 

I know this council has brought this issue up at least twice 19 

during my tenure with you and it’s never gotten any traction.  20 

I’m at a loss right now to recall exactly why that was, but 21 

we’ve addressed it before. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep, if we decided to address the issue in a 24 

more formal way, what would it require if we wanted to make 25 

those changes?  Would we have to do a framework or what would we 26 

have to do? 27 

 28 

MR. GRIMES:  I would speculate that it would be a plan amendment 29 

and I think it would be more than just Reef Fish, because you’re 30 

talking about definitions that are going to apply to coastal 31 

pelagics as well.  I don’t believe it’s something that’s in any 32 

of the frameworks now and so you could perhaps add it to a 33 

generic amendment that you have, which would cover the spectrum. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  Shep, if I understood you correctly, the for-hire 36 

vessels have a cap on the number of folks they can have onboard, 37 

but there is no cap for commercial.  The distinction then 38 

becomes on how many passengers the for-hire vessels could carry, 39 

depending on what they were doing. 40 

 41 

The relief being sought is that they be permitted, if they’re 42 

dual permitted, to carry more, because they’re on a commercial 43 

trip and they announce it via VMS and so that’s the guidelines 44 

they’re looking for.  Is that correct? 45 

 46 

MR. GRIMES:  I don’t know that I followed that, but let me 47 

restate the issue.  Charter vessels are defined -- Give me just 48 
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a second here.  I’m going to go ahead and pull up the regulatory 1 

text. 2 

 3 

MR. SAPP:  While he’s looking that up there, Captain Bob Zales 4 

said he can provide some insight to the council as to what the 5 

issue is and what the regulations are, if you want to allow him 6 

to speak. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bob, would you come to the mic and kind of 9 

review the situation? 10 

 11 

MR. GRIMES:  Just real quickly, the regulations say a charter 12 

vessel with a commercial permit, as required under the 13 

regulations, is considered to be operating as a charter vessel 14 

when it carries a passenger who pays a fee or when there are 15 

more than three persons onboard, including the operator and 16 

crew. 17 

 18 

Then there are some exceptions to that.  Basically, a commercial 19 

vessel can’t go out with more than three people or it’s 20 

considered to be a charter vessel and this has always come up in 21 

the context of spear fishermen, because they want four crew 22 

onboard.  They want to have two guys down and two guys on the 23 

boat.  That’s always been the context that this has come up and 24 

that’s the context that it’s coming up again. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  We didn’t solve this referring to the amount of 27 

passengers on their certificate of inspection on these vessels?  28 

I thought we already solved this. 29 

 30 

MR. ZALES:  Real briefly, this has been an age-old issue since 31 

Amendment 1.  The last time this came up, because the issue -- 32 

It’s with Ed and his people down there.  A vessel that has a 33 

certificate of inspection is required -- It has nothing to do 34 

with what these people do. 35 

 36 

If that vessel, whether you have a passenger on there or not, if 37 

that vessel leaves the dock and is gone from the dock for more 38 

than twelve hours, it must have two licensed captains and it 39 

must have two deckhands.  It’s got to have a crew of four. 40 

 41 

For those vessels that are dual permitted and that are Coast 42 

Guard inspected, whenever they left the dock, under the old 43 

provision of only having three people on the boat, they were 44 

under violation of something.  They either were in violation of 45 

their certificate or they were in violation of the law and so 46 

they changed it where a certificated vessel now that is dually 47 

permitted that requires four people, they can do that. 48 
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 1 

A six-pack that only has to have one captain when he’s carrying 2 

passengers for hire, that’s where your limitation of three 3 

people comes from.  This has come up time and time again over 4 

twenty-some odd years and that’s where you are and so if you 5 

want to fight that battle, go for it. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  This is not the time or place to get into an 8 

involved discussion of it.  Ed has brought it to our attention 9 

and I would suggest if any council members, Ed, or any of your 10 

constituencies have a plan or some option that they might like 11 

to present, we could do it at a subsequent meeting. 12 

 13 

MR. SIMPSON:  Ed, are these over twenty-four-hour trips?  Is 14 

that Mr. Walker’s issue? 15 

 16 

MR. SAPP:  No, I think the issue that he’s referring to when he 17 

got challenged about it out on the water was a one-day scuba 18 

trip. 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  Again, as Bob Zales just mentioned, you addressed 21 

the problem for headboats, for certificated vessels.  There are 22 

exemptions there so you can comply with your certificate of 23 

inspection and with your fishery regulations, but, as you said, 24 

this is all about six-pack boats and dive boats out for however 25 

long they’re going out and they want to be able to carry more 26 

than three crew. 27 

 28 

MR. SAPP:  I think we’ve probably had enough discussion about 29 

it.  I’m going to suggest to Ed that he talk directly to Shep 30 

and let them determine if there’s any easy solution to it and if 31 

it’s a council solution, let him bring it back to us and tell us 32 

what it is and we’ll pursue it at that point. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Sounds good to me.  The next agenda item was 35 

Kay on research and funding. 36 

 37 

RESEARCH AND FUNDING 38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I was actually talking 40 

with Cathy about research and funding.  What I was asking for 41 

under the research and funding is such as Mr. Zales brought up, 42 

about where in the President’s budget about the $50,000 for 43 

electronic reporting, that maybe perhaps once we go through all 44 

of our figures and look at our budget and the expenditures of 45 

different things, there could be some monies. 46 

 47 

If for some reason that gets cut out and the Science Center 48 
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doesn’t have the money to do it and the council has a little 1 

extra money, maybe the council could fund it.  That’s all and 2 

thank you. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Kay.  The next three items are Dr. 5 

Bortone.  The first one is Marine Spatial Planning. 6 

 7 

MARINE SPATIAL PLANNING 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  When we were in Washington at the 10 

CCC meeting, the Council Coordination Committee, they presented 11 

-- This is basically Sam Rausch’s presentation with regard to 12 

that and Dr. Shipp felt it would be useful if I presented a 13 

little bit of a summary.  I’ll get into it a little bit and talk 14 

about it, but I’m not going to spend a lot of time.  I’ve 15 

already sent around some of the information.   16 

 17 

Basically, marine spatial planning, you’re going to hear a lot 18 

about it.  It seems to be one of Dr. Lubchenco’s new pillars of 19 

information and how they’re going to be looking at things, but 20 

it’s a way of looking at the entire suite of characters that are 21 

out there in the environment and not just in fisheries, but all 22 

the areas. 23 

 24 

Basically, it’s a comprehensive ecosystem base and so you’re 25 

starting to see a couple of terms pop up here, but mainly 26 

ecosystem.  We’ve been charged with ecosystem management and 27 

this is one way to incorporate that, but it incorporates not 28 

just the environment, but human uses as well and it’s presumed 29 

to be an objective way, I would say at least a less subjective 30 

way, of getting at looking at how all the features of the 31 

environment work together.  Basically, it’s to maximize benefits 32 

of coastal uses. 33 

 34 

I know you can’t see this one, but just focus on the middle part 35 

here, data integration, which is all the data that are 36 

available, a four-dimensional analysis, which means X, Y, Z and 37 

time, and then it looks at the NOAA mandates, which are 38 

fisheries, and we are a significant part of that, and then it 39 

looks at the jurisdictional components.  All of these features 40 

are going to be taken into consideration with regard to marine 41 

spatial planning. 42 

 43 

The key elements are, and this hasn’t really been decided yet, a 44 

clear definition of what MSP is.  We’re defining now the 45 

geographical extent.  There’s going to be some regional planning 46 

structure, which I’m going to look at in a little bit here with 47 

you, and it would involve all the other larger features, 48 



173 

 

capacity building and stakeholder. 1 

 2 

This gives you an idea of the extent.  It will look very 3 

familiar to you.  Basically, it incorporates all the council 4 

zones that we have, management councils, as they actually exist, 5 

with the addition of the Great Lakes as an extra component.  In 6 

terms of the major zones that we’re going to be looking at, 7 

we’re already pretty much covered by the Fisheries Management 8 

Act. 9 

 10 

This is just a small example that was offered and you can get an 11 

idea of what’s happening.  These are right whale sightings off 12 

of Boston.  Here is Boston here and Cape Cod and these are right 13 

whale sightings and what they did was the previous ship channel 14 

is this dashed line that went through here, right through the 15 

middle of the right whales. 16 

 17 

By plotting the right whale sightings, they were able to 18 

reorganize the shipping lane through an area that had the least 19 

amount of potential contact with right whales and so what you’re 20 

seeing here are data layers.  One is the distribution of the 21 

whales and the other is the distribution of the land and water, 22 

of course, and then another is the distribution of the shipping 23 

lanes that are present there and this is getting into changing 24 

management based on multiple data layers and the next slide will 25 

probably be, I hope, a little bit clearer or show you some other 26 

examples. 27 

 28 

This shows you other data layers.  Here we have the study area, 29 

catch data, sightings of whatever it might be, turtles, for 30 

example, the bathymetry, substrate, temperature, history, 31 

archeology.  Any of these data layers would go into this and 32 

decisions would be made. 33 

 34 

Now, why I’m presenting this to you is that it’s probably going 35 

to be a way in which a lot of management decisions are made in 36 

the future.  Interestingly, fisheries was not really part of the 37 

original and first cut organization of this, but we have sent a 38 

letter, the CCC has, asking to be integral and involved with 39 

this. 40 

 41 

There is some suspicion that perhaps fisheries will be left out 42 

and many of the decisions we are confronted with would be made 43 

by others, because they’re using different databases than we 44 

are, but reciprocally, our data layers, with regard to 45 

fisheries, would be incorporated in other jurisdictional 46 

decisions and so I think it works both ways.  It’s yet to be 47 

played out exactly how this is going to operate, but I just 48 
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wanted to give you sort of an overview as to what this was 1 

about. 2 

 3 

This kind of points it out in Sam’s slide, that objectives have 4 

not been well articulated and the coordination and sharing needs 5 

to take place.  There’s a lot of other features that need to be 6 

occurring, but this is ongoing right as we speak.  I’m assuming 7 

by next year at this time there will be a little more definition 8 

to it. 9 

 10 

Just to give you some background, the marine protected area, 11 

when those are looked at, they’re already involved in a marine 12 

spatial planning mode and this would expand that methodology 13 

further.  That’s all I was going to present to you and just to 14 

give you a heads up, so you’re a little familiar with the term 15 

and what’s involved with it.  I wouldn’t get too scared yet, but 16 

it may affect how we do our management in the future.  Does 17 

anybody have any questions and I’ll try to answer. 18 

 19 

MEETING SCHEDULE 20 

 21 

I met with staff and some council people and we talked about the 22 

-- Tina is bugging me about knowing when the next meeting should 23 

be held.  We’ve run into a couple of problems and you may have 24 

noticed that at this meeting.  It’s very -- I’ll be glib.  It’s 25 

very easy for council to sit here and wave their arms and say 26 

staff will do it. 27 

 28 

What’s happening is staff is getting buried and what I’ve 29 

proposed here, and this is really just for discussion, but, of 30 

course, it’s your prerogative, of examining the possibility of 31 

going from five meetings a year to four meetings.  32 

 33 

On the right-hand side, we have the five meeting council agenda 34 

for 2011.  We’re already set for 2010, of course.  On the left 35 

side, I’ve proposed -- I had Tina make up for the next two 36 

years, 2011 and 2012, what a four meetings per year schedule 37 

might look like. 38 

 39 

It has the advantage in that it would certainly give the staff 40 

more time to prepare for meetings, because we literally run from 41 

meeting to meeting, preparing and coming back and debriefing and 42 

taking care of issue and getting ready for the next meeting, but 43 

that’s not all we do.  There’s other meetings in between that 44 

time. 45 

 46 

Also, the professional staff has very little time for its own 47 

personal development and professional development.  I feel 48 
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that’s pretty important.  I spoke with Johnny Greene and we had 1 

a pretty good discussion about this and he pointed out that 2 

having a summer break of the months of June, July, and August 3 

without a council meeting would be beneficial to many members of 4 

the fishing community.   5 

 6 

This schedule would allow that.  With five council meetings, 7 

it’s almost impossible to schedule a three-month hiatus in the 8 

year.  Ultimately, we could save as much as $50,000 to $60,000 a 9 

year, because of the cost of reducing the money there. 10 

 11 

There are some other things against going to four meetings, of 12 

course, and first of all, I think initially some of the meetings 13 

may go more than four days or the three-and-a-half that we 14 

schedule.  I think eventually that wouldn’t occur, but I think 15 

at first they probably would. 16 

 17 

We would probably have to adjust our schedules.  There is some 18 

concern whether we can move quickly enough to meet the National 19 

Marine Fisheries Service schedule on certain issues, but some 20 

councils meet three times a year and they don’t seem to have a 21 

problem with this. 22 

 23 

Certainly it’s different and that’s always scary to some, but 24 

those are some of the pros and cons of going to this schedule.  25 

What I guess I’m proposing is that we discuss or talk about 26 

this, but perhaps consider just doing this for the next two 27 

years and see how that works and if it causes great harm, 28 

problems, et cetera, we could easily switch back, but I need to 29 

know something today, because Tina wanted to know yesterday 30 

about scheduling for 2011.  I open that up for discussion. 31 

 32 

MR. PERRET:  I guess that’s part of the evolutionary process.  33 

I’m one of two people at the table that was here when this 34 

council would meet twelve times a year and it seemed like we 35 

lived in airplanes and airports. 36 

 37 

This is an interesting proposal.  I would suggest this.  When we 38 

were meeting twelve times a year, committee meetings were taking 39 

place independent of the council meetings.  We would meet in the 40 

Tampa office or we would meet wherever and I’ve always felt that 41 

that was very, very productive, having a committee meeting.  42 

Reef Fish seems to be the one that’s taking so much time. 43 

 44 

Whether we have four meetings a year or five meetings a year or 45 

what have you, when there’s an issue, a major issue, before 46 

whatever the respective management committee is, have a separate 47 

management committee meeting ahead of the council meeting and I 48 
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think you can get a lot out of it.  You get your recommendations 1 

out of the committee and for the most part -- That may be 2 

inaccurate, but the council oftentimes will follow committee 3 

recommendations and that would be a time-saving thing also. 4 

 5 

MR. SAPP:  First off, I would not favor at all meeting any less 6 

days a year.  We hardly have time to discuss the things that we 7 

need to discuss and I can’t tell you how often I’ve been 8 

frustrated just because we’ve lacked that discussion time that I 9 

feel is necessary. 10 

 11 

As to whether or not you divvy those days -- I would argue for 12 

more days rather than less days.  If you divide those days into 13 

four meetings or five meetings, I think the argument against 14 

four meetings is what you’re seeing here today.  Everybody is 15 

frazzled and we’re on edge and we’re anxious to get the heck out 16 

of here and if you added one more day at the beginning on that 17 

agenda, you’re just going to compound the issue.  I would argue 18 

pretty strongly against going to four meetings. 19 

 20 

MR. TEEHAN:  My two comments -- One to Corky and I love Corky to 21 

death and I even gave him a toll shirt, but I disagree with your 22 

comment about the separate committee meetings.  I think 23 

everybody is aware that we’re all sitting in on all of these 24 

committee meetings, whether we’re on the committee or not, and I 25 

think that’s very helpful, to actually observe what the 26 

discussion was during a management or whatever committee meeting 27 

and then be able to incorporate that into the full council 28 

discussion. 29 

 30 

The second issue that I have, and I’m just throwing this out, 31 

about a four meeting schedule is we’ve got five states and 32 

generally when we’re developing a management plan it’s going to 33 

affect everybody in all those five states for fisheries, 34 

generally.  Obviously lobster and things like that don’t. 35 

 36 

It seems to me that during the course of the development of a 37 

plan that’s going to affect people’s livelihoods that we owe it 38 

to them to appear in that state during that year or during that 39 

development period and I’m just wondering whether dropping a 40 

state out every -- I’m not quite sure if I get how the priority 41 

is there, but I see Florida is only one year and Louisiana is 42 

only one year. 43 

 44 

That’s just my concern, that I think we owe it to the people to 45 

get to their state if we’re working on something during that 46 

year that affects them. 47 

 48 
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MS. MORRIS:  In my time on the council, we moved from six 1 

council meetings a year to five and there were two strong 2 

motivations that I remember for that and one was we had a couple 3 

of years when our scheduled hurricane season meetings had to be 4 

dropped or rescheduled because hurricanes were coming towards 5 

the city that we were planning to meet in or people were unable 6 

to travel because they had responsibilities in their home places 7 

to prepare for hurricanes. 8 

 9 

Whatever schedule you come up with, instead of avoiding the 10 

fishing season of the summer, I think you ought to avoid 11 

hurricane season.  That’s why we now meet in August and late 12 

October instead of having a meeting in the peak months of 13 

hurricane season. 14 

 15 

The other motivation was that we felt that if we had fewer 16 

meetings the staff would have more time in between meetings to 17 

develop the documents to the proper decision state that they 18 

needed to be in for our next meeting and I think that’s a very 19 

important objective. 20 

 21 

I think five meetings is better than six and I can see how four 22 

would be better than five for that purpose, but we’re still, 23 

with five meetings, getting -- This was a tough meeting.  Two o 24 

the really important options papers that we were looking at had 25 

large sections that were missing, for various reasons, and so it 26 

still continues to be an issue. 27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I can recall when we went from six meetings to 29 

five meetings and some of what Julie was saying.  I recall the 30 

stuff about giving staff more time, because we were short of 31 

staff, to get the materials and stuff to us.  I really haven’t 32 

seen a change in that.   33 

 34 

I actually think we need six meetings, because there are issues 35 

that come up in between times, to where we say -- I think the 36 

red snapper assessment that was carried on, we were going to 37 

have a meeting one month and then it was like we were meeting 38 

two or three months later and it was just -- It was just very 39 

frustrating. 40 

 41 

We are put here to give advice and to come up with these 42 

management plans, decisions.  We have a job to do.  Staff isn’t 43 

supposed to do all of our job for us.  We appreciate everything 44 

that you do do, because you work very hard, but I just think 45 

that the council members needs to be here to talk with the 46 

industry and they need to be here to take care of the management 47 

measures as quickly as they can, because people’s livelihoods 48 
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are dependent on it.  If it were just I, I would make a motion 1 

to go back to six meetings, but I won’t do that just yet.  Thank 2 

you, Mr. Chairman. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  I think there’s another issue that applies here, 5 

because we have a confluence of staff changes that interpose 6 

with this question.  We have new staff onboard and I suspect, 7 

and I don’t know, that they may not be fully up to speed and so 8 

the influence of them on the workload has not been realized and 9 

that’s obviously part of this question. 10 

 11 

In addition, we also have placeholders, at a minimum, in the 12 

budget for additional staff, which may also interplay in the 13 

future in this question.  I think that’s part of the question.  14 

I doubt we can answer it, in terms of definitive numbers, what 15 

that influence ought to be, but certainly that plays a part in 16 

this question, because the whole issue, or the main issue here, 17 

is staff workload and the ability to do the job properly, but 18 

clearly staff changes or staff additions are part of that 19 

question. 20 

 21 

I have misgivings that we’re, in essence, double dipping.  On 22 

the one hand, we’re increasing staff to do that and another 23 

thing is we’re decreasing meeting time and so we’ve got two 24 

actions going to accomplish the same end and so I’m a little 25 

uneasy from that score. 26 

 27 

MR. SIMPSON:  As far as the four meetings or five meetings, I 28 

don’t really have a comment on that, other than the fact that I 29 

don’t think any meeting should go more than a half-day on Monday 30 

through a half-day on Friday.  Whatever you do, you can always 31 

change. 32 

 33 

I do want to try to marry, to some degree, Corky’s comments and 34 

Bill’s comments, having sat through both of those scenarios.  I 35 

think Corky has got a good point and having -- In the old days, 36 

there was a lot of discretion given to the committees and they 37 

brought forth information and then the real debate and 38 

discussion was on the substance of those issues. 39 

 40 

Now, having seen the second one, when everybody is involved, it 41 

makes a better product, but I think certainly for the first half 42 

of the FMP development, the outside meetings give you some kind 43 

of benefit.  The last part, when you get down to the final 44 

actions and so forth, maybe you could bring it into the group as 45 

it is, but I’ve seen pros and cons on both of them. 46 

 47 

MR. FISCHER:  I have a few issues.  Scheduling off during the 48 
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summer months and for Julie, Julie, we get quite a few 1 

hurricanes in August, also.  We get quite a few in September.  2 

There’s no real hurricane season.  I don’t know what the peak 3 

is.  I know we’re always on ready from the first of August on. 4 

 5 

Trying to appease the northern Gulf fishermen who have a 6 

summertime fishery and then we ignoring the southern areas, 7 

charterboats, South Padre Island, and all the commercial 8 

interests that have wintertime occupations.   9 

 10 

I don’t think we could schedule our meetings around that and 11 

many of us have sat in five-day SEDARs where we had to travel 12 

the day before and Thursday is looking like the day I want to go 13 

home and I’ve got a whole day Friday ahead of me.  I don’t 14 

particularly care for five-day meetings, because it really ends 15 

up being six and seven days for some people. 16 

 17 

What I could see that might take some burden off, I would like 18 

to at least keep it the way it is now.  Sometimes I don’t know 19 

if it was just a lot of very good planning or just pure blind 20 

coincidence that we’re taking final action on a fishery and that 21 

meeting happens to be in that area that final action is 22 

occurring.  I thought those were excellent meetings. 23 

 24 

Like I say, I’m sure when the chairman is trying to create these 25 

dates a year in advance, that just could be coincidence, but 26 

those are good meetings, when you’re in those hometowns.  I 27 

would like to see us up and down the coast more and so I’m not 28 

in favor of less than five, but what I would like to see that 29 

might take the burden off is are we having too many scoping and 30 

options and amendment papers at too many ports up and down the 31 

coast? 32 

 33 

I know we want to try to get to the public.  I don’t know what 34 

the other councils do, but it seems staff is forever on the road 35 

doing public hearings. 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  Steve, you mentioned professional development or 38 

something like that with staff and do you have a policy on that 39 

or can you be a little more clear about what exactly you’re 40 

talking about? 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We have an internal policy about 43 

reimbursing staff for training and education and things like 44 

that, but they don’t really have a chance to take advantage of 45 

that, because of the situation. 46 

 47 

Also, we do have a staff of -- The technical staff is very 48 
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professional and there’s just no time for them to be the 1 

scientists that they are.  Working on plans is part of that and 2 

certainly that’s their job, but they’re also -- It’s important 3 

that they be kept up to speed in their field and there really 4 

isn’t much of an opportunity to do that. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think also we need to be clear that these 7 

aren’t research positions and they’re not functioning as 8 

scientists anymore and this isn’t academia.  They’re hired to 9 

serve as staff to the council and essentially to write these 10 

documents, just like my staff do that and it’s a full-time job. 11 

 12 

I always tell folks if you want to be a scientist and be an 13 

academician, then you need to work for a Science Center or for a 14 

university somewhere, but if you work for the council staff or 15 

the Regional Office, you’re here to churn out these documents, 16 

in my view. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Where do you want to go with this?  Does anyone 19 

want to -- 20 

 21 

MR. PERRET:  Do you want a motion one way or the other, so we 22 

can get it voted up or down? 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I guess my first question is this is a pretty 25 

major issue and we really haven’t had much time to think about 26 

it.  I’m not sure I would like to make a final decision now.  On 27 

the other hand, Steve feels like we’re pressed, because of the 28 

scheduling of the hotels. 29 

 30 

Whether we went four or five, the February schedule is pretty 31 

close to the same on both of them.  I hate to keep putting 32 

things off, but maybe it would be best to defer to April on this 33 

or not.  What is your pleasure? 34 

 35 

MS. MORRIS:  We could go ahead and schedule five meetings for 36 

2011 and continue talking about making the switch to four 37 

beginning in 2012. 38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I know that we always schedule out usually like a 40 

year-and-a-half.  That’s where the chairman usually picks the 41 

locations.  I don’t see any -- I haven’t heard enough desire to 42 

go to four meetings and so I would say just stay with the five 43 

meetings and thank you very much for your suggestions and maybe 44 

the council members can come up with some other ideas.  They may 45 

want to have five meetings plus maybe some separate committee 46 

meetings or something.  I would like to think on it some more. 47 

 48 
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MR. GREENE:  Just a comment.  Red snapper is a big topic 1 

everywhere you go and everything you do and with the season 2 

being fifty days long next year and to have a meeting inside 3 

that fifty days seems like it’s kind of a -- I know it maybe 4 

just felt that way and I certainly know it wasn’t planned that 5 

way, but it’s certainly something to consider with industry 6 

leaders wanting to be here to speak and the conflict of seasons.  7 

Maybe you could look at something around that. 8 

 9 

I certainly understand the four meeting, five meeting, six 10 

meeting conversation that’s gone on, but I just want to throw 11 

that out for conversation. 12 

 13 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Having recently been involved in trying to 14 

schedule meetings, a year-and-a-half out is sometimes not even 15 

adequate to find a hotel that actually will accommodate our 16 

group.  As fast as we can get this done, I think in fairness to 17 

our staff, to try to get these scheduled would be good and so 18 

I’m in favor of us moving forward with it one way or the other. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think Julie’s comment was the closest to a 21 

motion that I had heard.  Would you, Julie, want to go ahead and 22 

make that a motion? 23 

 24 

MS. MORRIS:  I move that for 2011 we schedule five council 25 

meetings and continue discussing switching to four for the 26 

following years. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve got a motion and it’s seconded.  Any 29 

objections to the motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes.  The 30 

last agenda item and, Steve, you’ve got about forty-five seconds 31 

to address this, is reports. 32 

 33 

REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s been brought to my attention 36 

that often we send people out to attend meetings, council 37 

members, et cetera, but often we also don’t hear back from them 38 

about what happens and I guess I would propose that if I had 39 

some motion or something that would allow me to put those 40 

individuals on the schedule so that they could report back. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Gill so moves. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  I move that we receive a report from members 45 

attending meetings outside the normal council and AP meetings 46 

otherwise reported. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded.  Any further 1 

discussion? 2 

 3 

MR. PERRET:  What you mean by report?  Written or verbal? 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Either.  The intent here is that we get some 6 

feedback.  For example, we have the ICCAT and the HMS Billfish, 7 

but we never hear what happens and some of it may pertain to 8 

council business and some of it may just be a broadening in 9 

terms of overall fisheries above and beyond the council, but we 10 

get feedback and whether the member chooses to do it at a 11 

meeting and put it on the agenda, that’s fine.  If they want to 12 

do a written report, that’s fine.  I think the important aspect 13 

is that we get some feedback on what went on and why we sent 14 

them there. 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  The only thing I would say is you can submit a 17 

written report, but you know when we have a council meeting 18 

there’s going to be at least one or more questions about what 19 

happened at the meeting and so I just think the way we’ve done 20 

it in the past -- For the most part, we give verbal reports or I 21 

generally give a verbal report. 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That’s what I was going to say.  I can remember 24 

when I would type up a report and everybody, once again, was 25 

wanting to hurry up and go home and staff just put them in the 26 

back of the document for everybody to read when they had the 27 

opportunity to, but staff is there and they’re taking the notes 28 

and the council members are at the table when it’s being 29 

discussed and if you’ve got questions, ask the member that was 30 

there.  I don’t see any need to go make a formal motion. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We do have a motion on the board.  My personal 33 

opinion is we do need to formalize this, so that even if it’s 34 

five minutes at a council meeting, at the appropriate committee 35 

time or in full council, we should have something.  Bob, is that 36 

verbiage correct now? 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  That will work. 39 

 40 

MR. HENDRIX:  A quick suggestion, Mr. Chairman.  I think if it 41 

were a written report, no matter how brief, it would be much 42 

easier for the Executive Director to manage it the next meeting 43 

and how to incorporate it into the schedule. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do you want to make a friendly amendment to 46 

insert the words “receive a written report?  Do you accept that, 47 

Mr. Gill?  Okay.  Let’s move on with this.  Any further 48 
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discussion?   1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  I’m against written reports.  Nobody is really 3 

going to read them.  I go to a meeting or any member goes to a 4 

meeting and if somebody is interested in that meeting, they’re 5 

going to question the person at the next council meeting.  I am 6 

against written reports. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Does that mean you would vote against this 9 

motion?  Make a substitute, either written or oral. 10 

 11 

MR. PERRET:  Receive either a written or oral report. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Would you accept that, Mr. Gill?  Okay.  I’m 14 

not going to accept any more comment on this.  All in favor of 15 

the motion signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion passes.  16 

Unless there’s any other business, and I don’t think I’m going 17 

to recognize anybody, we are adjourned and look forward to 18 

seeing everyone in Galveston. 19 

 20 

- - - 21 

22 
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research to address the current uncertainty in age structure of 43 
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snapper, as soon as possible.  The letter should refer to the 1 

recommendations from the stock assessment workshop for further 2 

research.  The motion carried on page 127. 3 

 4 

PAGE 128:  Motion to send the Red Snapper Regulatory Amendment 5 

to the Secretary of Commerce along with the accompanying 6 
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both for-hire and private recreational vessels; h. a 1 

statistically significant random sub-sample of the above sub-2 
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fail or refuse to participate in the program.  The electronic 8 
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for authorized Council members shall be as established in 1 

accordance with Section 302(d) of the Act and the federal rule 2 

(50 CFR 600.245). 3 

 4 

Compensation will be paid to eligible Council members for time 5 

spent in the performance of official duties for the Council and 6 

as authorized by the Council or the Council Chair.  Payment will 7 

be made for a full day's pay whether the duties performed are in 8 

excess of or less than eight hours a day for physical attendance 9 

at authorized meetings.  Payment for authorized participation in 10 

conference calls, webinars, or any other electronic meeting that 11 

does not require the member to be physically present to 12 
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an electronic meeting that has a duration of four hours or more 15 

will be paid at the full day’s pay rate.  The time is 16 
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require the member to be physically present to participate will 35 

be paid at the half-day rate if the electronic meeting is less 36 

than four hours.  Payment for participation in an electronic 37 

meeting that has a duration of four hours or more will be paid 38 

at the full day’s pay rate.  Stipends will be paid to eligible 39 

members for attendance at meetings of the SSC, SEDAR, and to 40 

give presentations to the Council on behalf of the SSC, as 41 
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not be reimbursed.  Travelers may petition the Chair of the 1 

Council for reconsideration of reimbursement.”  The motion 2 
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